# Appendix H

Preliminary Contamination Assessment by JBS Environmental

.



## Preliminary Contamination Assessment

The Applicant

165 – 185 River Road Tahmoor NSW

November 2010 JBS 41274-15405 JBS Environmental Pty Ltd



## **Table of Contents**

Li	st of A	bbreviationsvi
Li	st of A	bbreviations viii
1	Int	roduction1
	1.1	Introduction and Background1
	1.2	Objectives1
	1.3	Scope of Work1
2	Sit	e Condition & Surrounding Environment2
	2.1	Site Identification2
	2.2	Site Description2
	2.3	Surrounding Landuse5
	2.4	Topography5
	2.5	Hydrology6
	2.6	Geology6
	2.7	Acid Sulfate Soils7
	2.8	Hydrogeology7
3	Sit	e History8
	3.1	Aerial Photographs8
	3.2	DECCW Records9
	3.3	Title Details9
	3.4	Council Records10
	3.5	Australian and NSW Heritage Register12
	3.6	Workcover Dangerous Goods Licenses12
	3.7	Previous Investigations12
	3.8	Development Application / Building Application (DA/BA) records12
	3.9	Site History Summary12
	3.10	Integrity Assessment
4	Cor	nceptual Site Model (CSM)14
	4.1	Potential Areas of Environmental Concern14
	4.2	Contaminants of Potential Concern (CoPCs)14
	4.3	Potentially Contaminated Media14
	4.4	Potential for Migration, Exposure Pathways and Receptors
5	Sar	npling and Analysis Plan16
	5.1	Data Quality Objectives16
	5.1	.1 State the Problem



		5.1.2	Identify the Decision16
		5.1.3	Identify Inputs to the Decision17
		5.1.4	Define the Study Boundaries17
		5.1.5	Develop a Decision Rule17
		5.1.6	Specify Limits of Decision Error18
		5.1.7	Optimise the Design for Obtaining Data19
	5.2	2 Da	ta Quality Indicators19
	5.3	3 So	il Sampling Methodology21
	5.4	l De	contamination of Soil Sampling Equipment22
	5.5	5 Fie	ld PID Screening of Soil Samples22
	5.6	5 Lat	poratory Analyses22
6		Assess	ment Criteria
	6.1	. Re	gulatory Guidelines
	6.2	2 So	il Criteria25
7		Quality	Assurance / Quality Control
	7.1	. So	II QA/QC Results
	7.2	2 Dis	cussion of QA/QC Results27
	7.3	B QA	/QC Assessment28
	7.4	As:	sessment of Decision Rule28
8		Discus	sion of Soil Results
	8.1	. Fie	ld Observations
	8.2	. Soi	il Analytical Results
		8.2.1	Asbestos
		8.2.2	Heavy Metals
		8.2.3	TPH
		8.2.4	BTEX Compounds
		8.2.5	VOCs
		8.2.6	PAHs
		8.2.7	SVOCs
		8.2.8	OCPs
		8.2.9	PCBs,
	8.3	E Lea	achate Analytical Results
		8.3.1	TCLP Heavy Metals
		8.3.2	ASLP Heavy Metals
		8.3.3	TCLP PAHs

.



	8.	3.4	ASLP PAHs
8	.4	Upo	dated Conceptual Site Model33
	8.4	4.1	Areas of Environmental Concern
	8.4	4.2	Contaminants of Potential Concern
	8.4	4.3	Contaminated Media
	8.4	4.4	Potential for Migration, Exposure Pathways and Receptors
9	Sit	e Ch	aracterisation
9	.1	Rep	porting in accordance with EPA requirements
9	.2	Aes	thetic issues have been addressed35
9	9.3 Assessment of the risk to future onsite receptors from the soil		
	.4		essment of background soil concentrations against the appropriate
ir	ivest	igati	on levels
9	.5	Ass	essment of chemical mixtures35
9	.6	Ass	essment of the potential for the migration of contaminants from the site35
10	Co	nclus	sions
11	Re	comi	nendations
12	Lin	nitati	ons

#### Figures

Figure 1 – Site Location Figure 2 – Site Layout Figure 3 – Soil Sample Locations

#### Tables

- Table A Soil Analytical Results
- Table B TCLP and ASLP Results

#### Appendices

- Appendix A Site Photographs
- Appendix B Groundwater Bore Search
- Appendix C Aerial Photographs
- Appendix D DECCW Records
- Appendix E Title Records
- Appendix F Council Records
- Appendix G Heritage Records



Appendix H – Calibration and Decontamination Records

Appendix I – ESDAT QA Checker

Appendix J – Borehole Logs

Appendix K – Laboratory Reports and Chain of Custody Documentation

Appendix L – Procedure B Calculations



### **List of Abbreviations**

A list of the comm	on abbreviations used throughout this report is provided below.
AEC	Area of Environmental Concern
AHD	Australian Height Datum
ANZECC	Australian and New Zealand Environment and Conservation Council
ARMCANZ	Agriculture and Resource Management Council of Australia and New Zealand
As	Arsenic
ASLP	Australian Standard Leaching Procedure
Cd	Cadmium
COC	Chain of Custody
COPC	Contaminants Of Potential Concern
CSM	Conceptual site model
Cr	Chromium
Cu	Copper
bgs	below ground surface
BTEX	Benzene, Toluene, Ethylbenzene and Xylenes
B(a)P	Benzo(a)pyrene
DEC	NSW Department of Environment and Conservation
DECC	NSW Department of Environment Conservation and Climate Change
DECCW	NSW Department of Environment Conservation and Climate Change and Water
DLWC	NSW Department of Land and Water Conservation
DoM	NSW Department of Mines
DQIs	Data Quality Indicators
DQOs	Data Quality Objectives
DWE	NSW Department of Water and Energy
EMP	Environmental Management Plan
Envirolab	Envirolab Services Pty Ltd
ESA	Environmental Site Assessment
EPA	NSW Environment Protection Authority
На	Hectare
Hg	Mercury
HIL	Health based investigation level
IPL	Incitec Pivot Limited
JBS	JBS Environmental
LCS	Laboratory Control Sample
LOR	Limit of Reporting
LPI	NSW Department of Land and Property Information
Mn	Manganese
NATA	National Association of Testing Authorities
NEPC	National Environment Protection Council
NHMRC	National Health and Medical Research Council
Ni	Nickel

A list of the common abbreviations used throughout this report is provided below.



.

OCP	Organochlorine Pesticides
OPP	Organophosphorus Pesticides
PAHs	Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons
PARCC	Precision, Accuracy, Comparability and Completeness
Pb	Lead
PCBs	Polychlorinated Biphenyls
Pickford	Pickford and Rhyder Consulting Pty Ltd
PID	Photoionisation Detector
PIL	Phytotoxicity based Investigation Level
PQL	Practical Quantitation Limit
QA/QC	Quality Assurance/Quality Control
RPD	Relative Percentage Difference
SAQP	Sampling, Analysis and Quality Plan
SCID	Stored Chemical Information Database
SGS	SGS Environmental Pty Ltd
ТРН	Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons
UCL	Upper Confidence Level
Zn	Zinc



### **Executive Summary**

JBS Environmental Pty Ltd was engaged by EG Property Group, to conduct a Preliminary Contamination Assessment (PCA) of a property located 165-185 River Road, Tahmoor, NSW. The site has an approximate area of 107 hectares, and comprises Lot A in DP 369710, Lot B in DP 369710, Lot 85 in DP 751270, and Lot 86 in DP 751270.

It is understood that the preliminary contamination assessment was required to identify the potential for contamination at the site, and any possible constraints on future site development.

The assessment was conducted in general accordance with relevant guidelines made or approved by the NSW Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water (DECCW), and relevant Australian Standards.

The objective of the investigation was to assess the potential for contamination at the site and to draw conclusions regarding the likelihood of the presence of significant, widespread, contamination.

To achieve the objectives of the assessment the following scope of works was undertaken:

- Review of available Council documentation, aerial photos, legal title information, DECCW records and Heritage records to identify areas of environmental concern and associated contaminants of potential concern (COPCs);
- Review of the topography, geology and hydrogeology of the site and surrounding areas;
- A site inspection of all accessible areas to identify any additional visible areas of concern and associated potential COPCs;
- A limited program of soil sampling and analysis from 15 locations targeting identified areas of concern and associated COPCs;
- Analysis of selected soil samples at a NATA accredited laboratory for 8 heavy metals, TPH, BTEX compounds, VOCs, SVOCs, OCPs, PCBs and asbestos;
- Leachate analysis from selected soil samples at a NATA accredited laboratory for 8 heavy metals and PAHs; and
- Preparation of a Preliminary Contamination Assessment report in accordance with relevant DECCW Guidelines.

Based on the results of the investigation undertaken at the site, and subject to the limitations stated in **Section 12**, the following conclusions are made:

- There were no reported concentrations of heavy metals, TPH, BTEX compounds, VOCs, SVOCs, OCPs and PCBs above the nominated assessment criteria for standard residential land use within any of the soil samples submitted for laboratory analysis.
- There were no reported concentrations of the contaminants of potential concern above the nominated assessment criteria for standard residential land use within any of the background soil samples submitted for laboratory analysis.
- The potential for the migration of the potential contaminants of concern to the groundwater is considered to be low based on the shallow depth to sandstone



bedrock, the anticipated depth to groundwater, the low to moderate permeability of the sand and clay soils at the site, and the concentrations of heavy metals and PAHs within the leachates for soil samples submitted for TCLP and ASLP analysis.

• The potential for the migration of the potential contaminants of concern to the surface water bodies present across the site is considered to be low based on the long grass cover present across the majority of the site surface, and the concentrations of heavy metals and PAHs within the leachates for soil samples submitted for TCLP and ASLP analysis.

It is concluded that, while there is a potential for isolated areas of contamination to be present in areas of the site not directly sampled, the potential is low in consideration of the rural residential historical use of the site. It is unlikely that any significant, widespread, contamination is present at the site.

Based on the results of the investigation undertaken at the site, and subject to the limitations stated in **Section 12**, the following recommendations are made:

• Prior to the demolition of all buildings and structures across the site, a hazardous materials building survey be undertaken. The objectives of the survey will be to document the presence of hazardous materials, including asbestos and lead based paint, within the buildings and structures across the site.

Based on the results of the investigation undertaken at the site, and subject to the limitations stated in **Section 12**, there is no barrier to a residential zone at the site. The site is considered to be suitable for both residential land use, and for the development of 'The Tahmoor Tourism and Recreation Precinct'.



### 1 Introduction

#### **Introduction and Background**

JBS Environmental Pty Ltd was engaged by EG Property Group, to conduct a Preliminary Contamination Assessment (PCA) of a property located 165-185 River Road, Tahmoor, NSW. The site has an approximate area of 107 hectares, and comprises Lot A in DP 369710, Lot B in DP 369710, Lot 85 in DP 751270, and Lot 86 in DP 751270.

It is understood that the preliminary contamination assessment was required to identify the potential for contamination at the site, and any possible constraints on future site development.

The assessment was conducted in general accordance with relevant guidelines made or approved by the NSW Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water (DECCW), and relevant Australian Standards (**Section 6**).

#### Objectives

The objective of the assessment was to assess the potential for contamination at the site and to draw conclusions regarding the likelihood of the presence of significant, widespread, contamination.

#### Scope of Work

To achieve the objectives of the assessment, the following scope of works was implemented:

- Review of available Council documentation (including zoning certificate), aerial photos, legal title information, and Heritage records to identify areas of environmental concern and associated contaminants of potential concern (COPCs);
- Review of the topography, geology and hydrogeology of the site and surrounding areas;
- A site inspection of all accessible areas to identify any additional visible areas of concern and associated potential COPCs;
- A limited program of soil sampling and analysis from 15 locations targeting identified areas of concern and associated COPCs;
- Analysis of selected soil samples at a NATA accredited laboratory for 8 heavy metals, TPH, BTEX compounds, VOCs, SVOCs, OCPs, PCBs and asbestos;
- Leachate analysis from selected soil samples at a NATA accredited laboratory for 8 heavy metals and PAHs; and
- Preparation of a Preliminary Contamination Assessment report in accordance with relevant DECCW Guidelines.



### 2 Site Condition & Surrounding Environment

#### **Site Identification**

The location of the site is shown in **Figure 1**. The site details are summarised in **Table 2.1** and described in detail in the following sections.

Table 2.	1 Sumr	nary Site	Details
----------	--------	-----------	---------

Lot/DP	Lot A in DP 369710, Lot B in DP 369710, Lot 85 in DP 751270, and Lot 86 in DP 751270
Address	165 - 185 River Road, Tahmoor, NSW.
Local Government Authority	Wollondilly Shire Council.
Site Zoning	Lot A in DP 369710 - Zone No 9(d) (Open Space Reservation Zone);
	Lot B in DP 369710 – Zone No 1 (a2) (Rural "A2" Zone);
	Lot 85 in DP 751270 - Zone No 9(d) (Open Space Reservation Zone); and
a franciska se	Lot 86 in DP 751270 - Zone No 1 (a2) (Rural "A2" Zone)
the state of the s	Under the Wollondilly Local Environment Plan 1991.
Proposed zoning	It is understood that there are no proposed zoning changes at the site.
Current Use	The site is currently used for rural residential purposes. Occupied
i da a Augara da Bara a malhada	residential dwellings are present in the western and northern portions of
<ul> <li>The second s Second second se Second second sec second second sec</li></ul>	the site. An unoccupied residential dwelling is present in the south-
the data set and the set of the s	
	land for cattle and other farm animals.
Previous Use	The site has historically been used for rural residential and pastoral
	purposes. The site occupants revealed the site had historically been used
	as a stud farm for horses.
Proposed Use	It is understood that the preliminary contamination assessment was required to identify the potential for contamination at the site, and any
	possible constraints on future site development for residential use with
e e standere die de datest kreiten.	the 'The Tahmoor Tourism and Recreation Precinct' which comprises 92
	large lot residential dwellings, a range of recreational facilities associated
and the second second second	with those dwellings and a brand new conference/function centre,
	restaurant and bar.
Site Area	Approximately 107 hectares.
Coordinates of approximate	56H 280341 UTM 6210536 (MGA Zone 56)
centre of site	· ·

#### 2.2 Site Description

An inspection of the site was undertaken on 20 July 2010. The site comprised a parcel of land located at 165 – 185 River Road, Tahmoor, NSW. The layout of the site is shown on **Figure 2**. The majority of the area of the site comprised improved pastures with a number of water storage ponds (dams). Residential dwellings were located in the western, northern and south-eastern portions of the site. Garage and storage buildings were located in the wester in the western portion of the site. A number of stables were located across the site. Derelict sheds and timber stockpiles were located in the southern portion of the site was unsealed. Pastoral grasses were present across the majority of the site. Timber and wire fencing were present along the site boundaries.

Access to the site was via a steel gate located on the western boundary of the site, adjacent to River Road. A gravel roadbase driveway was present in the western portion of the site, extending from the access gate to the south and west, adjacent to the dwellings and structures present in the western portion of the site.

The main residence was located in the western portion of the site, to the west of the steel access gate. The main residence appeared to be less than 20 years old and constructed from brick, with corrugated iron roofing, and concrete flooring. The eaves of the dwelling were constructed from timber and fibreboard. An awning was present extending across the entrance on the western wall of the dwelling. Slate and cement pavement was present underlying the awning. A double garage was present on the ground level in the eastern portion of the dwelling. Minor flaking paint was noted on the timber surfaces of the dwelling. Two LPG cylinders were present on the exterior of the southern wall of the dwelling. The cylinders were in good condition with no evidence of significant corrosion.



A storage shed was present in the western portion of the site, to the east of the main residence. The storage shed appeared to be less than 20 years old and constructed from corrugated steel, steel framework and concrete flooring. The shed was used to store timber, furniture, tools and small machinery, electrical equipment, a caravan, and sporting equipment. The concrete floor within the storage shed was in good condition with no significant cracking or staining observed. Two plastic containers were present in the eastern portion of the storage shed. The plastic containers were in good condition, and were labelled for the storage of glycolic acid.

A garage was present in the western portion of the site, to the east of the storage shed. The garage appeared to be less than 20 years old and was constructed from brick, with steel sheeting across the upper exterior walls, steel roofing and a concrete floor. Two steel shutters were present on the northern and southern walls of the garage. Farm machinery, hand and power tools, oils and lubricants were stored within the garage. The concrete floor appeared to be in good condition with no significant cracking or degradation observed. Oil staining was observed on the concrete surface in the southern portion of the garage, underlying the southern roller door. No oil staining was observed on the unsealed surface immediately to the south of the oil staining.

A stable was present in the western portion of the site, to the south of the garage. "The Cottage" signage was present on the western exterior wall of the stable. The stable appeared to be less than 20 years old and was constructed from brick with sheet metal roofing, fibreboard eaves and timber framework. The floor within the stable was mainly concrete with unsealed areas within the individual horse stables. Minor flaking paint was observed on the eaves and timber framework. The concrete floor was in good condition with no significant staining, cracking or degradation observed.

A second stable was present in the western portion of the site, to the south of the garage and storage shed. "Jay-R-Stud" signage was present on the northern exterior wall of the stable. The stable was constructed from brick with corrugated sheet metal and fibreglass roofing and timber roof frames. The floor within the stable was mainly concrete with unsealed areas within the individual horse stalls. A vehicle was present in the northern portion of the stable. A timber showyard was present in the southern portion of the stable. Amenities were present in the south-western portion of the stable. Minor flaking paint was present on the timber surfaces of the stable. No significant staining, cracking or degradation of the concrete floor within the stable was observed.

A pond was present in the western portion of the site, to the south of the stable described above. The water within the pond appeared to be of good quality, with no sheen or staining observed. Shale and sandstone gravels were present on the surface along the banks of the pond.

A stable was present in the central portion of the site. The stable was constructed from brick with corrugated steel and timber roofing and steel guttering. The floor within the stable was mainly concrete with unsealed areas within the individual horse stalls. No significant staining, cracking or degradation was observed on the concrete floor.

A stable was present in the south-western portion of the site, to the south-east of the pond described above. The stable was constructed from brick with corrugated steel and timber roofing, steel guttering, and steel and timber eaves. The floor within the stable was mainly concrete with unsealed areas within the individual horse stalls. Minor flaking paint was observed on the eaves of the stable. No significant staining, cracking or degradation was observed on the concrete floor within the stable.



A stable was present in the southern portion of the site, to the south-east of the stable described above. The stable was constructed from brick, with tile roofing, steel gutters and a timber and steel framework. The floor within the stable was mainly concrete with unsealed areas within the individual horse stalls. Minor flaking paint was observed on the steel and timber surfaces of the stable.

A vacant residence was present in the south-eastern portion of the site. The vacant dwelling appeared to be approximately 40 years old and was constructed from brick, with tile roofing, timber framework, timber eaves, and a concrete floor. Brick pavement was present on the exterior surface surrounding the vacant dwelling. An electrical circuit box was present on the western exterior wall of the vacant residential dwelling. A suspected asbestos-containing '*zelemite*' electrical backing board was present within the electrical circuit box. Minor flaking paint was observed on the timber surfaces across the vacant dwelling. The area surrounding the vacant dwelling was landscaped. A covered spa was present to the south-east of the vacant dwelling. A landscaped round-a-bout was present to the south-west of the vacant residential dwelling. Pallisade steel fencing was present surrounding the vacant residential dwelling. Pallisade steel fencing was present surrounding the vacant residential dwelling. Pallisade steel fencing was present residence.

A garage was located to the east of the vacant dwelling. The garage was constructed from brick with tile roofing, timber framework, and a concrete floor. Three doors were present on the northern wall of the garage. Minor flaking paint was observed on the timber surfaces of the garage. Asphalt pavement was present extending from the northern wall of the garage to the west.

An occupied residence was located in the northern portion of the site. The occupied 'secondary' dwelling was constructed from fibre-cement sheeting on the upper walls, brick lower walls, painted corrugated steel and tile roofing, fibre cement eaves, steel guttering and a concrete floor. Flaking paint was observed on the timber and steel surfaces of the secondary dwelling. A timber and steel awning was located adjacent to the western exterior wall of the secondary dwelling. Timber decking was located underlying the awning. A garage was located to the south of the secondary dwelling. The garage was constructed from sheet metal. A gravel driveway was located to the east of the secondary dwelling. Toys and children's exercise equipment were located to the east and west of the secondary dwelling. A cubby house which was constructed from timber with corrugated steel roofing was located to the west of the secondary dwelling. A chicken pen and small stable were located to the west of the secondary dwelling. A car body and a large plastic container, labelled as containing degreaser, were located to the north of the secondary dwelling.

A derelict shed and raised shipping container were located underlying tree stand vegetation in the southern portion of the site. The derelict shed was constructed from timber and corrugated sheet metal. Timber pallets, tree cuttings, corrugated sheet metal, bricks and sandstone boulders were located in the vicinity of the derelict shed. A raised shipping container was located immediately to the east of derelict shed. The shipping container was constructed from steel and was raised upon tree trunk cuttings. Flaking paint was observed across the shipping container. Plastic paint containers and corroded steel containers were present underlying and in the vicinity of the raised shipping container. A corroded steel drum was located adjacent to the eastern wall of the raised shipping container.



Remnants of a former brick stable, in the form of cemented brick walls, were located to the east of the shipping container. Stacked bricks and tiles were within the remnants of the former stable. A stockpile of tree cuttings and timber was present to the east of the former brick stable. A stockpile of tree branches, timber pallets and timber furniture panelling was located to the south of the derelict shed and mounted shipping container.

A number of paddocks were located across the site. The paddocks were fenced with a combination of timber, steel, and barbed wire fencing. Flaking paint was observed on the timber paddock fencing across the site. Grazing cattle and farm animals were present across the south-eastern and central portions of the site. A gully was present across the central to southern portion of the site. The gully extended from the west to east across the site. The northern portion of the site exhibited a fall to the east. The central to southern portion of the site exhibited a fall to the gully.

Photographs of the site obtained during the site inspection are included in **Appendix A**.

#### 2.3 Surrounding Landuse

The current landuse of adjacent properties or properties across adjacent roads is shown in **Figure 2** and summarised below.

- North Rural residential and pastoral land;
- East Riparian corridor and Nepean River, with rural residential properties further east;
- South Rural residential and pastoral land; and
- West River Road with rural residential land further west.

Rural residential, pastoral and agricultural properties were located adjacent to the northern, eastern and southern site boundaries, as well as across River Road to the west of the site. The properties adjacent to the northern, eastern, southern and western boundaries were not accessed during the assessment. Based on observations made from the site and from River Road, there were no significant potential offsite sources of contamination observed at the properties located to the north, east, south and west of the site.

### 2.4 Topography

A review of the regional topographic map (LPI 2000<sup>1</sup>) indicated that the elevation of the site ranges between 230 m to 150 m Australian Height Datum (AHD). The western portion of the site exhibits a gentle fall to the central portion of the site, with the elevation ranging between 230 m to 200 m AHD. The eastern portion of the site exhibits a steeper fall to the east, towards the Nepean River, with the elevation ranging between 200 m to 150 m AHD. The northern portion of the site exhibits a fall to the north towards Myrtle Creek, with the elevation ranging between 200 m and 160 m AHD. The gully is identifiable in the central to southern portion of the site, with elevations ranging between 200 m and 170 m AHD. The topography of the site detailed in LPI 2000 appears to be consistent with observations made during the site inspection.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Picton 9029-45 (3<sup>rd</sup> Edition) Topogrphic and Orthophoto Map, NSW Land and Property Information Centre, 2000 (LPI 2000.



#### 2.5 Hydrology

Two ponds were observed across the site during the assessment. One pond was located in the western portion of the site and occupied an area of approximately 7000 m<sup>2</sup>. Evidence of former pumping and irrigation infrastructure was present on the southern edge of pond.

A second pond was located in the south-eastern portion of the site and occupied an area of approximately 500 m<sup>2</sup>. Pumping and irrigation infrastructure was present on the northern edge of the pond. The pumping and irrigation infrastructure was not in use at the time of the inspection.

The nearest surface water receptor to the site is the Nepean River, located approximately 160 m east of the site. The Nepean River flows into the Hawkesbury River, located approximately 68 km north of the site.

The majority of the site is unsealed. Rainfall is expected to infiltrate the sandy clay surface soils present across the site. Rainfall runoff generated during heavy or prolonged rain periods is expected to follow the topography of the land, generally directed towards the gully in the central to southern portion of the site, and towards the Nepean River to the east of the site.

#### 2.6 Geology

A review of the regional geological map (DoM 1966<sup>2</sup>) indicates that the site is located overlying the Triassic Age Hawkesbury Sandstone formation. The Hawkesbury Sandstone comprises sandstone, quartz with some shale.

A review of the regional soil landscape series sheet (SCS 1990<sup>3</sup>) indicates that three distinct soil formations are present across the site. Colluvial soils identified as the Hawkesbury Soil Landscape Grouping are located in the vicinity of the Nepean River and Myrtle Creek across the northern and eastern portions of the site, respectively. Soils that are part of the Hawkesbury Soil Landscape Grouping comprise of shallow (less than 50 cm), discontinuous, Lithosols/Siliceous Sands associated with the rock outcrops. Earthy Sands, Yellow Earths and locally deep sands are located on the inside of benches and along joints and fractures. Localised Yellow and Red Podzolic soils are associated with the shale lenses. Siliceous sands are located on narrow valley flats.

Residual soils identified as the Blacktown Landscape Group are located across the central to northern portion of the site. Soils that are part of the Blacktown Soil Landscape Group comprise shallow to moderately deep (less than 150 cm) Red and Brown Podzolic Soils on the crests, upper slopes and well drained areas. Deep (100 cm to 300 cm) Yellow Podzolic Soils and Solaths are located on the lower slopes, within drainage depressions and across localised areas of poor drainage.

Residual soils identified as the Lucas Heights Soil Landscape Group are located across the central to southern portion of the site. The soils within the Lucas Heights Soil Landscape Group comprise hard setting Yellow Podzolic Soils and Yellow Solaths on the ridges and plateau surfaces. Lateritic Podzolic Soils are located on the crests and Yellow Earths are

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Wollongong 1:250 000 Geological Series Sheet S1-56-9 2rd Edition, NSW Department of Mines, 1966 (DoM 1966).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Wollongong-Port Hacking Soil Landscape Series Sheet 9029-9129, Soil Conservation Service of NSW, 1990 (SCS 1990.



located on the shoulders of plateaus and ridges. Earthy Sands are located across the valley flats.

This description is consistent with the natural soils encountered at the site during the current assessment.

#### 2.7 Acid Sulfate Soils

A review of the NSW National Resource Atlas Database (NSW 2010<sup>4</sup>) indicated that there was no information available for the risk of acid sulfate soils underlying the site and the immediate surrounds. Given the presence of clay soils at the site, with sandstone underlying, the risk of acid sulfate soils underlying the site and within the immediate surrounds is considered to be low.

#### 2.8 Hydrogeology

Registered groundwater bore information obtained from the NSW National Resource Atlas Database (NSW 2010) is included in **Appendix B** and summarised below.

Based on information from NSW 2010 there are 18 registered bores within 1.5 km of the site. The closest registered groundwater bore (GW042788) is located within the central portion of the site. No evidence of the groundwater bore GW042788 was observed during the site inspection. The site occupants had no knowledge of the presence of a groundwater bore on the site. The next nearest registered groundwater bore (GW110436) is located approximately 410 m to the south-west of the western site boundary.

A review of the available groundwater bore information indicated the following:

- Groundwater in bore GW042788 was encountered within layers of sandstone bedrock at depths ranging between 105 m to 135.2 m below ground surface (bgs). The groundwater bore is authorised for domestic, irrigation and stock watering purposes. The yield of the groundwater extracted from the bore ranged between 0.25 and 1.52 (no units specified), increasing with the depth of the encountered groundwater. The salinity of the groundwater was not reported;
- Groundwater in bore GW110436 was encountered within the sandstone bedrock at depths between 90 m and 91 m bgs. The groundwater is authorised for monitoring purposes. The yield of the groundwater extracted from the bore was reported as 0.1 (no units specified). The salinity of the groundwater was reported as 822.00 (no units specified).
- The registered groundwater bores located within a 1.5 km radius of the site are used for a combination of testing, domestic, irrigation, stock, farming and monitoring purposes;
- Unconsolidated soils comprising layers of topsoil, clay and gravel were encountered overlying and between the bedding planes of the shale and sandstone bedrock at depths ranging between 0 m and 3.2 m bgs. Layers of sandstone, shale, siltstone and mudstone bedrock were encountered at depths ranging from 0 m and 186 m bgs.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> *NSW National Resource Atlas, <u>http://nratias.nsw.gov.au/wmc/custom/homepage/index.html</u>, NSW Government, accessed 26 July 2010 (NSW 2010)* 



### 3 Site History

#### 3.1 Aerial Photographs

Aerial photographs from 1969, 1979, 1984, 1994, and 2005 were obtained from the NSW Department of Lands. Copies of the aerial photographs are included in **Appendix C**.

Relevant information from the aerial photograph review is summarised below.

- **1969:** The site appeared to be used for rural residential purposes. A large proportion of the site (greater than 50%) was cleared. Tree stand vegetation was present in the eastern, central and southern portions of the site, as well as along the northern boundary of the site. Individual trees were sporadically distributed across the central to northern and south-western portions of the site. A number of buildings/structures were located in the western to north-western portions of the site, adjacent to the western site boundary. Two gullies were located across the central and southern portions of the site. Myrtle Creek and the Nepean River were located to the north and east of the site, respectively. River Road was present to the north-west of the site. Rural residential properties were located to the north, north-west, west and east of the site. Forest vegetation was located to the southwest, north-east and south-east of the site. Properties across the greater Tahmoor area were either uncleared forest or used for rural residential purposes.
- **1979:** The south-eastern, central, southern and western portions of the site had been cleared. Fewer structures were evident across the north-western portion of the site. There had been an increase in development in the western portion of the site, with additional tracks and structures present. Access tracks and fencing were present in the western, central, southern and south-eastern portions of the site. The vacant residential dwelling and garage appeared to be located in the south-eastern portion of the site. Two ponds were located across the western and eastern portions of the site, respectively, consistent with their current locations. Two additional ponds were located in the northern portion of the site. There was an increase in infrastructure development to the south-west and north-east of the site. There was an increase in development of properties for agricultural purposes to the west and north-west of the site.
- **1984:** Additional buildings/structures were present across the western portion of the site. The 'Jay-R-Stud' stable was present in the western portion of the site. Buildings were present in the current location of the main residential dwelling, storage shed, garage and 'The Cottage' stable in the western portion of the site. The driveway and round-a-bout to the vacant residence was present in the south-eastern portion of the site. The circular arrangement of small trees was evident in the south-eastern portion of the site. There was an increase in the number of tracks, defined paddocks and fencing across the southern, south-western, northern and north-eastern portions of the site. The northern-most pond was not evident. An additional pond was located in the north-western portion portion of the site. The properties adjacent to and in the vicinity of the site appeared to be consistent with the previous aerial photograph.
- **1994:** The two ponds located in the northern portion of the site appeared to be dry. The occupied residential dwelling and adjacent structures were present in the northern portion of the site. An additional stable was located in the central to western portion of the site. A number of tracks across the site appeared to have



been paved. The buildings located in the western portion of the site had been redeveloped. The layout of the buildings in the western portion of the site appeared to be consistent with the layout of the buildings during the site inspection. Sealed pavement appeared to be present in the vicinity of the buildings in the western portion of the site. There was an increase in agricultural development to the south-west of the site. Clearing of vegetation had occurred on the property to the south-east of the site.

• **2005:** The derelict shed and raised shipping container were present in the southern portion of the site. The remainder of the site remained unchanged and appeared to be consistent with observations made during the site inspection. The buildings and structures across the property to the south-west of the site were removed with the regrowth of vegetation evident.

#### 3.2 DECCW Records

A search of the DECCW's public register under the *Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997* was undertaken (**Appendix D**). The search identified that, for the site, there were:

- No prevention, clean-up or prohibition notices;
- No transfer, variation, suspension, surrender or revocation of an environment protection licence.

A search was also undertaken through the DECCW's public contaminated land register (**Appendix D**). The search identified that there have been no notices issued under the *Contaminated Land Management Act 1997* for the site.

#### 3.3 Title Details

A historic title search was conducted for the site. The title search was extended back until 1919. Results are included in **Appendix E** and summarised below.

#### Lot A in DP 369710

In March 1919, the property was acquired from a Crown Grant by Alexander Edward Knauer of Myrtle Creek, Picton. In October 1936, the property was acquired by Frederick Knauer of Tahmoor, a farmer. In January 1940, the property was purchased by James Stone a labourer from Picton, and Matilda Grace Stone, his wife. In May 1950, the property was acquired by Caughlan Properties Pty Ltd. In September 1972, the property was purchased by Joan Alice Heighington of Camden, a married woman. In July 1973, the property was acquired by Saligna Pty Ltd. In November 1980, the property was purchased by Joam Investments Pty Ltd. In April 2004, the property was acquired by Tessonian Pty Ltd.

#### Lot B in DP 369710

In March 1919, the property was acquired from a Crown Grant by Alexander Edward Knauer of Myrtle Creek, Picton. In October 1936, the property was acquired by Frederick Knauer of Tahmoor, a farmer. In January 1940, the property was purchased by James Stone a labourer from Picton, and Matilda Grace Stone, his wife. In October 1950, the property was acquired by Eric Gordon Glencross Grant, a clerk from Tahmoor, and his wife Ena Eunice Grant. In September 1960, the property was purchased by Robert Glenroy Dunk, a motor mechanic from Camden, and Jennifer May Dunk, his wife. In



November 1972, the property was acquired by John Ross Cribb, a company director from Cronulla. In November 2004, the property was purchased by Tessonian Pty Ltd.

#### Lot 85 DP 751270

In October 1966, the property was acquired from a crown grant by the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney. A mortgage was placed for the property by Robert Glenroy Dunk and his wife Jennifer May Dunk. In June 1970, the property was purchased by Robert Glenroy Dunk, a coal miner from Tahmoor, and his wife Jennifer May Dunk. In February 1973, the property was acquired by John.Ross Cribb of Cronulla, a company director. In November 2004, the property was purchased by Tessonian Pty Ltd.

#### Lot 86 in DP 751270

In August 1967, the property was acquired from a crown grant by James Stone of Rosenfels, Tahmoor. In May 1970, the property was acquired by Caughlan Properties Pty Ltd. In September 1972, the property was purchased by Joan Alice Heighington of Camden, a married woman. In July 1973, the property was acquired by Saligna Pty Ltd. In November 1980, the property was purchased by Joam Investments Pty Ltd. In April 2004, the property was acquired by Tessonian Pty Ltd.

#### 3.4 Council Records

The planning certificates for the site (Lots A and B in DP 550593, and Lots 85 and 86 in DP 751270) were obtained from Wollondilly Shire Council and are included in **Appendix E**. Relevant information is summarised below.

#### Lot A in DP 550593

- The land is zoned as Zone No 1 (a2) (Rural A2 Zone) under the Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan (LEP) 1991.
- The land is zoned as Zone RU2 Rural Landscape under the Draft Wollondilly Local Environment Plan (LEP) 2009;

#### Lot B in DP 550593

- The land is zoned as Zone No 9(d) (Open Space Reservation Zone) under the Wollondilly Local Environment Plan (LEP) 1991;
- The land is zoned as Zone RU2 Rural Landscape under the Draft Wollondilly Local Environment Plan (LEP) 2009;

#### Lot 85 in DP751270

- The land is zoned as Zone No 9(d) (Open Space Reservation Zone) under the Wollondilly Local Environment Plan (LEP) 1991;
- The land is zoned as Zone RU2 Rural Landscape under the Draft Wollondilly Local Environment Plan (LEP) 2009;

#### Lot 86 in DP751270

- The land is zoned as Zone No 1 (a2) (Rural A2 Zone) under the Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan (LEP) 1991.
- The land is zoned as Zone RU2 Rural Landscape under the Draft Wollondilly Local Environment Plan (LEP) 2009;



#### The Entire Site

- The site not known to include or comprise critical habitat under the Wollondilly LEP 1991;
- The site is not within a conservation area under the Wollondilly LEP 1991;
- The site does not contain an item of environmental heritage under the Wollondilly LEP 1991;
- The site does not include or comprise critical habitat under the Draft Wollondilly LEP 2009;
- The site is not located within a proposed Heritage Conservation Area as provided by clause 5.10 and Schedule 5 of Draft Wollondilly LEP 2009;
- The site does not contain an item of environmental heritage as provided by clause 5.10 and Schedule 5 of Draft Wollondilly LEP 2009;
- The site is not affected by the operation of Section 38 or 39 of the *Coastal Protection Act* 1979, but only to the extent that the council has been notified by the Department of Services, Technology and Administration;
- The site is within a proclaimed Mine Subsidence District under the Mine Subsidence Compensation Act 1961. The approval of the Mine Subsidence Board is required for all subdivision and building, except for certain minor structures.
- The site is not affected by road widening or road re-alignment under Division 2 of Part 3 of the Roads Act 1993; any environmental planning instrument; or any resolution of the Council;
- The council has adopted, by resolution dated 9 August 1999, a policy concerning contaminated land. That policy applied to the site will restrict development of the land if the circumstances set out in the policy prevail;
- Development on the site or part of the site for the purposes of dwelling houses, dual occupancies, multi dwelling housing or residential flat units (not including development for the purposes of group homes or seniors housing) is not subject to flood related development controls;
- The development of the site or part of the site for any other purpose is not subject to flood related development controls;
- Wollondilly LEP 1991 does provide for the acquisition Lot 85 in DP 751270 the site by a public authority, as referred to in section 27 of the Act;
- Wollondilly LEP 1991 does not provide for the acquisition the remainder of the site by a public authority, as referred to in section 27 of the Act;
- Draft Wollondilly LEP 2009 does not provide for the acquisition of the site by a public authority, as referred to in section 27 of the Act;
- The site is not biodiversity certified land (within the meaning of Part 7AA of the Threatened Species Conservation Act 1995);
- Council has not been notified by the Director General of the DECCW of any biobanking agreement approved under the Threatened Species Conservation Act 1995 for the site;
- The site is partially bush fire prone land as shown in Councils records;



- Council has not been notified of any property vegetation plan under the *Native Vegetation Act 2003*, or statement to that effect, which applies to the site;
- Council has not been notified of any order that has been made under the *Trees* (*Disputes between Neighbours*) *Act 2006* to carry out work in relation to a tree on . the site;
- The site is not significantly contaminated land within the meaning of the *Contaminated Land Management Act 1997* (CLMA 1997);
- The site is not subject to a management order within the meaning of the CLMA 1997;
- The site is not subject to an approved voluntary management proposal within the meaning of the CLMA 1997;
- The site is not subject to an ongoing maintenance order within the meaning of the CLMA 1997; and
- The site is not subject to a site audit statement within the meaning of the CLMA 1997.

#### 3.5 Australian and NSW Heritage Register

A search of the Australian Heritage Trust database and the NSW Heritage Inventory did not reveal any Heritage listed items at the site (**Appendix F**).

#### 3.6 Workcover Dangerous Goods Licenses

Due to timeframe of the assessment, a WorkCover search of the Stored Chemical Information Database (SCID) and the microfiche records held by WorkCover was not completed. The site occupant had no knowledge of the current or historical presence any above ground or underground storage tanks at the site. However, it is considered that the comprehensive nature of the remaining historical research has identified all significant potential sources of contamination, and the absence of Workcover Dangerous Goods License records does not affect the conclusions of the assessment.

#### 3.7 Previous Investigations

There are no known previous environmental investigations which have been conducted at the site.

#### 3.8 Development Application / Building Application (DA/BA) records

Due to the timeframe of the assessment, DA/BA records could not be obtained in time from Wollondilly Shire Council for inclusion in this report. However, it is considered that the comprehensive nature of the remaining historical research has identified all significant potential sources of contamination, and the absence of DA/BA records does not affect the conclusions of the assessment.

#### 3.9 Site History Summary

A summary of the site history is provided in **Table 3.1**.

#### Table 3.1 Summary Site History

Period	Activity	Source
1919	The western portion of the site (Lot A and B in DP 369710) was acquired from a Crown Grant by Alexander Edward	Title Documentation
	Knauer.	



Period	Activity	Source
1966	Lot 85 DP 751270 was acquired from a Crown Grant by Commercial Banking Company of Sydney. A mortgage was paced for the property by Robert Glenroy Dunk and his wife Jennifer May Dunk.	Title Documentation
1967	Lot 86 in DP 751270 was acquired from a crown grant by James Stone.	Title Documentation
1969	The site appeared to be used for rural residential purposes. A number of buildings/structures were located in the western to north-western portions of the site, adjacent to the western site boundary.	Aerial Photograph (1969)
1969 to 1979	The site was owned by a number of private residents and various real estate, investment firms and private companies.	Title Documentation
1979	There had been an increase in development in the western portion of the site, with additional tracks and structures present. The vacant residential dwelling and garage appeared to be located in the south-eastern portion of the site.	Aerial Photograph (1979)
1979 to 1984	The site was owned by a number of private residents and various real estate, investment firms and private companies.	Title Documentation
1984	Additional buildings/structures were present across the western portion of the site. The driveway and round-a-bout to the vacant residence was present in the south-eastern portion of the site. There was an increase in the number of tracks, defined paddocks and fencing across the southern, south-western, northern and north-eastern portions of the site.	Aerial Photograph (1984)
1984 to 1994	The site was owned by a number of private residents and various real estate, investment firms and private companies.	Title Documentation
1994	The occupied residential dwelling and adjacent structures were present in the northern portion of the site. The buildings located in the western portion of the site had been redeveloped. The layout of the buildings in the western portion of the site appeared to be consistent with the layout of the buildings during the site inspection.	Aerial Photograph (1994)
1994 to 2005	The site was owned by a number of private residents and various real estate, investment firms and private companies.	Title Documentation
2005	The derelict shed and mounted shipping container were present in the southern portion of the site. The remainder of the site remained unchanged and appeared to be consistent with observations made during the site inspection.	Aerial Photograph (2005)
2005 to present	The site was owned by Tessonian Pty Ltd.	Title Documentation

#### 3.10 Integrity Assessment

The information obtained from the historical sources reviewed has been found to be in general agreement. It is therefore considered that the information provided in this historical assessment has an acceptable level of accuracy.

.



### 4 Conceptual Site Model (CSM)

#### 4.1 Potential Areas of Environmental Concern

Based on the history review and field observations from the site, areas of environmental concern have been identified and are presented in **Table 4.1**.

#### Table 4.1 Potential Areas of Environmental Concern and Associated Contaminants of Potential Concern

Area of Environme	ntal Concern (AEC)
Former and current	buildings, and materials stored in the western portion of the site.
The vacant residenti portion of the site.	al dwelling, associated buildings and structures and materials stored in the south-easterr
The secondary reside portion of the site.	ential dwelling, associated buildings and structures and materials stored in the northern
Former structures in	the north-western portion of the site.
Derelict shed and ra	ised shipping container in the southern portion of the site
Former pumping infr	astructure in the vicinity of the ponds.
Fill material at the si	te
Historical use of the	site for rural purposes

#### 4.2 Contaminants of Potential Concern (CoPCs)

Based on the history review and field observations from the site, the contaminants of potential concern have been identified and are presented in **Table 4.2**.

#### Table 4.2 Potential Areas of Environmental Concern and Associated Contaminants of Potential Concern

Area of Environmental Concern (AEC)	Contaminants of Potential Concern (COPC)
Former and current buildings, and materials stored in the western portion of the site.	Heavy metals, TPH, BTEX/VOCs, PAHs/SVOCs, OCPs, PCBs, asbestos
The vacant residential dwelling, associated buildings and structures and materials stored in the south-eastern portion of the site.	Heavy metals, TPH, BTEX/VOCs, PAHs/SVOCs, OCPs, PCBs, asbestos
The secondary residential dwelling, associated buildings and structures and materials stored in the northern portion of the site.	Heavy metals, TPH, BTEX/VOCs, PAHs/SVOCs, OCPs, PCBs, asbestos
Former structures in the north-western portion of the site.	Heavy metals, TPH, BTEX, PAHs, asbestos
Derelict shed and raised shipping container in the southern portion of the site	Heavy metals, TPH, BTEX, PAHs
Former pumping infrastructure in the vicinity of the ponds.	Heavy metals, TPH, BTEX, PAHs
Fill material at the site	Heavy metals, TPH, BTEX, PAHs, OCPs, PCBs, asbestos
Historical use of the site for rural purposes	Heavy metals, OCPs

#### 4.3 Potentially Contaminated Media

Potentially contaminated media present at the site include:

- fill material;
- surface soils;
- natural soils;
- surface water; and
- groundwater

Information obtained from the site history review (including the development of buildings and structures across the site) and observations made during the site inspection identified the potential for fill material at the site. Whilst it may be inferred that excavated materials were reused onsite, the actual source of the fill material is unknown. Based on this, fill material at the site has been identified as a potentially contaminated medium.

In addition, surface soils (whether fill material or natural) are considered to be a potentially contaminated medium based on the operation of the site for rural/pastoral



uses for over 40 years. The demolition of buildings and structures, the potential use of pesticides, the operation of infrastructure, as well leaks and spills associated with the storage of plant, machinery, petroleum products and other potentially hazardous substances may have resulted in the contamination of surface soils across the site.

Based on the potential leachability of contaminants within fill material and other surface soils, and the historical uses of the site, vertical migration through the fill into the underlying natural soils may occur.

Surface water at the site is considered to have a low potential for contamination based on the surface water quality observed at the site during the inspection. The potential for the surface water to be contaminated is dependent upon the potential mobility of any soil contamination identified at the site.

Groundwater at the site is considered not to be a potentially contaminated medium based on the low to moderate permeability of the surface soils (clayey sands) (**Section 2.6**) and the anticipated depth to groundwater (greater than 50 m) (**Section 2.7**). However, the potential for groundwater to be contaminated is dependent upon the potential mobility of any soil contamination identified at the site.

#### 4.4 Potential for Migration, Exposure Pathways and Receptors

- Contaminants generally migrate from site via a combination of windblown dusts, rainwater infiltration, groundwater migration and surface water runoff. The potential for contaminants to migrate is a combination of:
  - The nature of the contaminants (solid/liquid and mobility characteristics);
  - The extent of the contaminants (isolated or widespread);
  - The location of the contaminants (surface soils or at depth); and
  - The site topography, geology, hydrology and hydrogeology.

Once a contaminant has migrated away from it source it has the potential to expose receptors (both human and environmental), exposure pathways may include inhalation, dermal contact and ingestion. Receptors can include people, including site workers or the general public, surface water bodies, groundwater and the populations that inhabit these formations.

The potential contaminants of concern identified as part of the site history review and site inspection are generally in both solid form (eg. asbestos) and liquid form (e.g. TPH).

Dense grass cover is present across the vast majority of the site which significantly reduces the potential for windblown contaminants to migrate from the site.

The sources of contaminants of potential concern (CoPC) identified as part of the site history review and the site inspection are associated with the main areas of environmental concern, and are distributed in the western, south-eastern, northern, north-westerm and southern portions of the site.

The primary receptors of any identified contamination at the site may include the current/future site occupants and the Nepean River, located approximately 160 m east of the site.

Given the low to moderate permeability of the natural clayey sand soils and the anticipated depth to groundwater, there is a low potential for vertical contaminant migration from soils to groundwater via infiltration.



### 5 Sampling and Analysis Plan

#### 5.1 Data Quality Objectives

Data quality objectives (DQOs) were developed for the assessment, as discussed in the following sections.

#### 5.1.1 State the Problem

It is understood that the preliminary contamination assessment was required to identify the potential for contamination at the site, and any possible constraints on future site development for residential land use.

The site had previously been used for rural residential purposes. The contamination status of the site is unknown.

The assessment has been undertaken by suitably qualified and experienced JBS personnel. The following personnel were involved in the assessment:

- Charlie Furr principal scientist, project director who provided senior support and a peer review;
- Cathy Roberts senior environmental scientist who provided a peer review; and
- Michael Parker environmental scientist, project manager who managed the project, prepared the assessment report and completed the sampling component of the assessment.

A CSM was developed for the current assessment and is detailed in Section 4.

#### 5.1.2 Identify the Decision

Based on the decision making process for assessing urban redevelopment sites detailed in DEC (2006), the following decisions must be made:

- Has the preliminary contamination report been undertaken in accordance with the *Guidelines for Consultants Reporting on Contaminated Sites* (EPA 1997)?
- Are there any aesthetic issues at the site?
- Are there any concentrations of contaminants with the soil which exceed the provisional phytotoxicity based investigation levels?
- Are there any unacceptable risks to likely future onsite receptors from soil?
- Are there any issues relating to the local areas background soil concentrations that exceed appropriate soil criteria?
- Are there any impacts of chemical mixtures?
- Is there any evidence of, or potential for, migration of contaminants from the site?
- Is a site management strategy required?
- Is there any evidence of, or the potential for, the migration of contamination from the site?

Given the preliminary nature of the assessment and the limited soil sampling undertaken at the site, the decision whether a site management strategy is required and an assessment of site suitability have not been made. The objective of the assessment was



to identify the potential for contamination at the site, and any possible constraints on future site development for rural residential land use.

#### 5.1.3 Identify Inputs to the Decision

Inputs identified to provide sufficient data to make the decisions nominated above include:

- Site condition information and site historical information;
- Installation of hand augered boreholes to allow soil sampling and interpretation of the site geology; and
- Analysis and reporting of the concentrations of the CoPC within the soil samples collected to assess against respective assessment criteria.

#### 5.1.4 Define the Study Boundaries

The site is described as Lot A in DP 369710, Lot B in DP 369710, Lot 85 DP 751270 and Lot 86 in DP 751270 as shown in **Figure 2**. The study targeted the potential contamination issues detailed in **Section 4.1**.

The vertical extent of the assessment was extended to 1.0 m below ground surface or prior refusal.

The current assessment is restricted to the condition of the site at the time of the field activities undertaken in July 2010.

Due to the nature of potential contaminants identified, seasonality was not assessed as part of this assessment.

#### 5.1.5 Develop a Decision Rule

Soil analytical data was assessed against DECCW endorsed criteria including:

- Contaminated Sites: Guidelines for the NSW Site Auditor Scheme, 2nd Edition, NSW DEC, 2006 – Health based Investigation Levels for: Residential with gardens and accessible soil, Column 1 (DEC 2006);
- Contaminated Sites: Guidelines for the NSW Site Auditor Scheme, 2nd Edition, NSW DEC, 2006 – Provisional Phytotoxicity-based Investigation Levels, Column 5 (DEC 2006);
- Contaminated Sites: Guidelines for Assessing Service Station Sites, NSW EPA, 1994 (EPA 1994);
- National Environment Protection (Assessment of Site Contamination) Measure, National Environment Protection Council, 1999 (NEPC 1999);
- Contaminated Sites: Sampling Design Guidelines, September 1995 (EPA 1995);
- Contaminated Sites: Guidelines for Consultants Reporting on Contaminated Sites, November 1997 (EPA 1997); and
- Contaminated Sites: Guidelines for the Assessment and Management of Groundwater Contamination, NSW DEC 2007 (DEC 2007).

The decision rules adopted to answer the decisions identified in **Section 5.1.2** are summarised in **Table 5.1**.



#### **Table 5.1 Summary of Decision Rules**

Decision Required to be Made	Decision Rule
1. Are there any unacceptable risks to future onsite receptors from soils?	Soil analytical data were compared against DECCW endorsed criteria. Statistical analyses of the data in accordance with relevant guidance documents was undertaken, if appropriate, to facilitate the decision. The following statistical criteria were adopted with respect to soils: <u>Either</u> : the reported concentrations are all below the site criteria; <u>Or</u> : the average site concentration for each analyte must be below the adopted site criterion; no single analyte concentration exceeds 250% of the adopted site criterion; and the standard deviation of the results must be less than 50% of the site criterion. <u>And</u> : the 95% upper confidence limit (UCL) of the average concentration for each analyte must be below the adopted site criterion <sup>4</sup> . If the statistical criteria stated above are satisfied, the answer to the decision is No. If the statistical criteria are not satisfied, the answer to the decision is Yes.
2. Are there any issues relating to the local area background soil concentrations that exceed appropriate soil criteria?	If the 95% UCL of surface soils exceeds published background concentrations (NEPC 1999), the answer to the decision is Yes. Otherwise, the answer to the decision is No.
3. Are there any chemical mixtures?	Are there more than one group of contaminants present which increase the risk of harm? If there is, the answer to the decision is Yes. Otherwise, the answer to the decision is No.
4. Are there any aesthetic issues?	If there are any aesthetic issues, the answer to the decision is Yes. Otherwise, the answer to the decision is No.
5. Is there any evidence of, or potential for, migration of contaminants from the site?	Are contaminants present at concentrations exceeding published background concentrations (NEPC 1999)? If yes, the answer to the decision is Yes. Otherwise, the answer to the decision is No.
6. Is a site management strategy required?	Was the answer to any of the above decisions Yes? If yes, a site management strategy is required. If no, a site management strategy is not required.
<ol> <li>Is there any evididence of , or the potential for, offsite migration of contamination?</li> </ol>	If there is, the answer to the decision is Yes. Otherwise, the answer to the decision is No.

#### 5.1.6 Specify Limits of Decision Error

The purpose of this step was to establish the decision maker's tolerable limits on decision errors, which are used to establish performance goals for limiting uncertainty in the data. Data generated during this project must be appropriate to allow decisions to be made with confidence.

Specific limits for this project have been adopted in accordance with the appropriate guidance from the NSW DECCW, NEPC (1999), DEC (2007), appropriate indicators of data quality (DQIs used to assess quality assurance / quality control, see **Section 5.2**) and standard JBS Environmental procedures for field sampling and handling

In addition, AS4482.1-2005 (AS  $2005^5$ ) nominates two types of errors that require assessment:

- A. Deciding that the site is acceptable when it actually is not; and
- B. Deciding that the site is unacceptable when actually it is.

It is recommended in AS4482.1 that limits of 5% probability for type A errors and 20% probability for type B errors is set during environmental assessments. These recommendations have been adopted for this assessment.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Sampling Design Guidelines. NSW EPA. September 1995. (EPA 1995)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Guide to the sampling and investigation of potentially contaminated soil – Non-volatile and semi-volatile compounds, Australian Standards Ref: AS4482.1-2005 (AS 2005).



The following relationship is provided to determine if sufficient soil samples have been collected during the assessment to meet the above limits of decision error:

$$n = 6.2 \sigma^2 / (Cs - \mu)^2$$

where:

n = number of samples needed

 $\sigma$  = estimated standard deviation of contaminant concentration in sampling area

Cs = acceptable limit (mg/kg)

 $\mu$  = estimated average concentration in sampling area (mg/kg)

The limits on decision errors for soil were assessed with reference to QA/QC results compared against the DQIs as well as confirming, retrospectively, that an appropriate number of soil samples (when 'n'<1), were collected, assessed using the above formula.

#### 5.1.7 Optimise the Design for Obtaining Data

Various strategies for developing a statistically based sampling plan are identified in EPA (1995), including judgemental, random, systematic and stratified sampling patterns.

Based on the preliminary nature of the assessment, the soil sampling works were undertaken to indicate the potential for contamination rather than for an assessment of site suitability. As a result, the number of soil sampling points was not in accordance with EPA (1995).

Based on the site inspection and known history of the site, stratified systematic sampling was considered the most appropriate for the current assessment. Samples were collected from 15 locations (as shown in **Table 5.3**) on an approximate 267 m grid. The sampling strategy results in a 95% confidence of detecting a circular hotspot with a diameter of 158 m. Given the preliminary nature of this assessment, this sampling density is considered adequate for the purposes of the assessment.

### 5.2 Data Quality Indicators

Data Quality Indicators (DQIs) were developed to provide assessment of the quality of data reported to meet the site-specific objectives of Environmental Site Assessments. Precision, accuracy, representativeness, comparability, completeness and sensitivity (PARCCS parameters) are all indicators of data quality.

Specific limits for this project are in accordance with the appropriate guidance from the NSW DECCW, NEPC (1999), ANZECC/ARMCANZ (2000), DEC (2007), appropriate indicators of data quality (DQIs used to assess quality assurance / quality control) and standard JBS Environmental procedures for field sampling and handling.

The pre-determined Data Quality Indicators (DQIs) established for the project are discussed below in relation to the PARCCS parameters, and are shown in **Table 5.2** 

- **Precision** measures the reproducibility of measurements under a given set of conditions. The precision of the laboratory data and sampling techniques is assessed by calculating the Relative Percent Difference (RPD) of duplicate samples;
- **Accuracy** measures the bias in a measurement system. The accuracy of the laboratory data that are generated during this study is a measure of the closeness of the analytical results obtained by a method to the 'true' value. Accuracy is



assessed by reference to the analytical results of laboratory control samples, laboratory spikes and analyses against reference standards;

- **Representativeness** –expresses the degree which sample data accurately and precisely represent a characteristic of a population or an environmental condition. Representativeness is achieved by collecting samples on a representative basis across the site, and by using an adequate number of sample locations to characterise the site to the required accuracy;
- **Comparability** expresses the confidence with which one data set can be compared with another. This is achieved through maintaining a level of consistency in techniques used to collect samples; ensuring analysing laboratories use consistent analysis techniques and reporting methods;
- **Completeness** is defined as the percentage of measurements made which are judged to be valid measurements. The completeness goal is set at there being sufficient valid data generated during the study; and
- **Sensitivity** expresses the appropriateness of the chosen laboratory methods, including the limits of reporting, in producing reliable data in relation to the adopted site assessment criteria.

Data Quality Indicator	Frequency	Data Quality Criteria	
Precision			
Blind duplicates (intra laboratory)	1/10 samples analysed	<50% RPD <sup>1</sup>	
Blind duplicates (inter laboratory)	1/20 samples analysed	<50% RPD <sup>1</sup>	
Laboratory duplicates	1/20 samples analysed	<50% RPD <sup>1</sup>	
Accuracy			
Surrogate spikes	All organic analyses	60-140%	
Laboratory control samples 1/20 soil sampl analysed		60-140%	
Matrix spikes	1/20 soil samples analysed	60-140%	
Representativeness			
Sampling appropriate for media and analytes	All Samples	-	
Samples extracted and analysed within holding times.	All Samples	Organics (14 days), inorganics (6 months)	
Laboratory blanks	1 per lab batch	<lor< td=""></lor<>	
Trip spikes	1 per sampling event	60-140% recovery	
Trip blanks	1 per sampling event	<lor< td=""></lor<>	
Rinsate blanks	1 per sampling event	<lor< td=""></lor<>	
Comparability	······································		
Standard operating procedures for sample collection & handling	All Samples	All samples	
Standard analytical methods used for all analyses	All Samples	All samples	
Consistent field conditions, sampling staff and laboratory analysis	All Samples	All samples	
Limits of reporting appropriate and consistent	All Samples	All samples	
Completeness		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Sample description and COCs completed and appropriate	All Samples	All samples	
Appropriate documentation	All Samples	All samples	
Satisfactory frequency and result for QC samples	All QA/QC samples	1.	
Data from critical samples is considered valid	*	Critical sample: valid	
Sensitivity		T	

Table 5.2 Summary of Quality Assurance / Quality Control Program



Data Quality Indicator	Frequency	Data Quality Criteria
Analytical methods and limits of recovery appropriate for media and adopted site assessment criteria	All Samples	LOR <site assessment criteria</site 

(1) If the RPD between duplicates is greater than the pre-determined data quality indicator, a judgment will be made as to whether the excess is critical in relation to the validation of the data set or unacceptable sampling error is occurring in the field.

#### 5.3 Soil Sampling Methodology

Soil samples across the site were collected from hand augered boreholes from the surface (0-0.1 m), 0.3-0.4 m, 0.4-0.6 m, and at every 0.5 m thereafter and/or where each distinct layer of fill material was noted until a maximum depth of 1.0 m or prior refusal. Soil samples were collected from the head of the hand auger while wearing a new pair of disposable nitrile gloves for each sample.

Soil samples were collected in general accordance with:

- NSW Environment Protection Authority (EPA) *Contaminated Sites: Guidelines for Assessing Service Station Sites (1994)*;
- NEPM (1999) Schedule B (2) *Guideline on Data Collection, Sample Design and Reporting;*
- Australian Standard AS4482.1-2005 Guide to the sampling and investigation of potentially contaminated soil Non-volatile and semi-volatile compounds; and
- Australian Standard AS4482.2-1999 Guide to the sampling and investigation of potentially contaminated soil Volatile compounds.

Collected soil samples were immediately transferred to sample containers of appropriate composition (glass jars sealed with Teflon-lined screw closures and plastic 'ziplock' bags for asbestos). Sample labels recorded the JBS job number; sample identification number; and date of sampling.

Sample containers were subsequently transferred to a chilled 'esky' for sample preservation prior to and during shipment to the testing laboratory. The sample containers were transported under standard JBS chain-of-custody protocols to Envirolab Services Pty Ltd, which is certified for the required analysis by National Association of Testing Authority (NATA). The following information was included on the chain-of-custody form:

- Sample identification;
- Signature of sampler;
- Place of collection;
- Date and time of collection;
- Type of sample;
- Number and type of container;
- Inclusive dates of possession; and
- Signature of receiver.

Not all soil samples collected were analysed. Samples were analysed in accordance with the analytical schedule (**Section 5.3**). All samples will remain at the primary laboratory for a period of two months from delivery, allowing for further sample analysis if required



following receipt of initial results, provided the required analytes remain within recommended holding times.

#### 5.4 Decontamination of Soil Sampling Equipment

The following procedure was used to clean non-disposable soil sampling equipment (hand auger) prior to the collection of each sample:

- Scrubbing with a plastic brush to remove gross contamination;
- Bucket wash with Decon 90 detergent and potable (tap) water mix;
- Bucket rinse with potable (tap) water; and
- Air drying.

#### 5.5 Field PID Screening of Soil Samples

Soil samples were screened on site during works using a calibrated photo-ionisation detector (PID) to assess the presence of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) including petroleum hydrocarbons. Samples obtained for PID screening were placed in a sealed plastic bag for a period of approximately 5 minutes to equilibrate prior to a PID being attached to the bag. Readings were then monitored for a period of approximately 30 seconds or until values stabilised and the stabilised/highest reading was recorded on the field borehole logs. Calibration records are included in **Appendix H**.

#### 5.6 Laboratory Analyses

JBS Environmental contracted Envirolab Services Pty Ltd (Envirolab) as the primary laboratory for the required analyses. The secondary laboratories contracted for the works were SGS Environmental Pty Ltd (SGS) (chemical analyses only) and Pickford and Rhyder Consulting Pty Ltd (asbestos only). All laboratories were NATA registered for the required analyses.

In addition, each laboratory was required to meet JBS Environmental's internal QA/QC requirements. Laboratory analysis of samples was conducted with reference to COPCs listed in **Table 5.3**.

Area of Environmental Concern (AEC)	Sampling Locations	No. of Analyses (excl. QA/QC)
Former and current buildings, and materials	BH01 to BH04	Heavy metals – 5
stored in the western portion of the site.		TPH - 5 BTEX - 5
		VOCs - 4
		PAHs - 5
		SVOCs - 4
	1	OCPs – 5
		PCBs - 5
		Asbestos - 4
		ASLP - 1 TCLP - 1
The vacant residential dwelling, associated	BH06 and BH07	Heavy metals – 2
buildings and structures and materials stored in		TPH - 2
the south-eastern portion of the site.		BTEX - 2
		VOCs - 2
		PAHs - 2
		SVOCs - 2
		OCPs - 2 PCBs - 2
		Asbestos - 2
		ASLP - 1
		TCLP ~ 1

#### Table 5.3 Analytical Schedule



Area of Environmental Concern (AEC)	Sampling Locations	No. of Analyses (excl. QA/QC)
The secondary residential dwelling, associated buildings and structures and materials stored in the northern portion of the site.	BH08	Heavy metals $-1$ TPH $-1$ BTEX $-1$ VOCs $-1$ PAHs $-1$ SVOCs $-1$ OCPs $-1$ PCBs $-1$ Asbestos $-1$ ASLP $-1$ TCLP $-1$
Former structures in the north-western portion of the site.	BH11	Heavy metals - 1 TPH - 1 BTEX - 1 PAHs - 1 OCPs - 1 PCBs - 1 Asbestos - 1
Derelict shed and mounted shipping container in the southern portion of the site	SS01	Heavy metals - 1 TPH - 1 BTEX - 1 PAHs - 1
Former pumping infrastructure in the vicinity of the ponds.	BH05	Heavy metals - 1 TPH - 1 BTEX - 1 PAHs - 1 OCPs - 1 PCBs - 1 Asbestos - 1
Fill material at the site	ВН09	Heavy metals - 2 TPH - 2 BTEX - 2 PAHs - 2 OCPs - 2 PCBs - 2 Asbestos - 2 VOCs - 1 SVOCs - 1
Historical use of the site for rural purposes	BH10, BH12 to BH15	Heavy metals - 5 TPH - 5 BTEX - 5 PAHs - 5 OCPs - 5 PCBs - 5 Asbestos - 5



### 6 Assessment Criteria

#### 6.1 Regulatory Guidelines

The assessment was undertaken with consideration to aspects of the following guidelines, as relevant:

- Contaminated Sites: Guidelines for Assessing Service Station Sites, NSW EPA, 1994 (EPA 1994).
- Contaminated Sites: Sampling Design Guidelines, NSW EPA, 1995 (EPA 1995)
- Contaminated Sites: Guidelines for Consultants Reporting on Contaminated Sites, NSW EPA, 1997 (EPA 1997).
- Contaminated Sites: Guidelines for the NSW Site Auditor Scheme, 2nd Edition, NSW DEC, 2006 (DEC 2006).
- Contaminated Sites: Guidelines on the Duty to Report Contamination under the Contaminated Land Management Act 1997, NSW DECC, 2009 (DECC 2009).
- National Environment Protection (Assessment of Site Contamination) Measure, National Environment Protection Council, 1999 (NEPC 1999).
- Australian and New Zealand Guidelines for the Assessment and Management of Contaminated Sites, Australian and New Zealand Environment and Conservation Council and the National Health and Medical Research Council, 1992 (ANZECC/NHMRC 1992).
- Australian and New Zealand Guidelines for Fresh and Marine Water Quality. Australian and New Zealand Environment and Conservation Council and Agriculture and Resource Management Council of Australia and New Zealand, Paper No 4, 2000 (ANZECC/ARMCANZ 2000).
- Australian Drinking Water Guidelines, National Health and Medical Research Council and Agriculture and Resource Management Council of Australia and New Zealand, 2004 (NHMRC/NRMMC 2004).
- Environmental Health Risk Assessment: Guidelines for assessing human health risks from environmental hazards, Department of Health and Ageing and EnHealth Council, Commonwealth of Australia, June 2002 (EnHealth 2002).
- Contaminated Sites: Guidelines for the Assessment and Management of Groundwater Contamination, NSW DECC, March 2007 (DECC 2007).



#### 6.2 Soil Criteria

The site is proposed to be used for residential purposes. Given the proposed land use of the site, and in accordance with the decision process for assessment of urban redevelopment sites (DEC 2006), concentrations of contaminants in the soil were compared against the provisional phytoxicity-based investigation levels (PILs), healthbased investigation levels for standard residential land use (HIL-A), and the threshold concentrations for sensitive land use as listed in Table 6.1.

	Limit of Reporting	Provisional Phytotoxicity-based investigation Levels (PILs) <sup>1</sup>		Threshold Concentrations for Sensitive Land Use <sup>3</sup>
METALS				
Arsenic	4.0	20	100	~
Cadmium	0.5	3	20	-
Chromium (VI)	1.0	400	100	-
Copper	1.0	100	1,000	-
Nickel	1.0	60	600	-
Lead	1.0	600	300	-
Zinc	1.0	200	7,000	-
Mercury (inorganic)	0.1	1	15	-
PETROLEUM HYDROCARBOI	NS			
C6 – C9 Fraction	25	-	-	65
C10 – C36 Fraction	250	-	-	1000
BTEX and VOLATILE ORGAN	IIC COMPOUNDS		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Benzene	0.5	-	••	1
Toluene	0.5	-	-	1.4
Ethylbenzene	1.0	-	<b>n</b>	3.1
Total Xylenes	3.0	-	-	14
POLYCYCLIC AROMATIC HY	DROCARBONS and	d SEMI VOLATILE ORGA	NIC COMPOUNDS	
Benzo(a)pyrene	0.05	-	1	_
Total PAHs	1.55		20	-
ORGANOCHLORINE PESTIC	IDES		1999 - 1999 -	· ·
Aldrin + Dieldrin	0.2	-	10	-
Chlordane	0.2		50	-
DDT + DDD + DDE	0.3	<del>.</del>	200	-
Heptachlor	0.1	-	10	
POLYCHLORINATED BIPHEN	YLS			
Total PCBs	0.8	-	10	
ASBESTOS		······		
Asbestos	0.1 (g/kg)	-	PRESENCE	-
		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	***************************************	

Table 6 1 Soil Criteria	(all units in mg/kg unless otherwise stated)	

<sup>1</sup> Column 5 (PILs), Provisional Phytoxicity-based Investigation Levels (DEC 2006) <sup>2</sup> Column 1 (HIL - A), Health-based Investigation Levels (DEC 2006) <sup>3</sup> Table 3 (EPA 1994)

The presence of any aesthetic issues (including soil staining and odours emanating from the site soils) which are a result of anthropogenic contamination will also be addressed.


# 7 Quality Assurance / Quality Control

# 7.1 Soil QA/QC Results

The QA/QC results for soil are summarised in **Table 7.1** and discussed in **Section 7.2** below. Detailed QA/QC results are included in **Appendix I**.

Table 7.1	- Soil	QA/QC	Results	Summary

2/18 samples analysed	0 - 128% RPD	Partial <sup>1</sup>
1/18 soil samples analysed	0 – 29% RPD	Yes
2/18 soil samples analysed	0 - 49% RPD	Yes
All organic analyses	0 – 140% recovery	Partial <sup>1</sup>
2/18 soll samples analysed	62 – 140% recovery	Partial <sup>1</sup>
2/18 soil samples analysed	28 - 122% recovery	Partial <sup>1</sup>
All samples	All sampling conducted in accordance with JBS atandard operating procedures	Yes
All samples	All samples were extracted and analysed between 2 and 8 days of sampling	Yes
1 per laboratory batch	<pre><lor< pre=""></lor<></pre>	Yes
1 per sample batch	79-99%	Yes
1 per sample batch	<lor< td=""><td>Yes</td></lor<>	Yes
1 per sample batch	<lor< td=""><td>Yes</td></lor<>	Yes
All samples	The sampling event was conducted by a single field staff member using the same standard operating procedures throughout works	Yes
All samples	Standard analytical methods used as listed in Table 6.1.	Yes
-	Sampling was conducted by a single JBS field staff member using standard operating procedures in the same conditions throughout the works. Laboratories remained consistent throughout the assessment.	Yes
All samples	Limits of reporting were consistent and appropriate.	Yes
-	All bore logs and COCs were completed appropriately.	Yes
-	All appropriate field documentation is included in the Appendices.	Yes
All QA/QC samples	The QC results are considered adequate for the purposes of the assessment.	Yes
	analysed   1/18 soil samples   analysed   2/18 soil samples   analysed   All organic analyses   2/18 soil samples   analysed   2/18 soil samples   analysed   2/18 soil samples   analysed   2/18 soil samples   analysed   All samples   All samples   All samples   1 per laboratory batch   1 per sample batch   1 per sample batch   1 per sample batch   1 per sample batch   All samples   All samples   All samples   All samples   -   -   -	analysed0 - 29% RPDanalysed0 - 49% RPD2/18 soil samples0 - 140% recovery2/18 soil samples62 - 140% recoveryanalysed28 - 122% recoveryanalysed28 - 122% recoveryanalysedAll sampling conducted in accordance with JBS atandard operating proceduresAll samplesAll samples were extracted and analysed between 2 and 8 days of samplingAll sampleCLOR1 per laboratory batch <lor< td="">1 per sample batch79-99%1 per sample batch<lor< td="">2 per sample batch<lor< td="">3 per sample batch<lor< td="">4 li samplesStandard analytical member using the same standard operating proceduresAll samplesStandard analytical member using the same standard operating proceduresAll samplesStandard analytical methods used as listed in Table 6.1Sampling was conducted by a single in the same conditions throughout the works. Laboratories remained consistent throughout the assessment.All samplesLimits of reporting were consistent and appropriatelyAll appropriate field documentation is included in the Appendices.All QA/QC samplesThe QC results are considered adequate for the purposes of the assessment.</lor<></lor<></lor<></lor<>



valid		samples is considered valid.	
Sensitivity			
Analytical methods and limits of recovery appropriate for media and adopted site assessment criteria	All Samples	All limits of reporting were less than the adopted site assessment criteria	Yes

<sup>1</sup> See discussion of DQI exceedances below.

#### 7.2 Discussion of QA/QC Results

#### Precision

Analysis of field intra-laboratory duplicates was conducted at a rate (11.1%) exceeding 1 in 10 samples analysed (10%). JBS collected and analysed a maximum of 18 primary soil samples across the site and 2 intra-laboratory duplicates were analysed thereby meeting the required frequency (**Table 5.2**). Exceedances to the precision DQIs for the assessment are summarised below.

• An elevated RPD calculation of 128% was reported for intra-laboratory duplicate pair BH06-0.0-0.1/QC03 for copper.

The elevated soil RPDs noted may be due to the heterogeneous nature of fill material. The variability of these results has been taken into consideration in the assessment of analytical results. The results discussed above are considered not to have a significant impact on the conclusions of the assessment as the contaminant concentrations are well below the nominated assessment criteria.

Analysis of field inter-laboratory duplicates was conducted at a rate (5.6%) exceeding 1 in 20 samples analysed (5%). JBS collected and analysed a maximum of 18 primary soil samples across the site and 1 inter-laboratory duplicate was analysed thereby meeting the required frequency (**Table 5.2**). There were no reported exceedences to the precision DQIs within the inter-laboratory duplicate RPD calculations.

There were no reported exceedences to the precision DQIs for any of the laboratory duplicate RPD calculations.

#### Accuracy

Surrogate spikes were included with all organic analyses conducted during the assessment. The recoveries for the surrogate spikes were generally within the limits specified within the accuracy DQIs (60 – 140% recovery). Where exceeded, the surrogate spike recoveries were either attributed to interference from the sample matrix or were within accordance with the laboratory NATA endorsed limits.

Analysis of laboratory control sample (LCS) recoveries was conducted at a rate (11.1%) exceeding 1 per 20 samples analysed (5%). The LCS recoveries were within the limits specified within the accuracy DQIs (60 – 140% recovery).

Analysis of matrix spike recoveries was conducted at a rate (11.1%) exceeding 1 per 20 samples analysed (5%). The matrix spike recoveries were within the limits specified generally within the accuracy DQIs (60 – 140% recovery). Where exceeded, the surrogate spike recoveries were either attributed to interference from the sample matrix or were within accordance with the laboratory NATA endorsed limits.

#### **Representativeness**

All soil samples were collected via hand auger using methods considered appropriate for all the target analytes of the assessment.



All soil samples were extracted and analysed within holding times.

Laboratory blank analysis was conducted for the batch of samples submitted. No target analytes were detected above the laboratory LOR within any of the laboratory blanks.

A trip spike was submitted with the samples collected during the current assessment. The reported recoveries of BTEX compounds were within the acceptable limits specified within the DQIs.

A trip blank was submitted with the samples collected during the current assessment. There were no reported concentrations of BTEX compounds above the laboratory LOR in the trip blank, and were therefore within the limits specified in the DQIs.

A rinsate blank was collected from decontaminated non-disposable soil sampling equipment (hand auger) used during the assessment and analysed. There were no reported concentrations of heavy metals above the laboratory LOR within the rinsate blank, and were therefore within the limits specified in the DQIs.

#### Comparability

Experienced JBS personnel undertook all sampling in accordance with standard JBS sampling methods.

Both the primary and secondary laboratories were NATA accredited for all methods used.

All field works and sampling were undertaken by a single, experienced JBS field scientist.

The laboratory LORs are generally consistent and are considered appropriate.

#### **Completeness**

Samples were transported under full chain of custody (COC) documentation. The COC documentation was completed correctly and the selected analyses were correctly conducted.

All field documentation is complete and is considered to be correct. Calibration and decontamination records are included in **Appendix H**.

The frequency of analysis and result for all QC samples are considered to be appropriate.

#### **Sensitivity**

Laboratory analysis methods for all soil contaminants adopted during the assessment used limits of reporting significantly less than the site assessment criteria to ensure that contaminant concentrations could be confidently identified as being less than the adopted site assessment criteria.

### 7.3 QA/QC Assessment

The results of the field and laboratory QA/QC program indicate that the data obtained from this assessment generally met the predetermined Data Quality Indicators (DQIs) or, where the DQIs were exceeded, did not indicate systematic sampling or analytical errors. As such, the data are considered to be of adequate quality to be relied on for the purposes of assessing the environmental condition at the site.

### 7.4 Assessment of Decision Rule

As per the stated acceptance limits on decision errors nominated, an assessment of compliance has been undertaken using statistical analysis of the soil data obtained during the assessment (**Appendix L**). These are summarised in **Tables 7.2** and **7.3** for each



analyte recorded above the detection limits. For the analytes, the applicable health based assessment criteria/threshold concentrations have been adopted based upon the proposed standard residential land use.

Constituent	µ (mg/kg)	σ (mg/kg)	C <sub>s</sub> (mg/kg)	Required Samples (n)
Arsenic	4.833	2.167	100	<1
Chromium (total)	12.667	4.292	120 000	<1
Copper	21.750	11.678	1 000	<1
Lead	21.000	7.495	300	<1
Nickel	9.917	7.103	600	<1
Zinc	102.167	63.084	7 000	<1
ТРН С <sub>10</sub> -С <sub>36</sub>	174.583	171.762	1 000	<1
Benzo(a)pyrene	0.048	0.079	1	<1
PAHs (total)	1.019	0.844	20	<1

Table 7.2 - Assessment of compliance with limits on decision error - Fill material

Constituent	μ (mg/kg)	o (mg/kg)	C <sub>s</sub> (mg/kg)	Required Samples (п)
Arsenic	5.000	3.688	100	<1
Chromium (total)	10.833	7.305	120 000	<1
Copper	3.750	6.064	1 000	<1
Lead	12.667	6,890	300	<1
Nickel	2.167	1.941	600	<1
Zinc	13.167	13.862	7 000	<1

A review of the results in **Tables 7.2** and **7.3** indicates that sufficient samples have been analysed for the decision limits to be met for all contaminants in soils.



# 8 Discussion of Soil Results

# 8.1 Field Observations

Several material types were identified during field activities conducted on 20 and 21 July 2010. Description of the different material types are detailed in the borehole logs included in **Appendix J**, and summarised below:

- FILL Fill material comprised of gravelly sands and clays was present in the vicinity of a number of buildings and structures across the site. The fill material was generally grey to brown in colour, heterogenous, and dry to wet. Clayey fill materials were generally of low to moderate plasticity. Sandy fill materials were generally moderately loose to loose and poorly sorted. Roots, root fibres and fine to coarse gravels and cobbles of shale, sandstone and ironstone were present within the fill material. The fill material was encountered at depths from the surface to greater than 0.9 m bgs.
- SILTY SAND: Natural silty sand soils were encountered across the western portion of the site. The silty sand soils were grey to brown, homogenous, moist, moderately loose, fine grained and well sorted. Root fibres and degraded organic matter was present within the silty sand. The silty sand soils were encountered at depths ranging between 0.12 m and 0.4 m bgs.
- CLAYEY SAND/SANDY CLAY: Natural clayey sand and sandy clay soils were encountered across the site. The natural sand and clay soils were either greybrown or orange-brown with grey and red mottles, homogenous, damp to moist, and exhibited varying plasticity. Root fibres and fine to coarse gravels of sandstone and ironstone were present within the natural clay and sand soils. The clayey sand and sandy clay soils were encountered at the site surface to depths greater than 1 m bgs.
- SILTY CLAY: Natural silty clay soils were encountered across the site. The silty clay soils were generally orange-brown with red and grey mottling, homogenous, damp, stiff to very stiff and exhibited varying degrees of plasticity. Root fibres and fine to coarse gravels of sandstone and ironstone were present within the silty clay soils. The silty clay soils were encountered at deths ranging between 0.2 m and greater than 1.0 m bgs.
- WEATHERED SANDSTONE: Weathered sandstone bedrock was encountered underlying the fill materials and natural soils across the site. The weathered sandstone was generally orange-brown with red and grey mottles, homogenous, dry to moist with fine to coarse sandstone gravels present. The weathered sandstone was encountered at depths ranging between 0.25 m to greater than 1 m bgs.
- SANDSTONE: Sandstone bedrock was encountered across the site. Sandstone outcrops were observed in the central to southern portions of the site. The sandstone bedrock was generally orange-brown in colour with red and light grey stratification. The sandstone bedrock was encountered at the site surface to depths greater than 1.0 m bgs.

No staining or emanating odours which may have resulted from contamination were observed within the fill materials or natural soils across the site during the current assessment.



### 8.2 Soil Analytical Results

The soil sampling locations are shown on **Figures 2** and **3** and summarised laboratory results are presented in **Table A**. Detailed laboratory reports and chain of custody documentation is provided in **Appendix K**.

The summary laboratory results are discussed in the following sections.

#### 8.2.1 Asbestos

Suspected asbestos fibre cement sheeting was observed along the walls and eaves of the secondary residence in the northern portion of the site. Suspected asbestos fibre cement sheeting was also observed in the eaves of the vacant residence as well as for the backing board of the electrical distribution box for the vacant residence in the south-eastern portion of the site.

Suspected asbestos containing materials (ACM) were not observed on the site surface during the site inspection and field works.

There were no reported concentrations of asbestos or asbestos fibres above the laboratory LOR within any of the soil samples collected during the assessment and submitted for laboratory analysis.

#### 8.2.2 Heavy Metals

An elevated concentration of zinc exceeding the provisional phytoxicity-based investigation levels (PILs) was reported in the following sample.

• BH04-0.0-0.1 - 220 mg/kg

It is noted that the phytotoxicity-based criteria are provisional in nature only, and have "...significant limitations because phytotoxicity depends on soil and species parameters in ways that are not fully understood" (DEC 2006). The provisional phytotoxicity-based criteria are considered to be overly conservative, as healthy vegetation cover was present at the surface in the sample location in which the PIL exceedence was reported. In addition, the reported concentration of zinc was within the natural background ranges as reported in NEPC 1999. The reported zinc concentrations exceeding the PILs are considered not to pose an unacceptable risk to the normal growth of vegetation at the site.

There were no reported concentrations of heavy metals exceeding the PILs within the remaining soil samples collected during the assessment and submitted for laboratory analysis.

The concentrations of all heavy metals were all reported either below the nominated assessment criteria for standard residential land use or laboratory LOR.

#### 8.2.3 TPH

There were no reported concentrations of TPH above the nominated assessment criteria for standard residential land use within any of the soil samples submitted for laboratory analysis.

#### 8.2.4 BTEX Compounds

There were no reported concentrations of BTEX compounds above the laboratory LOR within any of the soil samples submitted for laboratory analysis.



# 8.2.5 VOCs

There were no reported concentrations of VOCs above the laboratory LOR within any of the soil samples submitted for laboratory analysis.

#### 8.2.6 PAHs

There were no reported concentrations of PAHs above either the nominated assessment criteria for standard residential land use within any of the soil samples submitted for laboratory analysis.

#### 8.2.7 SVOCs

There were no reported concentrations of SVOCs above the laboratory LOR within any of the soil samples submitted for laboratory analysis.

#### 8.2.8 OCPs

There were no reported concentrations of OCPs above the laboratory LOR within any of the soil samples submitted for laboratory analysis.

#### 8.2.9 PCBs

There were no reported concentrations of PCBs above the laboratory LOR within any of the soil samples submitted for laboratory analysis.

### 8.3 Leachate Analytical Results

#### 8.3.1 TCLP Heavy Metals

The following concentration ranges for heavy metals were reported within the leachates from the selected samples submitted for toxicity characteristic leaching procedure (TCLP).

- Copper 0.02 to 0.04 mg/L; and
- Zinc 0.2 to 0.5 mg/L

The concentrations of the remaining heavy metals were below the laboratory LOR within the leachates for the samples submitted for TCLP analysis.

### 8.3.2 ASLP Heavy Metals

The following range of concentrations of heavy metals were reported within the leachates from the selected samples submitted for Australian Standard Leaching Procedure (ASLP).

- Arsenic <1 to 2  $\mu$ g/L;
- Cadmium <0.1 to 0.3 μg/L;
- Chromium <1 to 7  $\mu$ g/L;
- Copper 8 to 18 µg/L;
- Lead 3 to 5 μg/L;
- Nickel 1 to 8 µg/L; and
- Zinc 190 to 290 µg/L.

The concentrations of mercury were below the laboratory LOR within the leachates for the samples submitted for ASLP analysis.



### 8.3.3 TCLP PAHs

There were no reported concentrations of PAHs above the laboratory LOR within any of the soil samples submitted for TCLP analysis.

#### 8.3.4 ASLP PAHs

There were no reported concentrations of PAHs above the laboratory LOR within any of the soil samples submitted for ASLP analysis.

#### 8.4 Updated Conceptual Site Model

#### 8.4.1 Areas of Environmental Concern

Based on the site history review, field observations, and soil analytical data obtained during the assessment, and with reference to the limitations in **Section 12**, areas of environmental concern have been identified and are presented in **Table 8.1**.

Table 8.1 - Areas of Environmental Concern

Area of Environmental Concern
Surfaces and construction materials of the secondary residence in the northern portion of the site.
Surfaces and construction materials of the vacant residence in the south-eastern portion of the site.
Stables, fencing and timber structures across the site

#### 8.4.2 Contaminants of Potential Concern

Based on the site history review, field observations from the site, and soil analytical data obtained during the investigation, the contaminants of potential concern have been identified and are presented in **Table 8.2**.

#### Table 8.2 - Areas of Environmental Concern and Associated Contaminants of Potential Concern

Area of Environmental Concern	Contaminants of Potential Concern (CoPCs)
 Surfaces and construction materials of the secondary residence in the northern portion of the site.	Lead and asbestos
Surfaces and construction materials of the vacant residence in the south-eastern portion of the site.	Lead and asbestos
Stables, fencing and structures across the site	Lead

#### 8.4.3 Contaminated Media

Contamination in surface soils, fill materials or natural soils was not identified during the assessment. Based on observations made during the site inspection, potentially contaminated media at the site may comprise:

- Surface soils in the vicinity of the secondary residence in the northern portion of the site;
- Surface soils in the vicinity of the vacant residence in the south-eastern portion of the site; and
- Surface soils in the vicinity of stables, fencing and structures across the site, particularly where flaking paint is evident.

#### 8.4.4 Potential for Migration, Exposure Pathways and Receptors

The potential contaminants identified as part of the site history review and site inspection during the assessment, are present in solid form (e.g. asbestos).

The sources of contaminants of potential concern (CoPC) identified as part of the site history review and the site inspection are associated with construction materials and painted structures across the site.



The exposure pathways of the identified contamination at the site may include inhalation, dermal contact and ingestion. The primary receptors of any identified contamination at the site may include the current/future site occupants.

.



# 9 Site Characterisation

Based on the decision making process for assessing urban redevelopment sites detailed in DEC (2006) and discussed in **Section 5.1.2**, the decisions requiring to be made are discussed below.

# 9.1 Reporting in accordance with EPA requirements

The report has been prepared with consideration of the requirements of EPA 1997.

# 9.2 Aesthetic issues have been addressed

No unexpected staining or odours that may have resulted from contamination were observed within the fill materials or natural soils across the site during the assessment. As such, the aesthetic issues at the site have been addressed.

# 9.3 Assessment of the risk to future onsite receptors from the soil

A review of laboratory analytical results indicates that elevated concentrations of zinc exceeding the PILs were present within the surface soils at one sampling location in the western portion of the site. The provisional phytotoxicity criteria are considered to be overly conservative, as healthy vegetation cover was present at the surface in which the PIL exceedences were reported. The reported zinc concentration exceeding the PIL appears not to pose an unacceptable risk to the normal growth of vegetation at the site.

Laboratory results indicate that soils and materials at the site (both fill and natural) have not been impacted with heavy metals, TPH, BTEX, VOCs, PAHs, SVOCs, OCPs, and PCBs, as all results were either below the laboratory limit of reporting or the nominated assessment criteria for standard residential land use.

# 9.4 Assessment of background soil concentrations against the appropriate investigation levels

Laboratory results indicate that natural soils underlying the site have not been impacted with asbestos, heavy metals, TPH, BTEX, VOCs, PAHs, SVOCs, OCPs, and PCBs, as all results were either below the nominated assessment criteria for standard residential land use or the laboratory limit of reporting.

# 9.5 Assessment of chemical mixtures

No chemical mixtures were identified in relation to the contaminants of concern assessed across the site.

### 9.6 Assessment of the potential for the migration of contaminants from the site

There were no reported concentrations of heavy metals, TPH, BTEX, VOCs, PAHs, SVOCs, OCPs, and PCBs above the nominated assessment criteria for standard residential use within the surface and near surface soils across the site.

Based on the low to moderate permeability of the sand and clay soils present at the site, the anticipated depth to groundwater, and the concentrations of heavy metals and PAHs within the leachates from the selected soil samples submitted for TCLP and ASLP analysis, the potential for vertical contaminant migration from soils to groundwater is considered to be low.



Based on the presence of long grass cover across the majority of the site surface, and the concentrations of heavy metals and PAHs within the leachates for soil samples submitted for TCLP and ASLP analysis, the potential for contaminant migration from the soils to the surface water bodies is considered to be low.



# 10 Conclusions

Based on the results of the investigation undertaken at the site, and subject to the limitations stated in **Section 12**, the following conclusions are made:

- There were no reported concentrations of heavy metals, TPH, BTEX compounds, VOCs, SVOCs, OCPs and PCBs above the nominated assessment criteria for standard residential land use within any of the soil samples submitted for laboratory analysis.
- There were no reported concentrations of the contaminants of potential concern above the nominated assessment criteria for standard residential land use within any of the background soil samples submitted for laboratory analysis.
- The potential for the migration of the potential contaminants of concern to the groundwater is considered to be low based on the shallow depth to sandstone bedrock, the anticipated depth to groundwater, the low to moderate permeability of the sand and clay soils at the site, and the concentrations of heavy metals and PAHs within the leachates for soil samples submitted for TCLP and ASLP analysis.
- The potential for the migration of the potential contaminants of concern to the surface water bodies present across the site is considered to be low based on the long grass cover present across the majority of the site surface, and the concentrations of heavy metals and PAHs within the leachates for soil samples submitted for TCLP and ASLP analysis.

It is concluded that, while there is a potential for isolated areas of contamination to be present in areas of the site not directly sampled, the potential is low in consideration of the rural residential historical use of the site. It is unlikely that any significant, widespread, contamination is present at the site.

Based on the results of the investigation undertaken at the site, and subject to the limitations stated in **Section 12**, there is no barrier to a residential zone at the site. The site is considered to be suitable for both residential land use, and for the development of 'The Tahmoor Tourism and Recreation Precinct'.



# 11 Recommendations

Based on the results of the investigation undertaken at the site, and subject to the limitations stated in **Section 12**, the following recommendations are made:

• Prior to the demolition of all buildings and structures across the site, a hazardous materials building survey be undertaken. The objectives of the survey will be to document the presence of hazardous materials, including asbestos and lead based paint, within the buildings and structures across the site.



# 12 Limitations

This report has been prepared for use by the client who commissioned the works in accordance with the project brief only and has been based in part on information obtained from other parties. The advice herein relates only to this project and all results conclusions and recommendations made should be reviewed by a competent person with experience in environmental investigations, before being used for any other purpose.

JBS Environmental Pty Ltd accepts no liability for use or interpretation by any person or body other than the client. This report should not be reproduced without prior approval by the client, or amended in any way without prior approval by JBS Environmental Pty Ltd, and should not be relied upon by other parties, who should make their own enquires.

Sampling and chemical analysis of environmental media is based on appropriate guidance documents made and approved by the relevant regulatory authorities. Conclusions arising from the review and assessment of environmental data are based on the sampling and analysis considered appropriate based on the regulatory requirements and site history, not on sampling and analysis of all media at all locations for all potential contaminants.

Limited sampling and laboratory analyses were undertaken as part of the investigations, as described herein. Ground conditions between sampling locations may vary, and this should be considered when extrapolating between sampling points. Chemical analytes are based on the information detailed in the site history. Further chemicals or categories of chemicals may exist at the sites, which were not identified in the site history and which may not be expected at the site.

Changes to the subsurface conditions may occur subsequent to the investigations described herein, through natural processes or through the intentional or accidental addition of contaminants. The conclusions and recommendations reached in this report are based on the information obtained at the time of the investigations.

This report does not provide a complete assessment of the environmental status of the site, and it is limited to the scope defined herein. Should information become available regarding conditions at the site including previously unknown sources of contamination, JBS Environmental Pty Ltd reserves the right to review the report in the context of the additional information.



Figures

.









Tables

1.151513-111			nda a construction no se se s	Heavy Metals in Soil						2.2010.000	en in Ne	1000	Tł	TPH in Soll			- The State		BTE	
				Arsenic	<b>Cadmitum</b>	Chromium (III+VI)	Coppet	Lead ************************************	Mercury	Ničkei	Zinc	TPH C6 - C9	<b>TPH C10 - C14</b>	<b>TPH C15 - C28</b>	TPH C29 - C36	TPH C10 - C36 (Sum of total)	Benzene	Toluene	Ethylbenzene	
LOR				ma/ka	ma/ka 0.5	mo/kq	ma/ka	µq/L	mq/kq 0.1	<u>та/ка</u> 1	mq/kq	<u>та/ка</u> 25	<u>та/ка</u> 50	mg/kg 100	<u>mq/kg</u> 100	ma/ka 250	то/ко 0.5	<u>mq/ka</u> 0.5	<u>ma/i</u>	
	Organisms (El	PA 1994)		N. 200	0.00	18882	70,000	300		- SIQ 00.	10.200	65	-304 <b>-</b> 300	100 <b>-</b> 100	20 <b>1</b>	1000	3. <b>1</b> .5	1.4	3.1	
PIL (DEC 2				20	3	400	100	600	1	60	200	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
HIL A (DEC				100	20	600,000	1000	300	15	600	7000	-	14 A.	-	-	-			1.1.1	
Sample ID	Depth (m)	Date	Matrix																	
BH01	0-0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<4	< 0.5	7	7	14	< 0.1	3	71	<25	<50	<100		<250	<0.5	<0.5		
8H02	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<4	<0,5	9	30	22	<0.1	18	110	<25	<50	<100		<250	< 0.5	<0.5	<1	
	0.3 - 0.4	20/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	<4	< 0.5	4	1	6	<0.1	1	2	<25	<50		<100	<250	<0.5	<0.5	<1	
BH03	0-01	20/07/2010	FILL	4	< 0.5	10	32	14	< 0.1	9	140	<25	<50	<100		<250	<0.5	< 0.5	<u>1</u>	
ВН04	0-0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	_7	<0.5	19	36	23	<0,1	18	220	<25	<50	<100		<250	<0.5	< 0.5	<u>1</u>	
BH05	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	7	< 0.5	12	38	24	< 0.1	23	85	<25	<50	<100	<100	<250	< 0.5	<0.5	<1	
BH06	0 ~ 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	8	<0.5	19	20	20	< 0.1	5	24	<25	<50	<100	<100	<250	< 0.5	<0.5	<1	
BH07	0-0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<4	< 0.5	7	5	11	< 0.1	3	32	<25	<50	<100	<100	<250	< 0.5	< 0.5	<u>1</u>	
BH08	0-0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	5	< 0.5	14	14	22	<0,1	7	100	<25	<50	<100	<100	<250	< 0.5	< 0.5	<1	
BH09	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	6	< 0.5	16	13	21	< 0.1	8	150	<25	120	280	320	720	< 0.5	< 0.5	<1	
BH09	0.5 - 0.6	21/07/2010	FILL	4	<0.5	17	23	21	< 0.1	4	29	<25	<50	<100	<100	<250	< 0.5	<0.5	<1	
BH10	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	<u> </u>	أحستيسها	-	<u> </u>	-		-	-		-	-		-	•	-	· · ·	
BH10	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SANDSTONE	5	< 0.5	14	<1	10	< 0.1	2	4	<25	<50	<100	<100	<250	<0.5	<0.5	<u>1</u>	
BH11	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	4	< 0.5	11	11	41	<0.1	4	190	<25	< 50	<100	<100	<250	< 0.5	< 0.5	1	
BH12	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SILTY CLAY	10	< 0.5	23	16	26	< 0.1	6	40	<25	<50	<100	<100	<250	< 0.5	< 0.5	<1	
BH13	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	<4	< 0.5	<u>6</u>	3	10	<0.1	2	11	<25	<50	<100	<100	<250	<0.5	<0.5	<1	
BH14	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	SAND	<4	< 0.5	5	1	12	< 0.1	1	8	<25	<50	<100	<100	<250	<0.5	<0.5	<1	
BH15	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	7	< 0.5	11	32	19		17	75		<50	<100	<100	<250	< 0.5	< 0.5	<1	
SS01	0-0.1	31/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	á	<0.5	13	26	12	<0.1		14	<25 <25	<50	<100	<100	<250	< 0.5	<0.5	<1	

TEN NAVE				100203	ng shise	dig taga a s	11-11-11-1	83 - 2 N IN				Ora	anoch	lorine	Pestic	ldes in	Soll	- 11- A	
				<b>4,4-DDE</b>	<b>a-BHC</b>	Aldrin Contraction of the second s	<b>6-88</b>	Chlordane (cis)	Chiordane (trans)	<b>d</b> - <b>BHC</b>		DUT	Dieldrin	Endos	Endosulfan II	Endosulfan suiphate		Endrin aldéhyde	g-BHC (Lindane)
LOR				<u>ma/ka</u> 0.1	mg/kg 0.1	<u>та/ка</u> 0.1	ma/kg 0.1	<u>та/ка</u> 0.1	mg/kg 0.1	ma/ka 0.1	ma/ka 0.1	ma/ka 0.1	mg/kg 0.1	ma/kg 0.1	mq/kg 0.1	mg/kg 0.1	mg/kg 0.1	mg/kg 0.1	<u>ma/kalı</u> 0.1
	rganisms (E	PA 1994)			00 <b>-</b> 00	100	0.00	1990 <b>,</b> 1985		- U I I				0.000	00.00		0.1	<u> </u>	
PIL (DEC 20				-		-	-	-	μ.	-	-	-			-	-	-	-	-
HIL A (DEC	2006)	n an tha tha an tha tha an tha tha an tha An tha an tha						5	0	•	· •	· · •	-	-	-	-		1.0	
Sample ID		Date	Matrix																
	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1
	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0,1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1
	0.3 - 0.4	20/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	<0.1
	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<0.1	<0,1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	٦.1
	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	< 0.1	< 0,1	<0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	1.1
	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0,1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0,1	<0,1	<0.1
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<0.i	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1
	0 - 0,1	21/07/2010	FILL	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0,1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1
BH08	0 - 0,1	21/07/2010	FILL	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1
BH09	0-0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1
	0.5 - 0.6	21/07/2010	FILL	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	<0,1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		<u>-</u>	<u> </u>	-			-	-	+
	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SANDSTONE	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0,1	<0,1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1
	0-0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<i>,</i> <0.1	<0,1	<0.i	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0,1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1
	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SILTY CLAY	< 0.1	<0.1	<0,1	<0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	< 0,1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0,1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	SAND	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0,1	< 0.1	<0.1	< 0.1	<0,1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1	<u>&lt;0.1</u>	< 0.1	<0.1
SS01	0-0.1	31/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND				-	-	-	<del>.</del>		~	-	-	ليستسبيا		-	-	<u> </u>

The second	ann an an an she	an an an an an																	
		a ser and the set of t		1,2,4,5-tetrachlorobenzene	1,2,4-trichlorobenzene	1,2-dichlorobenzene	1,3-dichlorobenzene	1,3-Dinitrobenzene	1,4-dichlorobenzene	1-naphthylamine	2-(acetylamino) fluorene	2,3,4,6-tetrachiorophenol	2,4,5-trichlorophenol	2,4,6-trichlorophenol	2,4-dichlorophenol	2,4-dimethylphenol	2,4-dinitrophenol	2,6-tichlorophenol	2,6-dinítrototuene
	to a set a set to be				ma/ka		mg/kg				ma/ka		mg/kg	ma/ka	mg/kg				mg/kg ı
LOR				1	1	1		1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	10	1	1
Terrestial C	)rganisms (El	PA 1994)		10 <b>-</b> 14	100	•	-0014-535	10.000		1.4	199 <b>°</b> - 197	a di serie da la composita de	-00) <b>=</b> 000	10400	1999 <b>-</b> 1997	199 <b>-</b>	NG• NG	1 <b>-</b>	<u> </u>
PIL (DEC 2) HIL A (DEC					-	s."				-	-		,		-		-	-	
Sample ID		Date	Matrix										· · · <del>/</del> · · ·	<del>-</del> -					
BH01	0 0 1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<10	<1	<1
BH02	0-01	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<10	<1	<1
8H02	0.3 - 0.4	20/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	-	-	-	-	,	-	-	~	•	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
8H03	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<10	<1	<1
8H04	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<10	<1	<1
8H05	0-0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	-	-	-	-	-	•	-	÷	Ŧ	-	-	•			-	-
BH06	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<10	<1	<1
BH07	0 ~ 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1		<1	<u>&lt;1</u>	<1	<1	<1	<u>&lt;1</u>	<u> &lt;1</u>	<1	<u>&lt;1</u>	1	<10	<1	<1
BH08	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1		<1	<1	1	1	<1	<u> &lt;1</u>	1	<10	<i< td=""><td>&lt;1</td></i<>	<1
BH09	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<10	<1	1
BH09	0.5 - 0.6	21/07/2010	FILL							-			•	<u> </u>	· ·			<u> </u>	
BH10	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	-	-	-	<u> </u>			-		-		-					
BH10	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SANDSTONE	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-		-	-	-	~	
BH11	0 - 0,1	21/07/2010	FILL	-	-	-	۰	-	ų	-	-		~	ч	•	~	•	-	-
BH12	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SILTY CLAY			-	-	-	н		-	~	*	~	~		-	-	
				-	- 1	- 1	-	- 1	-	- 3	-	-	-	-	- 1	-	- 1	_	-
BH13	0 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND																
8H14	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	SAND	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
							•	-		-	-	-	-	-	- -		-		

				Maldrin Kararin	Aniline Wa/ka	3 Anthracene by		Ratic Ratic	3 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	Benzo(a) pyrene	3 Benzo(b)fluoranthene	g Benzo(g,h,i)perylene	3 6 8 6 6 7 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	Benzyl alcohol	Bis(2-chloroethoxy) methane	3 8 Bis(2-chioroethyl)ether 5	Bis(2-chloroisopropyl) ether	3 8 Bis(2-ethylhexyl) phthalate	Butyl benzyl phthalate
LOR	an ar sarat.	stan en en en ante	a na ana ang manana ang manana ang ma	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
	rganisms (Ei	PA 1994)	an a	19 <b>1</b> - 19	199 <b>1</b> - 199	199 <b>4</b> (200	199 <b>-</b> 99	11-15	100	19 <b>-</b> 191	199 <b>4</b> (199	1 <b>1</b>	1995 <b>-</b> 1997	199 <b>1</b> 1992	104479.0	38 <b>,4</b> ,933	0.05 <b>4</b> 1932	13 <b>-</b>	-
PIL (DEC 20							~	-	•	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	· · · · ·
HIL A (DEC		1			<b>.</b>	-	· •	-		1	•	*		-		<u> </u>	-		
Sample ID		Date	Matrix																
	0-0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
	0.3 - 0.4	20/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	<1 ~	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
	0-0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1		<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	- <1	~	
	0-01	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1 <1	1
	0-01	20/07/2010	FILL	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	~~~	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u></u>	~1		-	-		~1	<u>-</u>	,
	0-01	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
	0-0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
	0,5 - 0,6	21/07/2010	FILL	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	-
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	~	~	~	~	-	+	~	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	~	-
	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SANDSTONE		^	~	-	-	*	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	•	ł	
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	~	-	-	-
	0,3 - 0,4	21/07/2010	SILTY CLAY	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	•		-	-	- [
	0 - 0,1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	~	~	-	-	-	-	-	-	- 1
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	SAND		-	-	~	i	-		÷	*	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-		*	-
SS01	0 - 0.1	31/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND				_												

•

<b>1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1</b>	anne ave area	a na sa sa sa sa	ana kaominina dia mampi													SVOCS	in Soi	1	
				Heptachlor epoxide	Hexachlorobenzene	Hexachlorobutadiene	Hexachlorocyclopentadiene	Hexachloroethane	Hexachloropropene	Indeno(1,2,3-c,d)pyrene	Isophorone	Isosafroie	Methapyrilene	Methoxychior	Naphthalene	Nitrobenzene	N-nitrosodi-n-butylamine	N-nitrosodi-n-propylamine	N-nitrosomorpholine
1.08				mg/kg	mg/kg 1	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	ima/ka	ma/ka	img/kg	ma/ka	img/kg	mg/kg	mg/kg	mg/ko	ma/ka	mg/kg
	Organisms (E	04 1004)			1	100	100 <b>-</b> 100	100	191 <u>1</u> -191	1		1. 	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1		1	199 <b>4</b> 199			
PIL (DEC :		<u>ra 1994)</u>			-		-		_		<u> </u>		_	-	_	_	-		-
HIL A (DE							<b>.</b>		- <b>-</b>										
	Depth (m)	Date	Matrix																
8H01	0-0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
BH02	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<i< td=""><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td></i<>	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
BH02	0.3 - 0.4	20/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	2	1	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	•	-	,	-	-
BH03	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
BH04	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
BH05	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
BH06	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<i< td=""><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td></i<>	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
BH07	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
BH08	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
BH09	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
BH09	0.5 - 0.6	21/07/2010	FILL	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	•	~	-
8H10	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	-	-	-	-	~	~	~	-			-	~	w	-	-	-
BH10	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SANDSTONE	-	-		-	-	~	*	<u> </u>		-	-	-		-		-
BH11	0-0.1	21/07/2010	FILL			-				-	-	-	-						
BH12	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SILTY CLAY	-						-	-	-		-			<u> </u>	-	-
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	
8H13																			1
8H14	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	SAND	<u>^</u>			-	~		-	-	-	-	-	-	· ·	<u>^</u>		
		21/07/2010 21/07/2010 31/07/2010	SAND FILL CLAYEY SAND	- -	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	- -	-	-

				1.1.1.1	1.1.1.1	1999	2000 C. N. S.	5 S. S. S.					1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 19	er a la cale				- C - C - C - C - C - C - C - C - C - C	
							10.0	1.10	1		1		1		-	1 10.1	1 1 1	N	
										·				- N. 1	1.1				
							1		1.						1.1				
1 1 1 1 1							1.1	1				1			<u>a</u>		1.1.1		
									1					1 1 1	3				1
		t i se se se		2		e e	1.1						. · · ·		8			ן ין	
					1.1	ន្ត្រ				- N	0	ία.	0	្រខ្ល	E E				
				1 🗧	e ۳	12				6	5	Ë	E.	1 2	1 <u>2</u>	1.15	6	1.1	
				Ž.		ĕ	2	ι <u>φ</u>	9	ŝ	2	<u>ă</u>	Ř	E .	9	5	i i i	്ച	Ē
			나는 이번 옷 가 있네.	1,2-tetrachloroethane		ō		a l	Ŭ,	ă	l ğ	L E	- ē	Å.	5	la la	Ň	2-dichloroethane	ă,
- 1 - A		1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -		5	ĕ	5	ŏ	· بچ		2	1 7	Ö,	, de la companya de l	5	<b>.</b>	t,	j j	E S	2
	이 방법을 가 같다.			1 C .	ē	2	ē	j ö	ŏ	, õ	0	õ	ē	1	ģ	ğ	6	ö	6
				i i	5	i i i	5	ē	ē	ē	1.5	5	5	Ē	5	u u	jā j	õ	ŏ
				N N	1	1	5	5	5	5	12	125	5	Ξ.	5	5	3	- F	- E
					-	Ň	N	1 <b>1</b>	ö	10	l ñ	n de la composición de la composicinde la composición de la composición de la composición de la compos	4	4	8	8	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	÷.	÷ i
	이 같 것 같	이 같은 것이 같이 같이 같이 많이 많이 많이 했다.	그는 동지 않는 관문	-	1,1,1-trichtoroethane	1, 1, 2, 2-tetrachloroethane	1, 1, 2-trichloroethane	1,1-dichloroethane	1,1-dichloroethene	1,1-dichloropropene	1,2,3-trichlorobenzene	1,2,3-trichloropropane	1,2,4-trichlorobenzen	1,2,4-trimethylbenzene	1,2-dibromo-3-chloropropane	,2-dibromoethane	1,2-dichlorobenzene	2	.2-dichioropropane
	이 바람이 많은															+		न	र्न
					ma/ka		mq/kg	ma/ka	Assessment and the second		lmq/kg			mq/kg		mg/kg			mg/kg
LOR	Organisms (El	<b>6 4 6 6 4</b> 3		1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
PIL (DEC 2		PA 1994)	A CARL CONTRACTOR OF A CARL	- 48 <b>-</b> 98	-00 <b>-</b> 000-	10 <b>4</b> 04	N 79 <b>-</b> 999	-0.5 <b>4</b> -0.00	100-00		1000	- 656- 669 	- 33433.8	2024-2022	0.000.000	-	2002-00-	18 <b>-</b> 19	
HILA (DEC				i i							-	, en	•	-	-	f	-	-	-
	Depth (m)	Date	Matrix																1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.
8H01	0-01	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
8H02	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
8H02	0.3 - 0.4	20/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND			-	-						<u> </u>		<u> </u>			<u> </u>	
вноз	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<i< td=""><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>1</td></i<>	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	1
BH04	0-0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	.1
BH05	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	-	-	*		-	-	-	1		-	<u> </u>		-			, <del>```</del>
BH06	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<i< td=""><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td><td>&lt;1</td></i<>	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
BH07	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
BH08	0-0,1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
BH09	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1
BH09	0.5 - 0.6	21/07/2010	FILL	-	-	•	-		-	-	- 1	-	-	-	-		-	- 1	- 1
8H10	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND			-	•	-	-	-	-	-	~	-	-	-	-	~ .	-
BH10	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SANDSTONE	~	=	1	-	-	-	-	-		~	-	-	-	-	~	-
BH11	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	•	-	-	-	-	7		-	-
BH12	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SILTY CLAY			····-		-	-	~	-	-		-	-	ŧ	~	-	-
BH13	0 ~ 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	-	-		~	-	<u>^</u>	-	-	-	-	~	-	-	-	-	-
BH14	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	SAND		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	~	3	-	-	-	-	-
8H15	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL					-		-	1 - 1	_	- 1	-			4 T		- 1
S501	0 - 0.1	31/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND											-	<u> </u>		L		للسسيت

1	ne stand egit til	[	e de la com	- 14 A	14 A.			· · · · · ·	VOCs	in Soi	1	••••				14			
				Isopropylbenzene	n-butylbenzene	n-propylbenzene	p-isopropyltoluene	sec-butylbenzene	Styrene	Trichloroethene	tert-butylbenzene	Tetrachloroethene	Toluene	trans-1,2-dichloroethene	trans-1,3-dichloropropene	Trichlorofluoromethane	Vinyl chloride	Xylene (m & p)	Xylene (o)
i de stelet	y sije subliky sub-	e tradición de la companya	an di kara ara na mara ang p	ma/ka	mq/kq	mg/kg		mg/kg	ma/ka	ma/ka					mq/ka				mg/kg
LOR				1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.5	1	1	1	1	2	1
	Organisms (El	PA 1994)	an a	199 <b>6</b> (199	- 85 <b>-</b> 787	<u></u>		<u></u>		10. <b>-</b> 0.0		19 <b>4</b> 1 (1	1.4	1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.	*	10 <b>.</b>	•	-81 <b>4</b> -13	. +
PIL (DEC 20 HIL A (DEC		1997) 1997) 1997)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-		+	-	4 4. 1 M	• •	-	-	*	-	~	+	"		-	
Sample ID		Date	Matrix				-				-							-	
BH01	0-01	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<0.5	<1	<1	<1	<1	<2	<1
BH02	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	< 0.5	<1	<1	<1	<1	<2	<1
BH02	0.3 - 0.4	20/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND					-	- -		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
BH03	0-0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	< 0.5	<1	<1	<1	<1	<2	<1
BH04	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<0.5	<1	<1	<1	<1	<2	<1
	0 - 0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	-	-	-	-	-	-	- 1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		×
BH06	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	< <u>i</u>	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	< 0.5	<1	<1	<1	<1	<2	<i< td=""></i<>
BH07	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<0.5	<1	<1	<1	<1	<2	<1
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	< 0.5	<1	<1	<1	<1	<2	<1
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	<1	1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<1	<0.5	<1	<1	<1	<1	<2	<1
BH09	0.5 - 0.6	21/07/2010	FILL	-			-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-		-
8H10	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	-	•	*	7	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	~		^	٣	-
8H10	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SANDSTONE	-	-	~		-	~	-	-	-	-	-			<u>^</u>	-	-
	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	FILL			-	-	-	-	-			-	-		-	-		-
8H12	0.3 - 0.4	21/07/2010	SILTY CLAY	-	-	-	-			-				-		-	-	-	-
BH13	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	CLAYEY SAND	~	~	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	•	~	-
8H14	0 - 0.1	21/07/2010	SAND	-		•	~	-		-	-	-	-	~	-	1	~		-
8H15 SS01	0 - 0.1 0 - 0.1	21/07/2010 31/07/2010	FILL CLAYEY SAND	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-

	Not the Second	an ta ta An	. NA BABA			H	eavy Met	als in TC	LP							· · · · ·	
			en fotbalen andere en	Arsenic	cadmin	Chromium (III+VI)	Copper		Mercury	Nickel	Zinc.	Acenaphthene	Acenaphthylene	Anthracene	Benz(a)anthracene	Benzo(a) pyrene	Benzo(b)&(k)fluoranthene
	la Altala da	a, an tara ku	No. 2012	mq/L	mq/L	ma/L	mq/L	mq/L	mq/L	mq/L	mq/L	mg/L	ma/L	mq/L	mg/L	mg/L	
LOR	enter alteretteret	1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 1999, 19	se en el conserva de la conserva de La conserva de la cons	0.05	0.01	0.01	0.01	0.03	0.0005	0.02	0.02	0.001	0.001	0.001	0.001	0.001	0.002
	Depth (m)	Date	Matrix														
BH02	0.0-0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	< 0.05	< 0.01	< 0.01	0.02	< 0.03	< 0.0005		0.3	< 0.001	<0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.002
BH04	0.0-0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	< 0.05	< 0.01	< 0.01	0.02	<0.03	< 0.0005		0.5	<0.001	<0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.002
BH06 BH08	0.0-0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<0.05	<0.01	<0.01 <0.01	0.04	<0.03 <0.03	<0.0005	<0.02 <0.02	0.2	<0.001 <0.001	<0.001	<0.001	<0.001 <0.001	<0.001 <0.001	< 0.002
10ANO	10.0-0.1	121/07/2010	ILICE	<0.05	<u>_ &lt;0.01</u>	<u> </u>	0.02	<0.03	[<0.0005]	<0.0Z	<u> </u>	<0.001	1 < 0.001	1 < 0.001	<0.001	<0.001	<0.002

.

				L		He	eavy Met	als in AS	LP								
				Arsenic	Cadmium	Chromium (III+VI)	Copper	Lead	Mercury	Nickel	Zinc	Acenaphthene	Acenaphthylene	Anthracene	Benz(a)anthracene	Benzo(a) pyrene	Benzo(b)&(k)fluoranthene
				աց/Լ	hd/r	µg/L	µq/L	hð\r	uq/L	nd/F	ug/L	mg/L	ma/L	mq/L	mq/L	ma/L	mg/L
LOR	10	In-t-		<u> </u>	0.1	1	L	<u> </u>	0.5	<u> </u>	L1	0.001	0.001	0.001	0.001	0.001	0.002
	Depth (m)	Date	Matrix	<u> </u>					······								
	0.0-0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	<1	0,3	<1	12	4	< 0.5	8	290	<0.001	<0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	<0.001	< 0.002
BH04	0.0-0.1	20/07/2010	FILL	2	< 0.1	/	10	5	< 0.5	3	250	<0.001	<0.001	< 0.001	<0.001	<0.001	< 0.002
<u>BH06</u>	0.0-0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	2	0.2	2	18	5	< 0.5	1	230	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	<0.001	< 0.001	< 0.002
BH08	0.0-0.1	21/07/2010	FILL	<1	0.2	2	8	3	< 0.5	2	190	<0.001	<0.001	<0.001	<0.001	< 0.001	< 0.002



Appendix A Site Photographs

# Appendix A – Site Photographs



Photo 1 – View from the west to the east of the main residence.



Photo 2 – View of the south-eastern corner of the main residence to the north.



Photo 3 – View from the south of the storage shed to the north.



**Photo 4** – Materials stored within the storage shed in the western portion of the site.



**Photo 5** – Materials stored within the garage in the western portion of the site.



**Photo 6** – View of the northern wall of the garage to the south.



Photo 7 – View of the western wall of "The Cottage" to the south-east.



Photo 8 – Stables present within "The Cottage".



Photo 9 – View to the north-west of the sealed pavement within the western portion of the site.



**Photo 10** – View of the northern wall Jay-R-Stud Stable to the south.


Photo 11 – View within the Jay-R-Stud stable.



Photo 12 - View to the north-west of the stable in the central portion of the site.



**Photo 13** – View to the north-west of the stable located in the south-western portion of the site.



**Photo 14** – View to the south-west of the vacant residence located in the south-eastern portion of the site.



Photo 15 – A suspected 'zelemite' electrical backing board on the western exterior wall of the vacant residence.



**Photo 16** – View to the south-east of the garage located to the east of the vacant residence.



**Photo 17** – View to the north-west from the south-eastern portion of the site.



**Photo 18** – View to the east of the eastern site boundary in the south-eastern portion of the site.



**Photo 19** – View of the eastern wall to the west of the secondary residence located in the northern portion of the site.



Photo 20 – A stable and cubby house to the west of the secondary residence.



Photo 21 – View to the south of paddock fencing across the northern portion of the site.



Photo 22 – Fencing present along the western site boundary.



Photo 23 - The pond located in the south-eastern portion of the site.



**Photo 24** – The derelict shed and mounted shipping container located in the southern portion of the site.



Photo 25 – Stockpiled timber located in the southern portion of the site.



Photo 26 - Stockpiled tree cuttings located in the southern portion of the site.



Photo 27 – View to the west of the pond located in the western portion of the site.



Appendix B

### **Groundwater Bore Search**

# **Tahmoor Bore Locations**

#### Map created with NSW Natural Resource Atlas - http://www.nratlas.nsw.gov.au

#### Monday, July 26, 2010



# Leaend

Legena		
Symbol	Layer	Custodian
<ul> <li>Primary/arterial road</li> <li>Motorway/freeway</li> <li>Railway</li> <li>Runway</li> <li>Contour</li> <li>Background</li> </ul>	Topographic base map	
<b>©</b>	Groundwater Bores	
$\sim$	Major rivers	
o	<b>Cities and large towns</b> renderImage: Cannot build image from features	
(Cana)	Populated places renderImage: Cannot build image from features	
0	Towns	

Copyright © 2010 New South Wales Government. Map has been compiled from various sources and may contain errors or omissions. No representation is made as to its accuracy or suitability.

.

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW008537

### Works Details (top)

**GROUNDWATER NUMBER GW008537** LIC-NUM **AUTHORISED-PURPOSES** INTENDED-PURPOSES **IRRIGATION** WORK-TYPE Bore open thru rock WORK-STATUS (Unknown) **CONSTRUCTION-METHOD** Cable Tool **OWNER-TYPE** Private COMMENCE-DATE COMPLETION-DATE 1947-01-01 FINAL-DEPTH (metres) 65.50 DRILLED-DEPTH (metres) 0.00 CONTRACTOR-NAME **DRILLER-NAME** PROPERTY GWMA GW-ZONE STANDING-WATER-LEVEL SALINITY VIELD

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
RIVER-BASIN	212 - HAWKESBURY RIVER
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	9029-4S
GRID-ZONE	56/1
SCALE	1:25,000
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	(Unknown)
NORTHING	6211214.00
EASTING	277989.00
LATITUDE	34 12' 59"
LONGITUDE	150 35' 24"
GS-MAP	0075C1

AMG-ZONE 56 COORD-SOURCE GD.,ACC.MAP REMARK

### Form-A (top)

COUNTYCAMDENPARISHCOURIDJAHPORTION-LOT-DP245

### Licensed (top)

no details

#### Construction (top)

Negative depths indicate Above Ground Level;H-Hole;P-Pipe;OD-Outside Diameter; ID-Inside Diameter;C-Cemented;SL-Slot Length;A-Aperture;GS-Grain Size;Q-Quantity

HOLE- NO	PIPE- NO	COMPONENT- CODE	COMPONENT- TYPE	DEPTH- FROM (metres)	DEPTH- TO (metres)	OD (mm)	ID (mm)	INTERVAL	DETAIL
1	1	Casing	Threaded Steel	-0.20	5.80	152			Suspended in Clamps

### Water Bearing Zones (top)

no details

### Drillers Log (top)

no details

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

-

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW034687

## Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW034687
LIC-NUM	10BL027100
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	NOT KNOWN
INTENDED-PURPOSES	NOT KNOWN
WORK-TYPE	Well
WORK-STATUS	(Unknown)
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	(Unknown)
OWNER-TYPE	Private
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	6.00
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	0.00
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	N/A
GWMA	
GW-ZONE	<b>F</b> m
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	
SALINITY	
<b>YIELD</b>	

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
RIVER-BASIN	212 - HAWKESBURY RIVER
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	9029-4S
GRID-ZONE	56/1
SCALE	1:25,000
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	(Unknown)
NORTHING	6209000.00
EASTING	278221.00
LATITUDE	34 14' 11"
LONGITUDE	150 35' 31"
GS-MAP	0075C1

AMG-ZONE 56 COORD-SOURCE GD.,ACC.MAP REMARK

### Form-A (top)

COUNTYCAMDENPARISHCOURIDJAHPORTION-LOT-DP232

### Licensed (top)

COUNTY CAMDEN PARISH COURIDJAH PORTION-LOT-DP 232

### Water Bearing Zones (top)

no details

Drillers Log (top)

no details

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

.

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

-

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW038074

## Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW038074
LIC-NUM	10BL029771
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	TEST BORE
INTENDED-PURPOSES	IRRIGATION
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	Supply Obtained
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	(Unknown)
OWNER-TYPE	Private
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	60.90
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	0.00
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	N/A
GWMA	-
GW-ZONE	-
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	
SALINITY	
YIELD	

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
RIVER-BASIN	212 - HAWKESBURY RIVER
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	9029-4S
GRID-ZONE	56/1
SCALE	1:25,000
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	(Unknown)
NORTHING	6209215.00
EASTING	278216.00
LATITUDE	34 14' 4"
LONGITUDE	150 35' 31"
GS-MAP	0075C1

AMG-ZONE 56 COORD-SOURCE GD.,ACC.MAP REMARK

### Form-A (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	COURIDJAH
PORTION-LOT-DP	232

### Licensed (top)

COUNTY CAMDEN PARISH COURIDJAH PORTION-LOT-DP 232

#### Construction (top)

Negative depths indicate Above Ground Level;H-Hole;P-Pipe;OD-Outside Diameter; ID-Inside Diameter;C-Cemented;SL-Slot Length;A-Aperture;GS-Grain Size;Q-Quantity

HOLE- NO	PIPE- NO	COMPONENT- CODE	COMPONENT- TYPE	DEPTH- FROM (metres)	DEPTH- TO (metres)	OD (mm)	ID (mm)	INTERVAL	DETAIL
1	1	Casing	(Unknown)	0.00	0.00	152			(Unknown)

#### Water Bearing Zones (top)

no details

Drillers Log (top)

no details

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

.

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW042788

# Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW042788
LIC-NUM	10BL105286
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC IRRIGATION STOCK
INTENDED-PURPOSES	IRRIGATION
WORK-TYPE	Bore open thru rock
WORK-STATUS	(Unknown)
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	Cable Tool
OWNER-TYPE	Private
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	1976-11-01
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	148.00
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	148.00
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	N/A
GWMA	<b>.</b>
GW-ZONE	-
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	
SALINITY	
YIELD	

## Site Details (top)

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
RIVER-BASIN	212 - HAWKESBURY RIVER
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	9029-4S
GRID-ZONE	56/1
SCALE	1:25,000
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	(Unknown)
NORTHING	6210315.00
EASTING	280417.00
LATITUDE	34 13' 30"
LONGITUDE	150 36' 58"
GS-MAP	0075C1

Print Report

-

AMG-ZONE 56 COORD-SOURCE GD.,ACC.MAP REMARK

.

### Form-A (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	COURIDJAH
PORTION-LOT-DP	85

### Licensed (top)

COUNTY CAMDEN PARISH COURIDJAH PORTION-LOT-DP NOT AVAILABLE

### Construction (top)

Negative depths indicate Above Ground Level;H-Hole;P-Pipe;OD-Outside Diameter; ID-Inside Diameter;C-Cemented;SL-Slot Length;A-Aperture;GS-Grain Size;Q-Quantity

HOLE- NO	PIPE- NO	COMPONENT- CODE	COMPONENT- TYPE	DEPTH- FROM (metres)	DEPTH- TO (metres)	OD (mm)	ID (mm)	INTERVAL	DETAIL
1	1	Casing	Threaded Steel	-0.30	5.80	164			Suspended in Clamps

### Water Bearing Zones (top)

FROM- DEPTH (metres)	TO- DEPTH (metres)	THICKNESS (metres)	ROCK-CAT- DESC	D- S-W-L D- L		TEST- HOLE- DEPTH (metres)	DURATION	SALINITY
105.00	105.50	0.50	Consolidated	100.00	0.25			(Unknown)
114.00	115.30	1.30	Consolidated	98.00	0.56			(Unknown)
120.00	121.50	1.50	Consolidated	98.00	0.83			(Unknown)
133.00	135.20	2,20	Consolidated	98.00	1.52			(Unknown)

### Drillers Log (top)

FROM	то	THICKNESS	DESC
0.00	0.20	0.20	Topsoil
0.20	1.40	1.20	Shale Clay
1.40	5.60	4.20	Sandstone Yellow
5.60	13.70	8.10	Sandstone Grey
13.70	34.00	20.30	Sandstone Yellow
34.00	39.00	5.00	Sandstone
39.00	62.00	23.00	Sandstone Yellow
62.00	76.00	14.00	Sandstone Grey
76.00	105,00	29.00	Sandstone Yellow

#### GEO-MATERIAL COMMENT

\_

105.00 105.50 0.50	Sandstone White Open Water Supply
105.50 114.00 8.50	Sandstone White
114.00 115.30 1.30	Sandstone White Open Water Supply
115.30 120.00 4.70	Sandstone White
120.00 121.50 1.50	Sandstone White Open Water Supply
121.50 126.00 4.50	Sandstone White
126.00 126.50 0.50	Shale
126.50 133.00 6.50	Sandstone White
133.00 135.30 2.30	Sandstone Grey Open Water Supply
135.30 148.00 12.70	Sandstone Grey

.

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

~

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW067606

### Works Details (top)

**GROUNDWATER NUMBER GW067606** LIC-NUM **AUTHORISED-PURPOSES** INTENDED-PURPOSES DOMESTIC FARMING STOCK WORK-TYPE Bore WORK-STATUS (Unknown) **CONSTRUCTION-METHOD** Cable Tool OWNER-TYPE Private COMMENCE-DATE COMPLETION-DATE 1989-10-03 FINAL-DEPTH (metres) 150.00 DRILLED-DEPTH (metres) 150.00 CONTRACTOR-NAME DRILLER-NAME PROPERTY GWMA GW-ZONE STANDING-WATER-LEVEL SALINITY YIELD

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
RIVER-BASIN	212 - HAWKESBURY RIVER
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	
GRID-ZONE	
SCALE	
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	
NORTHING	6212095.00
EASTING	282421.00
LATITUDE	34 12' 34"
LONGITUDE	150 38' 18"
GS-MAP	

AMG-ZONE 56 COORD-SOURCE GD.,ACC.GIS REMARK

## Form-A (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	WILTON
PORTION-LOT-DP	L5 DP243079

### Licensed (top)

no details

## Construction (top)

Negative depths indicate Above Ground Level;H-Hole;P-Pipe;OD-Outside Diameter; ID-Inside Diameter;C-Cemented;SL-Slot Length;A-Aperture;GS-Grain Size;Q-Quantity

.

HOLE- NO	PIPE- NO	COMPONENT- CODE	COMPONENT- TYPE	FROM	DEPTH- TO (metres)	00 (mm)	ID (mm)	INTERVAL	DETAIL
1	1	Casing	Galvinised Steel	-0.30	6.20	168			Driven into Hole

\_

# Water Bearing Zones (top)

FROM- DEPTH (metres)	TO- DEPTH (metres)	THICKNESS (metres)	ROCK-CAT- DESC	S-W- D L L	VIELD	TEST- HOLE- DEPTH (metres)	DURATION SALINITY
98.50	98.80	0.30	Consolidated	98.00	0.30		
140.70	141.90	1.20	Consolidated	94.00	2.50		

# Drillers Log (top)

FROM	то	THICKNESS	DESC	GEO-MATERIAL COMMENT	
0.00	0.30	0.30			
0.30	4.80	4.50	Shale & Clay		
4.80	13.10	8.30	Grey Sandstone		
13.10	27.40	14.30	Yellow Sandstone		
27.40	35.80	8.40	Brown Sandstone		
35.80	36.10	0.30			
36.10	98.50	62.40	Grey Sandstone		
98.50	98.80	0.30	Grey Sandstone (w.b.)		
98.80	140.70	41.90	Grey Sandstone		
140.70	141.90	1.20	Grey Sandstone (w.b)		
141.90	150.00	8.10	Grey Sandstone		

. . . . . . . .

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

~

.

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

-

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW102482

### Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW102482
LIC-NUM	10BL156727
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	MONITORING BORE
INTENDED-PURPOSES	MONITORING BORE
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	(Unknown)
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	
OWNER-TYPE	
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	1995-01-01
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	17.00
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	N/A
GWMA	
GW-ZONE	
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	
SALINITY	
YIELD	

### Site Details (top)

REGION **10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST RIVER-BASIN** AREA-DISTRICT CMA-MAP GRID-ZONE SCALE ELEVATION **ELEVATION-SOURCE** NORTHING 6212276.00 EASTING 281217.00 LATITUDE 34 12' 27" LONGITUDE 150 37' 31" GS-MAP

AMG-ZONE 56 COORD-SOURCE REMARK .

#### Form-A (top)

no details

### Licensed (top)

COUNTY CAMDEN PARISH COURIDJAH PORTION-LOT-DP LOT2 DP234883

### Water Bearing Zones (top)

no details

### Drillers Log (top)

no details

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

~

.

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

-

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW102483

# Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW102483
LIC-NUM	10BL156727
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	MONITORING BORE
INTENDED-PURPOSES	MONITORING BORE
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	(Unknown)
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	
OWNER-TYPE	
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	1995-01-01
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	21.60
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	N/A
GWWA	**
GW-ZONE	••
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	
SALINITY	
YIELD	

### Site Details (top)

REGION **10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST RIVER-BASIN** AREA-DISTRICT CMA-MAP **GRID-ZONE** SCALE ELEVATION **ELEVATION-SOURCE** NORTHING 6212193.00 EASTING 280297.00 34 12' 29" LATITUDE 150 36' 55" LONGITUDE GS-MAP

AMG-ZONE 56 COORD-SOURCE REMARK

### Form-A (top)

no details

### Licensed (top)

COUNTYCAMDENPARISHCOURIDJAHPORTION-LOT-DPLOT2 DP234883

### Water Bearing Zones (top)

no details

### Drillers Log (top)

no details

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

-

\*

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

\_

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW103235

### Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW103235
LIC-NUM	10BL160354
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC STOCK
INTENDED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	Supply Obtained
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	(Unknown)
OWNER-TYPE	Private
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	1995-09-20
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	134.00
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	134.00
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	N/A
GWMA	**
GW-ZONE	*
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	
SALINITY	160.00
YIELD	0.23

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
RIVER-BASIN	212 - HAWKESBURY RIVER
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	9029-4S
GRID-ZONE	56/1
SCALE	1:25,000
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	
NORTHING	6208708.00
EASTING	281471.00
LATITUDE	34 14' 23"
LONGITUDE	150 37' 38"
GS-MAP	

AMG-ZONE 56 COORD-SOURCE REMARK

### Form-A (top)

COUNTYCAMDENPARISHBARGOPORTION-LOT-DP91//869494

### Licensed (top)

COUNTY CAMDEN PARISH BARGO PORTION-LOT-DP 91 869494

#### Construction (top)

Negative depths indicate Above Ground Level;H-Hole;P-Pipe;OD-Outside Diameter; ID-Inside Diameter;C-Cemented;SL-Slot Length;A-Aperture;GS-Grain Size;Q-Quantity

.

HOLE- NO	PIPE- NO	COMPONENT- CODE	COMPONENT- TYPE	DEPTH- FROM (metres)	DEPTH- TO (metres)	OD (mm)	ID (mm)	INTERVAL	DETAIL
<b>4</b>		Hole	Hole	132.00	168.00	138			Down Hole Hammer
Ŷ	1	Casing	PVC Class 9	0.01	3.00	150			Driven into Hole; Open End

.

# Water Bearing Zones (top)

FROM- DEPTH (metres)	TO- DEPTH (metres)	THICKNESS (metres)	ROCK- CAT- DESC	S- W- L	D-D-L	VIELD	TEST- HOLE- DEPTH (metres)	DURATION	SALINITY
66.00	67.00	1.00			68,00	0.08		1.00	160.00
128.00	129.00	1.00			130.00	0.15		1.00	160.00
138.00	139.00	1.00			140.00	0.08		5.00	160.00
144.00	145.00	1,00			146.00	0.17		5.00	160.00
148.00	149.00	1.00			150.00	0.25		5.00	450.00

## Drillers Log (top)

FROM	то	THICKNESS	DESC	GEO-MATERIAL	COMMENT
0.00	1.00	1.00	soil		
1.00	2.10	1.10	shales, dry		
2,10	48.00	45.90	sandstone		
48.00	49.10	1.10	shale		
49.10	64.40	15.30	sandstone		

64.40	64.90	0.50	shale
64.90	121.00	56.10	sandstone
121.00	122.00	1.00	shale
122.00	134.00	12.00	sandstone
132.00	150.00	18.00	sandstone
150.00	163.00	13.00	shale
163.00	167.00	4.00	sandstone, fine
167.00	168.00	1.00	shale

.

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

~

-

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

-

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW104558

# Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW104558
LIC-NUM	10BL160727
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC
INTENDED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	Supply Obtained
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	Rotary
OWNER-TYPE	Private
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	2002-12-11
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	186.00
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	186.00
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	N/A
GWMA	**
GW-ZONE	
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	103.00
SALINITY	
YIELD	0.26

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
RIVER-BASIN	212 - HAWKESBURY RIVER
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	9029-4S
GRID-ZONE	56/1
SCALE	1:25,000
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	(Unknown)
NORTHING	6211841.00
EASTING	282447.00
LATITUDE	34 12' 42"
LONGITUDE	150 38' 19"
GS-MAP	

AMG-ZONE 56 COORD-SOURCE REMARK

## Form-A (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	WILTON
PORTION-LOT-DP	LT8 DP243079

# Licensed (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	WILTON
PORTION-LOT-DP	8 243079

### Construction (top)

Negative depths indicate Above Ground Level;H-Hole;P-Pipe;OD-Outside Diameter; ID-Inside Diameter;C-Cemented;SL-Slot Length;A-Aperture;GS-Grain Size;Q-Quantity

÷

HOLE- NO	NO	COMPONENT- CODE	COMPONENT- TYPE	DEPTH- FROM (metres)	DEPTH- TO (metres)	OD (mm)	ID (mm)	INTERVAL	DETAIL
1		Hole	Hole	0.00	36.00	205			Down Hole Hammer
1		Hole	Hole	36.00	186.00	165			Down Hole Hammer
1	1	Casing	PVC Class 9	-0.50	36.00	160	148		

L

.

## Water Bearing Zones (top)

FROM- DEPTH (metres)	TO- DEPTH (metres)	THICKNESS (metres)	ROCK- CAT- DESC	D S-W-L D L		TEST- HOLE- DEPTH (metres)	DURATION SALINITY
125.00	126.00	1.00		103.00	0.17	126.00	0.50
140.00	141.00	1.00		103.00	0.16	141.00	0.50
149.00	150.00	1.00		103.00	0.26	150.00	0.50

## Drillers Log (top)

FROM	TO	THICKNESS	DESC	GEO-MATERIAL	COMMENT
0.00	3.00	3.00	CLAY AND SOIL		
3.00	16.00	13.00	WHITE SANDSTONE		
16.00	18.00	2.00	SANDSTONE 10% SHALE		
18.00	32.00	14.00	YELLOW SANDSTONE		
32.00	33.00	1.00	YELLOW SANDSTONE AND 10%SHALE		
33.00	36.00	3.00	YELLOW SANDSTONE		

36.00 38.00	2.00	YELLOW SANDSTONE AND SHALE
38.00 48.00	10.00	YELLOW SANDSTONE
48.00 49.00	1.00	SHALE AND SANDSTONE
49.00 62.00	13.00	WHITE SANDSTONE
62.00 64.00	2.00	SHALE AND SANDSTONE
64.00 163.00	99.00	WHITE SANDSTONE
163.00 186.00	23.00	WHITE SANDSTONE AND 10%SHALE

.

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

\_

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

-

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW105148

# Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW105148
LIC-NUM	10BL157090
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC STOCK
INTENDED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC STOCK
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	Supply Obtained
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	Rotary Air
OWNER-TYPE	Private
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	1995-09-21
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	120.00
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	120.00
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	N/A
GWMA	**
GW-ZONE	-
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	33.00
SALINITY	250.00
YIELD	0.30

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
RIVER-BASIN	212 - HAWKESBURY RIVER
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	9029-4S
GRID-ZONE	56/1
SCALE	1:25,000
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	(Unknown)
NORTHING	6209733.00
EASTING	278006.00
LATITUDE	34 13' 47"
LONGITUDE	150 35' 24"
GS-MAP	

AMG-ZONE 56 COORD-SOURCE REMARK

### Form-A (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	COURIDJAH
PORTION-LOT-DP	LT 2 DP 236262

### Licensed (top)

COUNTY CAMDEN PARISH COURIDJAH PORTION-LOT-DP 2 236262

### Construction (top)

Negative depths indicate Above Ground Level;H-Hole;P-Pipe;OD-Outside Diameter; ID-Inside Diameter;C-Cemented;SL-Slot Length;A-Aperture;GS-Grain Size;Q-Quantity

•

HOLE- NO	PIPE- NO	COMPONENT- CODE	COMPONENT- TYPE	DEPTH- FROM (metres)	DEPTH- TO (metres)	OD (mm)	ID (mm)	INTERVAL	DETAIL
1		Hole	Hole	0.00	5.40	210			Down Hole Hammer
1		Hole	Hole	5.40	120.00	158			Down Hole Hammer
1	4	Casing	Steel	-0.50	5.50	168.3	158.7		C:1- 5.4m; Driven into Hole

-

# Water Bearing Zones (top)

FROM- DEPTH (metres)	TO- DEPTH (metres)	THICKNESS (metres)	ROCK- CAT- DESC	S-W- L	D- D- L	YIELD	TEST- HOLE- DEPTH (metres)	DURATION	SALINITY
50.60	51.20	0.60				0.60	54.00	0.25	500.00
83.50	84.80	1.30				0.40	84.00	0.25	330.00
111.30	112.70	1.40				0.50	114.00	0.25	260.00
116.30	117.50	1.20		33.00		0.30	120.00	0.25	250.00

# Drillers Log (top)

FROM	τo	THICKNESS	DESC	GEO-MATERIAL COMMENT
0.00	0.40	0.40	TOPSOIL	
0.40	3.20	2.80	CLAY	
3.20	19.00	15.80	SANDSTONE VARIOUS COLORS	

19.00	29,50	10.50	SANDSTONE BROWN M.G, CLAY MATRIX
29.50	35.20	5.70	SANDSTONE GREY,M.G
35.20	36.10	0.90	SILTSTONE/QUARTZ
36.10	38.50	2.40	SANDSTONE, BROWN, QUARTZ MATRIX
38.50	50.60	12.10	SANDSTONE GREY COARSE
50.60	51.20	0.60	WATER BEARING QUARTZ LAYER
51.20	57.00	5.80	SANDSTONE L/GREY, QUARTZ MATRIX
57.00	58.60	1.60	SILTSTONE
58.60	71.50	12.90	SANDSTONE GREY M.G CEMENTED
71.50	71.80	0.30	SILTSTONE
71.80	73.50	1.70	SANDSTONE GREY M.G CEMENTED
73.50	73.90	0.40	WATER BEARING QUARTZ LAYER
73.90	75.50	1.60	SANDSTONE GREY, C.G QUARTZ MATRIX
75.50	83,50	8.00	SANDSTONE LT GREY C.G CEMENTED
83.50	84.80	1.30	WATER BEARING QUARTZ LAYER
84.80	87.80	3.00	SANDSTONE LT GREY C.G CEMENTED
87.80	98.60	10.80	SANDSTONE GREY M.G CEMENTED
98.60	99.80	1.20	SILTSTONE
99.80	111.30	11.50	SANDSTONE GREY M.G CEMENTED
111.30	112.70	1.40	WATER BEARING QUARTZ LAYER
112.70	116.30	3.60	SANDSTONE GREY M.G CEMENTED
116.30	117.50	1.20	WATER BEARING QUARTZ LAYER
117.50	120.00	2.50	SANDSTONE GREY M.G CEMENTED
	· · ·		

.

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

-
For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

.

\_

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW105787

## Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW105787
LIC-NUM	10BL161740
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC STOCK
INTENDED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC STOCK
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	Supply Obtained
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	Down Hole Hammer
OWNER-TYPE	Private
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	2002-12-06
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	126.00
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	126.00
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	MATHEWS
GWMA	*
GW-ZONE	54
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	80.00
SALINITY	
VIELD	0.38

10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
212 - HAWKESBURY RIVER
9029-4S
56/1
1:25,000
(Unknown)
6209593.00
282092.00
34 13' 55"
150 38' 3"

AMG-ZONE56COORD-SOURCEGIS - Geographic Information SystemREMARK

\*

#### Form-A (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	WILTON
PORTION-LOT-DP	426//1014221

## Licensed (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	WILTON
PORTION-LOT-DP	426 1014221

#### Construction (top)

Negative depths indicate Above Ground Level;H-Hole;P-Pipe;OD-Outside Diameter; ID-Inside Diameter;C-Cemented;SL-Slot Length;A-Aperture;GS-Grain Size;Q-Quantity

HOLE- NO	PIPE. NO	COMPONENT- CODE	COMPONENT- TYPE	DEPTH- FROM (metres)	DEPTH- TO (metres)	OD (mm)	ID (mm) INTERV	AL DETAIL
1		Hole	Hole	0.00	6.00	205		Down Hole Hammer
1		Hole	Hole	6.00	126.00	150		Down Hole Hammer
1	1	Casing	PVC Class 9	-0.30	6.00	161	148	Seated on Bottom; Open End
1		Annulus	Concrete	0.10	6.00	205	150	

۔

## Water Bearing Zones (top)

FROM- DEPTH (metres)	TO- DEPTH (metres)	THICKNESS (metres)	ROCK- CAT- DESC	S-W-D LLL	• YIELD	TEST- HOLE- DEPTH (metres)	DURATION SALINITY	Ŧ
120.40	121.60	1.20		80.00	0.38		3.00	

### Drillers Log (top)

FROM	TO	THICKNESS	DESC	GEO-MATERIAL	COMMENT
0.00	0.20	0.20	topsoil		
0.20	2.80	2.60	gravel, cemented		
2.80	12,20	9.40	sandstone, coarse grained yellow light		
12.20	64.90	52.70	sandstone, coarse grained grey light		
64.90	87.50	22,60	sandstone, coarse grained yelllow darke		
87.50	121.60	34.10	sandstone, coarse grained grey light		

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW105813

#### Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW105813
LIC-NUM	10BL161385
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC STOCK
INTENDED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC STOCK
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	Supply Obtained
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	Down Hole Hammer
OWNER-TYPE	Private
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	2003-03-04
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	168.00
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	168.00
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	KOORANA
GWMA	••
GW-ZONE	-
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	28.00
SALINITY	
YIELD	6.60

#### Site Details (top)

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
RIVER-BASIN	212 - HAWKESBURY RIVER
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	9029-4S
GRID-ZONE	56/1
SCALE	1:25,000
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	(Unknown)
NORTHING	6213106.00
EASTING	279408.00
LATITUDE	34 11' 59"
LONGITUDE	150 36' 21"
GS-MAP	

Print Report

~

AMG-ZONE56COORD-SOURCEGIS - Geographic Information SystemREMARK

.

#### Form-A (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	COURIDJAH
PORTION-LOT-DP	2//207443

#### Licensed (top)

COUNTY CAMDEN PARISH COURIDJAH PORTION-LOT-DP 2 207443

#### Construction (top)

Negative depths indicate Above Ground Level;H-Hole;P-Pipe;OD-Outside Diameter; ID-Inside Diameter;C-Cemented;SL-Slot Length;A-Aperture;GS-Grain Size;Q-Quantity

HOLE- NO	PIPE- NO	COMPONENT- CODE	COMPONENT- TYPE	DEPTH- FROM (metres)	DEPTH- TO (metres)	OD (mm)	ID (mm)	INTERVAL	DETAIL
1		Hole	Hole	0.00	83.00	171			Down Hole Hammer
1		Hole	Hole	83.00	168.00	140			Down Hole Hammer
1	Ţ	Casing	Steel	-0.30	1.00	168			Riveted and Glued; Driven into Hole; Open End
<b>1</b>	1	Casing	PVC Class 9	-0.30	90.00	140			Riveted and Glued; Driven into Hole; Open End

L

#### Water Bearing Zones (top)

FROM- DEPTH (metres)	TO- DEPTH (metres)	THICKNESS (metres)	ROCK- CAT- DESC	S-W-   L	D- D- L	YIELD	TEST- HOLE- DEPTH (metres)	DURATION	SALINITY
114.00	115.00	1.00			t	0.06			Good
146.00	147.00	1.00				1.50			Good
160.00	161.00	1.00		28.00		4.50		1.00	Good

## Drillers Log (top)

FROM	ТО	THICKNESS	DESC	GEO-MATERIAL	COMMENT
0.00	3.00	3.00	clay, dirt		

3.00	32.00	29.00	shale,
32.00	66.00	34.00	sandstone
66.00	72.00	6.00	shale
72.00	84.00	12.00	sandstone
84.00	104.00	20.00	sandstone, shale
104.00	146.00	42.00	sandstone
146.00	168.00	22.00	sandstone, shale

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

----

.

•

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

-

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

## Work Requested -- GW105884

#### Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW105884
LIC-NUM	10BL161087
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC STOCK
INTENDED-PURPOSES	
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	
OWNER-TYPE	
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	2005-05-09
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	N/A
GWMA	"
GW-ZONE	74
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	
SALINITY	
VIELD	

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
RIVER-BASIN	212 - HAWKESBURY RIVER
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	9029-4S
GRID-ZONE	56/1
SCALE	1:25,000
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	(Unknown)
NORTHING	6210112.00
EASTING	281588.00
LATITUDE	34 13' 38"
LONGITUDE	150 37' 44"
GS-MAP	

#### Form-A (top)

COUNTY CAMDEN PARISH WILTON PORTION-LOT-DP 422 1014221

#### Licensed (top)

COUNTY CAMDEN PARISH WILTON PORTION-LOT-DP 422 1014221

#### Water Bearing Zones (top)

no details

Drillers Log (top)

no details

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

J

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

## Work Requested -- GW105944

### Works Details (top)

GW105944
10BL163046
DOMESTIC STOCK
Bore
2005-05-20
PEGGER & CO PTY LTD
**
44;

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
RIVER-BASIN	212 - HAWKESBURY RIVER
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	9029-4S
GRID-ZONE	56/1
SCALE	1:25,000
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	(Unknown)
NORTHING	6209287.00
EASTING	282182.00
LATITUDE	34 14' 5"
LONGITUDE	150 38' 6"
GS-MAP	

#### Form-A (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	WILTON
PORTION-LOT-DP	425 1014221

#### Licensed (top)

COUNTY CAMDEN PARISH WILTON PORTION-LOT-DP 425 1014221

#### Water Bearing Zones (top)

no details

Drillers Log (top)

no details

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

-

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

## Work Requested -- GW109010

#### Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW109010
LIC-NUM	10BL601785
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC STOCK
INTENDED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC STOCK
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	
OWNER-TYPE	Private
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	2008-07-10
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	169.00
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	PESCUD
GWMA	PT
GW-ZONE	
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	89.00
SALINITY	0.69
YIELD	0.80

#### Site Details (top)

**10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST** REGION **RIVER-BASIN** AREA-DISTRICT CMA-MAP **GRID-ZONE** SCALE ELEVATION **ELEVATION-SOURCE** NORTHING 6211781.00 EASTING 278173.00 LATITUDE 34 12' 41" 150 35' 32" LONGITUDE GS-MAP

#### Form-A (top)

COUNTYCAMDENPARISHCOURIDJAHPORTION-LOT-DP20//806833

#### Licensed (top)

COUNTY CAMDEN PARISH COURIDJAH PORTION-LOT-DP 20 806833

#### Water Bearing Zones (top)

no details

Drillers Log (top)

no details

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

-

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

# Work Requested -- GW109224

## Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW109224
LIC-NUM	10BL164076
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC STOCK
INTENDED-PURPOSES	DOMESTIC STOCK
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	
OWNER-TYPE	Private
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	2008-08-18
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	132.00
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	BOISSERY
GWMA	<del></del> .
GW-ZONE	ъл.
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	60.00
SALINITY	
YIELD	1.00

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
RIVER-BASIN	
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	
GRID-ZONE	
SCALE	
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	
NORTHING	6211222.00
EASTING	279140.00
LATITUDE	34 12' 60"
LONGITUDE	150 36' 9"
GS-MAP	

#### Form-A (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	COURIDJAH
PORTION-LOT-DP	122//10669

#### Licensed (top)

COUNTY CAMDEN PARISH COURIDJAH PORTION-LOT-DP 122 10669

### Water Bearing Zones (top)

no details

Drillers Log (top)

no details

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

-

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

-

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

## Work Requested -- GW110435

#### Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW110435
LIC-NUM	10BL602501
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	MONITORING BORE
INTENDED-PURPOSES	MONITORING BORE
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	Rotary Air
OWNER-TYPE	Private
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	2008-05-23
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	100.00
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	100.00
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	TAHMOOR COLLIERY
GWMA	••
GW-ZONE	-
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	55.00
SALINITY	1000.00
YIELD	0.80

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
<b>RIVER-BASIN</b>	
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	
GRID-ZONE	
SCALE	
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	
NORTHING	6209715.00
EASTING	279215.00
LATITUDE	34 13' 49"
LONGITUDE	150 36' 11"
GS-MAP	
·	

#### Form-A (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	COURIDJAH
PORTION-LOT-DP	C//374621

## Licensed (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	COURIDJAH
PORTION-LOT-DP	C 374621

## Construction (top)

Negative depths indicate Above Ground Level;H-Hole;P-Pipe;OD-Outside Diameter; ID-Inside Diameter;C-Cemented;SL-Slot Length;A-Aperture;GS-Grain Size;Q-Quantity

-

~

HOLE- NO	PIPE- NO	COMPONENT- CODE	COMPONENT- TYPE	DEPTH- FROM (metres)	DEPTH- TO (metres)	OD ID (mm) (mm) INTERVAL	DETAIL
1		Hole	Hole	0.00	4.00	225	Rotary Air
1		Hole	Hole	4.00	100.00	115	Rotary Air
1	1	Casing	P.V.C.	0.00	4.00	150	Other
1	1	Casing	P.V.C.	0.00	97.00	50	Riveted and Glued; Seated on Bottom
1	1	Opening	Slots - Horizontal	97.00	100.00	50	PVC Class 18; Casing - Machine Slotted; SL: 3mm; A: 1mm
1		Annulus	Waterworn/Rounded	0.00	0.00		Graded; GS: 100- 105mm

### Water Bearing Zones (top)

FROM- DEPTH (metres)	TO- DEPTH (metres)	THICKNESS (metres)	ROCK- CAT- DESC	S-W- L	D- D- YIE L	TEST- HOLE- DEPTH (metres)	DURATION SALINITY
95.00	96.00	1.00		55.00			1.00

### Drillers Log (top)

FROM	то	THICKNESS	DESC	GEO-MATERIAL	COMMENT
0.00	2.00	2.00	CLAY		
2.00	3.00	1.00	SHALE		
3.00	5.00	2.00	SANDSTONE, SHALE		
5.00	33.00	28.00	SANDSTONE		
33.00	35.00	2.00	MUDSTONE		
35.00	100.00	65.00	SANDSTONE		

.

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

\_

.

For information on the meaning of fields please see <u>Glossary</u> Document Generated on Monday, July 26, 2010

Print Report

\_

Works Details Site Details Form A Licensed Construction Water Bearing Zones Drillers Log

## Work Requested -- GW110436

#### Works Details (top)

GROUNDWATER NUMBER	GW110436
LIC-NUM	10BL602502
AUTHORISED-PURPOSES	MONITORING BORE
INTENDED-PURPOSES	MONITORING BORE
WORK-TYPE	Bore
WORK-STATUS	
CONSTRUCTION-METHOD	
OWNER-TYPE	Private
COMMENCE-DATE	
COMPLETION-DATE	2008-05-27
FINAL-DEPTH (metres)	105.00
DRILLED-DEPTH (metres)	105.00
CONTRACTOR-NAME	
DRILLER-NAME	
PROPERTY	TAHMOOR COLLIERY
GWMA	
GW-ZONE	••*
STANDING-WATER-LEVEL	85.00
SALINITY	822.00
YIELD	0.10

REGION	10 - SYDNEY SOUTH COAST
<b>RIVER-BASIN</b>	
AREA-DISTRICT	
CMA-MAP	
GRID-ZONE	
SCALE	
ELEVATION	
ELEVATION-SOURCE	
NORTHING	6209869.00
EASTING	279363.00
LATITUDE	34 13' 44"
LONGITUDE	150 36' 17"
GS-MAP	

#### Form-A (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	COURIDJAH
PORTION-LOT-DP	1 1128745

### Licensed (top)

COUNTY	CAMDEN
PARISH	COURIDJAH
PORTION-LOT-DP	1 1128745

### Construction (top)

Negative depths indicate Above Ground Level;H-Hole;P-Pipe;OD-Outside Diameter; ID-Inside Diameter;C-Cemented;SL-Slot Length;A-Aperture;GS-Grain Size;Q-Quantity

\*

HOLE- NO	PIPE. NO	COMPONENT- CODE	COMPONENT- TYPE	DEPTH- FROM (metres)	DEPTH- TO (metres)	OD (mm)	ID (mm)	INTERVAL	DETAIL
1		Hole	Hole	0.00	4.30	225			Rotary Air
1		Hole	Hole	4.30	105.00	115			Down Hole Hammer
1	1	Casing	P.V.C.	0.00	4.30	150			Glued; Other
1	1	Casing	P.V.C.	0.00	102.00	50			Riveted and Glued; Seated on Bottom
1	1	Opening	Slots	102.00	105.00	50			PVC Class 18; Sawn; SL: 3mm; A: 1mm

~

#### Water Bearing Zones (top)

FROM- DEPTH (metres)	TO- DEPTH (metres)	THICKNESS (metres)	ROCK- CAT- DESC	Sales .	)- )- YIELO -	TEST- HOLE- DEPTH (metres)	DURATION	SALINITY
90.00	91.00	1.00		84.35	0.10		0.50	822.00

## Drillers Log (top)

FROM	ТО	THICKNESS	DESC	GEO-MATERIAL	COMMENT
0.00	1.00	1.00	TOPSOIL SANDY		
1.00	105.00	104.00	SANDSTONE		

Warning To Clients: This raw data has been supplied to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources (DIPNR) by drillers, licensees and other sources. The DIPNR does not verify the accuracy of this data. The data is presented for use by you at your own risk. You should consider verifying this data before relying on it. Professional hydrogeological advice should be sought in interpreting and using this data.

,

-

,



Appendix C Aerial Photographs



Aerial Photo 1 – Wollongong, Run 4C, 29 June 1969.





Aerial Photo 3 - Wollongong 1984 1:15,000 Colour, Run 11, 24 October 1984.



Aerial Photo 4 – Wollongong 1:25,000 Approx. Scale, Run 6, 4 January 1994.



Aerial Photo 5 – Wollongong 1:25,000 Approx. Scale, Run 6, 20 December 2005.



Appendix D DECCW Records

,



,

#### You are here: <u>Home</u> > <u>Contaminated land</u> > <u>Record of EPA notices</u> > Search the record

A A Cel

-

## Search the contaminated land record

Search 1			
To narrow your search, ent	ter information into more th	an one field.	
LGA	Wolfondilly Shire Councif		
Subard	- You hay set an a pabala		
Notice Type Name	You may select a notice type		
Text of Notices		tice recipient)	
Date from:			
	(Enter date as dd/mm/yyyy	/)	 
	Search Reset	or	
search tips			
		*******	}
Search 2			
Jearun 2			
Enter a notice number or a	rea number. —— Search —— Reset ——		 
		or	
Search 3			
This searches both the data and the text of all the notic To broaden your search typ more words.	es.		
Search Reset			 26 July 2010
<u>search tips</u>			

NSW Government | jobs.nsw



#### You are here: Home > Contaminated land > Record of EPA notices

A A K

-

## Search results

Your search for: LGA: Wollondilly Shire Council

Matched 1 notice relating to 1 site.

Search Again Refine Search

Suburb	Address	Site Name	Notices related to this site
Maldon	Lot 2 Wilton Park Road	Blue Circle Southern Cement, Maldon	1 current
Page 1 of 1			26 July 2010

,

NSW Government | jobs.nsw



~

You are here: Home > Environment protection licences > POEO Public Register > Search for licences, applications and notices

A A Det

-

## Search the public register (POEO) for licences, applications or notices

You must e	enter a value in at least one field.
Name	·
	(can be licence holder, applicant, premises or notice recipient)
Sabab	
LGA	WOLLONDILLY
Cardiologia	Adde see subord is welled.
Activity Type	All - or select from list
	* indicates activity has been removed from schedule or incorporated into another activity type. See the Protection of the Environment Operations Amendment (Scheduled Activities and Waste) Regulation 2008 for further information.
Licence Type	All- of select from list
Application Type	All - or select from list
Notice Type	All - or select from list
	Search Reset
search tips	
	pr download
	premises still regulated by the DECC
list of all lig	<u>cences</u>

or

Go directly to a licence, application or notice summary			
Document number			
Search Reset			

26 July 2010

NSW Government | jobs.nsw



You are here: Home > Environment protection licences > POEO Public Register > Search for licences, applications and notices

A A Con

\_

## Search Results

Your search for: LGA - WOLLONDILLY

~

#### matched

32 licences (with applications or notices matching your search) plus 34 notices (where no licence is available online. See fag.)

		Search again	Return to previous page
Document number	Name	Address	Status
12498	ALLIED MILLS AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED licence summary	330 Picton Road MALDON 2571	Issued
421	AMITIE PTY LIMITED licence summary	610 MORETON PARK ROAD MENANGLE 2568	Surrendered
126	BAINES MASONARY BLOCKS PTY LTD licence summary	900 WILTON ROAD APPIN 2560	Issued
4705	BAINES TRANSPORT PTY LTD licence summary	900 WILTON ROAD APPIN 2560	No longer in force
212	BLUE CIRCLE SOUTHERN CEMENT LTD licence summary	40 MALDON BRIDGE ROAD MALDON 2571	Issued
641	BURRAGORANG VALLEY COAL PTY LIMITED licence summary	BURRAGORANG ROAD NATTAI 2570	Issued
7588	CONCRITE PTY LTD licence summary	LOT 11 REDBANK PLACE PICTON 2571	No longer in force
5357	EDL CSM (NSW) PTY LTD licence summary	DOUGLAS PARK DRIVE DOUGLAS PARK 2569	Issued
5482	EDL CSM (NSW) PTY LTD licence summary	NORTHHAMPTON DALE ROAD APPIN 2560	Issued
2504	ENDEAVOUR COAL PTY LIMITED licence summary	DOUGLAS PARK DRIVE DOUGLAS PARK 2569	Issued
2504	ENDEAVOUR COAL PTY LIMITED licence summary	OFF APPIN ROAD APPIN 2560	Issued
2504	ENDEAVOUR COAL PTY LIMITED licence summary	WEDDERBURN ROAD APPIN 2560	Issued
398	ENDEAVOUR COAL PTY LIMITED licence summary	DOUGLAS PARK DRIVE DOUGLAS PARK 2569	Surrendered
758	ENDEAVOUR COAL PTY LIMITED	OFF APPIN ROAD APPIN 2560	Surrendered
11768	ENVIROGEN PTY LIMITED licence summary	REMEMBRANCE DRIVEWAY TAHMOOR 2573	Issued
12990	ENVIRONMENTAL TREATMENT SOLUTIONS PTY LTD licence summary	Unit 12, 7-10 Technology Drive APPIN 2560	Issued
4142	ERARING ENERGY licence summary	VALVE HOUSE ROAD WARRAGAMBA 2752	Surrendered
42	HANSON CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS PTY LTD licence summary	85 BRIDGE STREET PICTON 2571	No longer in force
12998	HI-QUALITY QUARRY (NSW) PTY LTD licence summary	440 Burragorang Road GLENMORE 2570	Issued
1462	HI-QUALITY QUARRY (NSW) PTY LTD licence summary	NORTONS BASIN ROAD WARRAGAMBA 2752	Issued

Page 1 of 4

1<u>234</u>

26 July 2010

NSW Government | jobs.nsw



r

You are here: Home > Environment protection licences > POEO Public Register > Search for licences, applications and notices

A A Ke

-

### Search Results

Your search for: LGA - WOLLONDILLY

~

matched

32 licences (with applications or notices matching your search) *plus* 34 notices (where no licence is available online. <u>See fag.</u>)

		Search again	1 Return to previous page
Document number	Name	Address	Status/Notice type
11636	INGHAMS ENTERPRISES PTY LIMITED licence summary	345 APPIN ROAD APPIN 2560	Issued
1699	INGHAMS ENTERPRISES PTY LIMITED licence summary	ROCKFORD ROAD TAHMOOR 2573	Issued
7604	STATE OF NEW SOUTH WALES (DEPARTMENT OF PRIMARY INDUSTRIES) <u>licence summary</u>	WOODBRIDGE ROAD MENANGLE 2568	No longer in force
10555	SYDNEY WATER CORPORATION licence summary	REMEMBRANCE DRIVE PICTON 2571	Issued
11504	SYDNEY WATER CORPORATION licence summary	THE TOWNSHIP OF BELIMBLA PARK 2570	Surrendered
12235	SYDNEY WATER CORPORATION licence summary	including the STP at NORTONS BASIN ROAD WALLACIA 2745	Issued
1778	SYDNEY WATER CORPORATION	END OF WEIR ROAD WARRAGAMBA 2752	Surrendered
1389	TAHMOOR COAL PTY LTD licence summary	REMEMBRANCE DRIVE TAHMOOR 2573	Issued
2387	THE SCOUT ASSOCIATION OF AUSTRALIA licence summary	BADEN POWELL DRIVE APPIN 2560	Surrendered
3417	TJ & RF FORDHAM PTY LTD licence summary	BURRAGORANG ROAD MOUNT HUNTER 2570	Surrendered
422	WOLLONDILLY ABATTOIRS PTY LIMITED licence.summary	48 KOORANA ROAD PICTON 2571	Issued
4390	WOLLONDILLY SHIRE COUNCIL licence.summary	WOLLONDILLY SHIRE COUNCIL PICTON 2571	Issued
6061	WOLLONDILLY SHIRE COUNCIL licence summary	ANTHONY ROAD BARGO 2574	Issued
6062	WOLLONDILLY SHIRE COUNCIL licence summary	PRODUCTION AVE WARRAGAMBA 2752	Issued
010374	"BROWNLOW HILL" notice summary	LOOP ROAD THERESA PARK 2570	S 80 Surrender Licence
010369	"GROVE FARM" notice summary	SILVERDALE ROAD WALLACIA 2750	S 80 Surrender Licence
009558	BARGO CONFERENCE CENTRE notice summary	44-46 HAMBRIDGE ROAD BARGO 2574	S 80 Surrender Licence
008945	BORAL RESOURCES (COUNTRY) PTY LIMITED notice summary	LOT 31 WILTON ROAD MALDON 2571	S 80 Surrender Licence
008266	BRIMSTONE COLLIERY notice summary	RIDGE ROAD OAKDALE 2570	S 58 Licence Variation
008537	BRIMSTONE COLLIERY notice summary	RIDGE ROAD OAKDALE 2570	S 58 Licence Variation

Page 2 of 4

26 July 2010

<u>1234</u>

NSW Government | jobs.nsw



•

You are here: Home > Environment protection licences > POEO Public Register > Search for licences, applications and notices

A A Car

## Search Results

#### Your search for: LGA - WOLLONDILLY

matched

32 licences (with applications or notices matching your search) *plus* 34 notices (where no licence is available online. <u>See fag</u>)

		Search agair	Return to previous page	
Document number	Name	Address	Notice type	
008694	BRIMSTONE COLLIERY notice summary	RIDGE ROAD OAKDALE 2570	S 58 Licence Variation	
011189	BRIMSTONE COLLIERY notice summary	RIDGE ROAD OAKDALE 2570	S 79 Revoke Licence	
009417	BUXTON PUBLIC SCHOOL notice summary	HASSAL ROAD BUXTON 2571	S 80 Surrender Licence	
011097	COUNCIL EFFLUENT PONDS notice summary	CHARLIES POINT ROAD BARGO 2574	S 80 Surrender Licence	
010425	DUKE ENERGY INTERNATIONAL - BROUGHTON PASS WEIR notice summary	WILTON ROAD BROUGHTON PASS 2571	S 91 Clean-Up Notice	
010760	DUKE ENERGY INTERNATIONAL - BROUGHTON PASS WEIR notice summary	WILTON ROAD BROUGHTON PASS 2571	S 91 Clean-Up Notice	
009561	ECONOMY CONCRETE TANKS notice summary	ESTONIAN ROAD THIRLMERE 2572	S 80 Surrender Licence	
008936	GOURMET FOODS PTY LTD notice summary	LOT 2 ECONO PLACE SILVERDALE 2752	S 80 Surrender Licence	
1001365	HILLCREST PARK PIGGERY notice summary	610 MORETON PARK ROAD MENANGLE 2568	S 58 Licence Variation	
010323	INGHAMS ENTERPRISES PTY LIMITED MALDON HATCHERY notice summary	LOT 2, MENANGLE ROAD MALDON 2571	S 80 Surrender Licence	
010325	INGHAMS ENTERPRISES PTY LTD notice summary	CROSS STREET TAHMOOR 2573	S 80 Surrender Licence	
011098	LOTS 28, 44, 45 AND 61 notice summary	AVOCA ROAD SILVERDALE 2752	S 80 Surrender Licence	
010318	MOBIL OIL AUSTRALIA LIMITED notice summary	LOTS 12 - 14 SOUTH WESTERN FREEWAY PHEASANTS NEST 2574	S 80 Surrender Licence	
008964	NEPEAN QUARRIES PTY LTD notice summary	LOT 2 WEROMBI ROAD ORANGEVILLE 2570	S 80 Surrender Licence	
008937	PICTON VILLAGE MOTEL notice summary	1665 REMBERANCE DRIVEWAY PICTON 2571	S 80 Surrender Licence	
009608	S & G WATLING HAULAGE notice summary	110 STEVEYS FOREST ROAD OAKDALE 2570	S 80 Surrender Licence	
011113	SILVERDALE CHILD CARE CENTRE	131 TAYLORS ROAD SILVERDALE 2752	S 80 Surrender Licence	
008339	SILVERDALE RIFLE RANGE notice summary	LOT 76 AVOCA ROAD SILVERDALE 2750	S 80 Surrender Licence	
011245	SYDNEY SOIL TECHNOLOGY PTY LTD notice summary	250 AVOCA ROAD SILVERDALE 2752	S 80 Surrender Licence	
010363	THE OWNERS STRATA PLAN NO 39840 notice summary	5-7 WINPARA PLACE TAHMOOR 2573	S 80 Surrender Licence	

Page 3 of 4

<u>1234</u>

26 July 2010

NSW Government | jobs.nsw



You are here: Home > Environment protection licences > POEO Public Register > Search for licences, applications and notices

A A Ge

-

### Search Results

Your search for: LGA - WOLLONDILLY

-

#### matched

32 licences (with applications or notices matching your search) *plus* 34 notices (where no licence is available online. <u>See faq</u>)

		Search aga	in Return to previous page
Document number	Name	Address	Notice type
008928	UNIVERSITY OF SYDNEY - CAMDEN CAMPUS notice summary	WEROMBI ROAD CAMDEN 2570	S 80 Surrender Licence
009018	VERNAVILLE PASTORAL CO.VERNAVILLE PIGGERY notice summary	SPRING CREEK ROAD SPRING CREEK 2570	S 80 Surrender Licence
008691	WARRAGAMBA DAM notice summary	- WARRAGAMBA 2752	S 58 Licence Variation
010893	WARRAGAMBA DAM notice summary	- WARRAGAMBA 2752	S 58 Licence Variation
011296	WARRAGAMBA DAM notice summary	- WARRAGAMBA 2752	S 58 Licence Variation
009683	WEST CLIFF COLLIERY notice summary	WEDDERBURN ROAD APPIN 2560	S 58 Licence Variation
010681	WILTON METER STATION notice summary	ASHWOOD ROAD WILTON 2571	S 80 Surrender Licence
011217	WOLLONDILLY COUNCIL WORK DEPOT notice_summary	MARGARET STREET PICTON 2571	S 80 Surrender Licence

Page 4 of 4

<u>123</u>4

26 July 2010

NSW Government | jobs.nsw

4



Appendix E Title Records

 $\sim$  Search  $\sim$ έ. Al River Read Tahmoor Being dets A&B in DP 369710, Lets 85086 in DP 75 1270 Title Tree 85/751270 86/75127 A/369710 B/369710 V. 6207 F.165 V. 6208 F.14 V. 10441 F.90 V. 10614 F.21 V. 2923 F. 87 7/10. TS Title Searching Co. EXTABLIAHED 1949
$\sim$  Search  $\sim$ re River Road Tahmoer Being Lots A + B in DA 369710 Icheduce of Registered Proprietors er Edward Knauer le Creek, Picten Alexander of thystle Lown Grant V. 2928 F. 8 Cas 11/3/1919 TACHT9184 Frederick Knauer Regard /10/36 of Xahmoor 2923 - 87 The C867477 James Stone Reg 30/1/40 Of Picton Sahouser « V 2923 F. 87 Matilda Grace Stone, his wife Jenners Title & Barching Co. E&TABLI&HED 1949

~ Search ~ Oca Tahmoer <u>369710</u> Ce of Rega Proprietors TRA N. 8.23349) <u>'aughlaw</u> Vinited Properties eg 1/5/70 6207 F.165 Joan alice Heighier ton 4 M 903545 29 28 /4/72 L 6207 F. 165 r N307863 ty. Vinited Keg 9/7/73 (daligna V. 6207 F. 165) stiments 1 <u>~5/69363 ~</u> Joan Th Reg 20/11/80 N.6207 F.165 IR+AA60222T leg 30/4/2004 - Tessonian Pity. Ximited 1369-110 13 ර් Title රිearching Co. ESTABLISHED 1949

 $\sim$  Search  $\sim$ Reing Let 85 in DP 751270 Schedule of Rega Maprictors Trawn Grant The Commercial Banking Company of Sydner V. 1044/F. 90 as Mitge from Robert Glenner Stunk 28/10/66 & Jennifer May Dunk Her L 859931 Robert Glenney Quink Reg 5/6/70 of Tahmoor Coal Miner + V. Toyur F. 90 Jennifer May Quink his wife ArN60535 John Kors Chibb Kla 5/2/73 V. 10441 F. 90 mpany Diector A. AB65877 Tessonian Pty. Xta 1. <u>85/751270</u> 13/7/10.  $\Pi \subset 1$  igodot Title & earching Co. ESTABLIAHED 1949

 $\sim$  Search  $\sim$ re Kiver Road Tahmoor Being Let 86 in DP 7512 Le 751270 tule of Kega Passie James Steve sown Grant Kosenkels V. 10614 1-219 9 |8/67 lan Propertie's Pty. Limited Ar 1, 823348 129 H /5/70 V.10614 Faig KAN 903545 Jean Uli ce Xui 2928/9/72 V106141.219) Married IN 307863 mited 29 9/7/73 1 10614 Faig Kr 5169363 20020/11/80 restments Xmited \$10614.F.219 1/ AA602221 1 86/75/270 Tessonian Pty. Limted 175/279 MJ 13/2 10 1月101る Title & arching Co. ESTABLIAHED 1949



enners Title Searching Co.



Jenners Title Searching Co. hereby certifies that the information contained in this document has been provided electronically by the Registrar General in accordance with Section 96B(2) of the Real Property Act.

Information provided through Tri-Search an approved LPINS# Information Broker

LAND AND PROPERTY INFORMATION NEW SOUTH WALES - TITLE SEARCH

FOLIO: A/369710

SEARCH DATE	TIME	EDITION NO	DATE
13/7/2010	9:39 AM	4	26/9/2007

LAND

LOT A IN DEPOSITED PLAN 369710 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA WOLLONDILLY PARISH OF COURIDJAH COUNTY OF CAMDEN TITLE DIAGRAM DP369710

FIRST SCHEDULE

TESSONIAN PTY LIMITED

(T AA602221)

SECOND SCHEDULE (3 NOTIFICATIONS)

- 1 LAND EXCLUDES MINERALS AND IS SUBJECT TO RESERVATIONS AND
- CONDITIONS IN FAVOUR OF THE CROWN SEE CROWN GRANT(S)
- 2 AA816324 MORTGAGE TO PERMANENT NOMINEES (AUST) LIMITED
- AD441563 VARIATION OF MORTGAGE AA816324
- \* 3 AF433675 CAVEAT BY JOHN MARTIN CAMILLERI

NOTATIONS

UNREGISTERED DEALINGS: NIL

\*\*\* END OF SEARCH \*\*\*

**JBS-Tahmoor** 

PRINTED ON 13/7/2010



Jenners Title Searching Co.



Jenners Title Searching Co. hereby certifies that the information contained in this document has been provided electronically by the Registrar General in accordance with Section 96B(2) of the Real Property Act. Information provided through Tri-Search an approved LPINSW Information Broker

LAND AND PROPERTY INFORMATION NEW SOUTH WALES - TITLE SEARCH

FOLIO: B/369710

··· ··· ··· ··· ···

SEARCH DATE	TIME	EDITION NO	DATE
13/7/2010	9:38 AM	3	26/9/2007

### LAND

LOT B IN DEPOSITED PLAN 369710 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA WOLLONDILLY PARISH OF COURIDJAH COUNTY OF CAMDEN TITLE DIAGRAM DP369710

FIRST SCHEDULE

TESSONIAN PTY LTD

(T AB65877)

SECOND SCHEDULE (3 NOTIFICATIONS)

1 LAND EXCLUDES MINERALS AND IS SUBJECT TO RESERVATIONS AND CONDITIONS IN FAVOUR OF THE CROWN - SEE CROWN GRANT(S)

2 AB65878 MORTGAGE TO PERMANENT NOMINEES (AUST) LIMITED

- AD441549 VARIATION OF MORTGAGE AB65878
- 3 AF433675 CAVEAT BY JOHN MARTIN CAMILLERI

### NOTATIONS

:/

UNREGISTERED DEALINGS: NIL

\*\*\* END OF SEARCH \*\*\*

JBS-Tahmoor

PRINTED ON 13/7/2010





enners Title Searching Co.



Jenners Title Searching Co. hereby certifies that the information contained in this document has been provided electronically by the Registrar General in accordance with Section 96B(2) of the Real Property Act.

Information provided through Tri-Search an approved LPINSW Information Broker

LAND AND PROPERTY INFORMATION NEW SOUTH WALES - TITLE SEARCH 

FOLIO: 85/751270

-----

SEARCH DATE	TIME	EDITION NO	DATE
13/7/2010	9:39 AM	3	26/9/2007

LAND

LOT 85 IN DEPOSITED PLAN 751270 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA WOLLONDILLY PARISH OF COURIDJAH COUNTY OF CAMDEN (FORMERLY KNOWN AS PORTION 85) TITLE DIAGRAM CROWN PLAN 1608.2041

FIRST SCHEDULE 

TESSONIAN PTY LTD

(T AB65877)

SECOND SCHEDULE (4 NOTIFICATIONS)

1 LAND EXCLUDES MINERALS AND IS SUBJECT TO RESERVATIONS AND

CONDITIONS IN FAVOUR OF THE CROWN - SEE CROWN GRANT(S) EXCEPTING LAND BELOW A DEPTH FROM THE SURFACE OF 15.24 METRES 2

3 AB65878 MORTGAGE TO PERMANENT NOMINEES (AUST) LIMITED AD441549 VARIATION OF MORTGAGE AB65878

40 4 AF433675 CAVEAT BY JOHN MARTIN CAMILLERI

NOTATIONS \_\_\_\_

UNREGISTERED DEALINGS: NIL

\*\*\* \*\*\* END OF SEARCH

JBS-Tahmoor

PRINTED ON 13/7/2010

Req:E786808 /Doc:CP 1608-2041 /Rev:1-May-2009 /Sts:OK.OK /Prt:13-Jul-2010 09:46 /Pgs:ALL /Seq:1 of 1 Ref:JBS-Tahmoor /Src:T

PORTION 85 PLAN 0 F County of Camiden Parish of Couridjah Applied for under the 26" Clouse of the C. L. Rel of 1884 by Gottlobb Mangold 86/923 CP 85 36 11 Jugnst . Continmed. 9-7-55 torsaided (Sp.L.13.7. Bicton. James Stone & Matilda Grace Stone. NowACP 48.3 Aug. 13\* (Conv?) Approved Sls.30/142 Now The Commencial Banking Company of Sydney Limited. Sale completed Ten 64/6717 Stant Iming to Survece and Vigith of Sofeet. PLAN MICROFILMED Original plan indicates NO ADDITIONS OR AMENDMENTS TO BE MAD bank is the portion boundary ADDED FOR MICROFILM RURPOSES Diagram Scale 10 chains to an (169. 86 J.F. Knauer 1601 (1.85.) 84 85 84 121 ac: R. 19. 40 3 XY IFKnaue and John Hand CL 85-2 100% Sele In the survey of for 3 (m. 1864 by 5 3 J. Gamphell ) the M. I conver (1<sup>3)</sup> \$v Inot tound by M? Haka Servicently J. Watson por 84 por 10 Traverse Asimulatakon hun por. 84 Reference to Corners 14 331 85 620 in control that I in proving have and on the 14 Md. 86 have the miny representation with 14 an or which up on the bearings and unights if the last measures by und the charge that the survey have been exceeded in a word. 1 6 241 0. 7.000 195 .... 01 gum 5 20147 202 16 259 0 đ, 103 35 Sty bark 59 the invidionia \$15 554 1608.2041 Miesnythelake in<sup>1</sup> office 124 Х dill Value of Improvements Til Situated in the Campten Land C 1608 204 March Alarch Scala 20 Chains to an Inch-



enners Title Searching Co.



Jenners Title Searching Co. hereby certifies that the information contained in this document has been provided electronically by the Registrar General in accordance with Section 96B(2) of the Real Property Act.

Information provided through Tri-Search an approved LPINSW Information Broker

LAND AND PROPERTY INFORMATION NEW SOUTH WALES - TITLE SEARCH 

FOLIO: 86/751270

. \_ \_ \_ \_ \_

SEARCH DATE	TIME	EDITION NO	DATE
13/7/2010	9:39 AM	4	26/9/2007

LAND

LOT 86 IN DEPOSITED PLAN 751270 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA WOLLONDILLY PARISH OF COURIDJAH COUNTY OF CAMDEN (FORMERLY KNOWN AS PORTION 86) TITLE DIAGRAM CROWN PLAN 3516,2041

FIRST SCHEDULE

------

TESSONIAN PTY LIMITED

(T AA602221)

SECOND SCHEDULE (4 NOTIFICATIONS)

- 1 LAND EXCLUDES MINERALS AND IS SUBJECT TO RESERVATIONS AND
- CONDITIONS IN FAVOUR OF THE CROWN SEE CROWN GRANT(S)
- 2 EXCEPTING LAND BELOW A DEPTH FROM THE SURFACE OF 15,24 METRES
- AA816324 MORTGAGE TO PERMANENT NOMINEES (AUST) LIMITED 3
- AD441563 VARIATION OF MORTGAGE AA816324 \*\* 4
- AF433675 CAVEAT BY JOHN MARTIN CAMILLERI

NOTATIONS

UNREGISTERED DEALINGS: NIL

합았습 END OF SEARCH \*\*\*

JBS-Tahmoor

PRINTED ON 13/7/2010

Req:E786809 /Doc:CP 3516-2041 /Rev:1-May-2009 /Sts:OK.OK /Prt:13-Jul-2010 09:46 /Pgs:ALL /Seq:1 of 1 Ref:JBS-Tahmoor /Src:T

Papers L. B. 36; 311 Cancels plan C1605 Within State Cost Mine Reidled: 9 4.43 to a depth of 50 feet. 7# Sept 1917 137/200 14 5 43 PLAN OF PORTION 86 (Remarking) Parish of Couridjah County of Camden LAND DISTRICT OF PICTON LAND BOARD DISTRICT OF SYDNEY. WOLLONDILLY SHIRE Applied for under the 75<sup>th</sup> Section of the Crown Lands Consolidation Act 1913 by Frederick Knauer Par. 86: Sp. L. 36-12 Ferfelled to the frederic (sector) Sector State 9:2 40 Revoked 17-14. S. do 56 L. 40-2, James Storie, par 0.00 121 June 2514 (Conver) Sale, completed Ten 67-1053 Grant Winited to surface and depth of 50 feet D limited 84 C /607 A.A.E.Knauer 66ac C1605 2049/1111 85 own Land 100 ac.ex rd. 100 ac PLAN MICROFILMED Azimuth taken from Northarin Bay For 85 Field Book 1.D\_858 Fages\_ 23, 6 28 .... Poul Kaig Reference to Corners ากไปเราเรา จะเ 14-14 From Links I er. Dre **O**vn Reference to Traverse 96 05 ronbark 97.7 A 150 00 Bottle Cha BUS and the xxa15•0 ₿ 305 37 Gum 19 4 have beer 294 597 89 0122 454 567 80 22 333 00 Bonie Ch ₿ eal S Ċ 161 04 Gum 20.1 D 291 09 Ironburk 30.0 regist iubseribert and g ponulla. A. Sela Improvemente Cal. Book.Nº Scale 10 Chains to an Inch. 516.204 ni chàng <u>C35/6-20</u> Assessed Statedard Tracks Cat Nº



# Jenners Title Searching Co.



.

Jenners Title Searching Co. hereby certifies that the information contained in this document has been provided electronically by the Registrar General.

Information provided through Tri-Search an approved LPINSW Information Broker

LAND AND PROPERTY INFORMATION NEW SOUTH WALES - HISTORICAL SEARCH

SEARCH DATE 13/7/2010 9:39AM

FOLIO: A/369710

First Title(s): SEE PRIOR TITLE(S) Prior Title(s): VOL 6207 FOL 165

Recorded	Number	Type of Instrument	C.T. Issue
2/9/1989		TITLE AUTOMATION PROJECT	LOT RECORDED FOLIO NOT CREATED
13/11/1989		CONVERTED TO COMPUTER FOLIO	FOLIO CREATED CT NOT ISSUED
31/10/2003	AA118037	CAVEAT	
27/4/2004	AA590041	APPLN FOR REPLACEMENT CT	EDITION 1
30/4/2004 30/4/2004	AA602220 AA602221	WITHDRAWAL OF CAVEAT TRANSFER	EDITION 2
507 17 2001	F VF V W W das tie die ste	E TAVE A CALL AND TA	
22/7/2004	AA816324	MORTGAGE	EDITION 3
26/9/2007	AD441563	VARIATION OF MORTGAGE	EDITION 4
15/4/2010	AF433675	CAVEAT	

\*\*\* END OF SEARCH \*\*\*

JBS-Tahmoor

PRINTED ON 13/7/2010

N Box:27 Reg:C086937 /Doc:CT 06207-165 /Rev:27-Feb-2009 /Sts:OK.OK /Prt:13-Jul-2010 11:08 /Pgs:ALL /Seg:1 of

containing Thirty nine acres three roods or thereabouts as shown in the plan hereon and therein edged red being Lot A in plan annexed to the said Instrument of Transfer No. 7201023 and being part of Portion 84 originally granted to Albert Alexander , 19 50. surrendered as to Residue after Transfer No. 7201023 are now the proprietors of an Östate in Fee Simple as Joint Tenante subject nevertheless to the reservations and conditions, if any, contained in the Grant hereinafter referred to, and also subject to such  $\geq$ Tol. 165 JAMES STORE of Ficton, Labourer, and MATLIDA GRACE STORE, his wife, by virtue of Grown Grant Volume 2923 Rolio 87 nom RESIDUE AFTER TRANSFER NO. F. 201 6207 165 ORIER NO. F. 201024" "" CERTYFICATE.OF TITLE. CANCELLED ON ISSUE OF NEW FOLIO A TOWART TWIOL , and County of Canden October 0.40 day of Vol. Whard Knauer by Crown Grant dated the 11th day of March, 1919 Yolume 2923 Folio 87. in witnees whereof I have bereunte signed my name and allixed my Seal, this Twenty-seve<del>nt</del>h piece of land situated Dew South Wales. Parish of Couridian 369710 encumbrances, liens, and interests as are notfled hereon, in guat in the Shire of Wollondilly 6 Signed in the presence of Fol. Grant Reference to Vol. 2923 Appn. No. GRM

Ø

Esgistrar-Genera

2 Box:27 Req:C086937 /Doc:CT 06207-165 /Rev:27-Feb-2009 /Sts:OK.OK /Frt:13-Jul-2010 11:08 /Pgs:ALL /Seq:2 of

}

ja K

20 b 67 ALC: N 7 Grine! 102.00 o顶 0.14 COURTS Tricontinented 1258.900 REGISTRAR GENERAL RUNSPRAR GENERAL 1803 MERCENCE COMPANY RECONTRAR GENERAL Care and 19.8ª 1.22 L C. C. C. C. Grander' ß Nortgage All --Ş 00000 につい С Ú を会われなど、いって男子 المسلوة متناسر ميروم ملام المرالي المسك enec 「シーバー」 Ú. PORSE 10 S. A. S i O 5169.364 in not the se 15. 12: 19% 3 induction rochard × 2500 のしてい W 5/63 ļ J 7.00 7 \* now that metersand hemotioner of the land withhis has shad Ç 19 now the registered proprietor of the land within described. has been discharged 5 R. Herephing tam of Campbun, Married د ع McKee . - ALLE daned 27 Nolus Ę REGISTRAR GENERAL REGISTRAR GENERAL REGISTRAR GENERAL maria (<sup>1</sup>) Enterred <u>ک</u> -- MORTGAGE dared 2/ (Tace mulacos <u>mecsi546</u> - 49 ---dimited to 19 martar Plance See TRANSFER No 19 40 354 5 HawDonch Enterned a Stry September Entured 2.8 Tentemper dricia isangrel DECTRON t B 7 MORTGAGE No-.. الموز 10 M 403546 ern Altre Solicius. Woman w 10.00 TANA 9  $\sum_{i=1}^{n}$ NO. ୍

Ð

. (



## Jonners Title Searching Co.



Jenners Title Searching Co. hereby certifies that the information contained in this document has been provided electronically by the Registrar General.

Information provided through Tri-Search an approved LPIASII Information Broker

LAND AND PROPERTY INFORMATION NEW SOUTH WALES - HISTORICAL SEARCH

SEARCH DATE 13/7/2010 9:40AM

FOLIO: B/369710

First Title(s): SEE PRIOR TITLE(S) Prior Title(s): VOL 6208 FOL 14

Recorded	Number	Type of Instrument	C.T. Issue
2/9/1989		TITLE AUTOMATION PROJECT	LOT RECORDED FOLIO NOT CREATED
'11/1989		CONVERTED TO COMPUTER FOLIO	FOLIO CREATED CT NOT ISSUED
31/10/2003	AA118038	CAVEAT	
3/11/2004 3/11/2004	AB65875 AB65876 AB65877 AB65878	WITHDRAWAL OF CAVEAT DISCHARGE OF MORTGAGE TRANSFER MORTGAGE	
3/11/2004	AB65879	MORTGAGE	EDITION 1
1/6/2005	AB519309	DISCHARGE OF MORTGAGE	EDITION 2
26/9/2007	AD441549	VARIATION OF MORTGAGE	EDITION 3
15/4/2010	AF433675	CAVEAT	

\*\*\* END OF SEARCH \*\*\*

**JBS-Tahmoor** 

PRINTED ON 13/7/2010

N Box:27 Reg:C086938 /Doc:CT 06208-014 /Rev:27-Feb-2009 /Sts:OK.OK /Frt:13-Jul-2010 11:07 /Fgs:ALL /Seg:1 of

containing Sixty acres one rood or thereabouts as shown in the plan hereon and therein edged red being lot B in plan annexed Knaver by Crown Grent dated the 11th day of March, 1914 Volume 2923 Folio 87. Excepting out of the said piece of land to the said Instrument of Transfer No. F201025 and being part of Portion 84 originally grapted to Albert Alexander Edgard the road coloured brown in the plan hereon the Brea of which is not included in the above stated area of 60 acres I rood. subject neverlheless to the reservations and conditions, if any, contained in the Grant hereinafter referred to, and also subject to such . Ju - Č. FRIC CORDM GLEWARDSS GRMT of Tahmoor, Clerk and EM EMNICE GRAMP, his wife, Transferees under Instrument of Transfer 04'9 1-1251) CERTIFICATE OF TITLE. ÷ , and County of Camden REATSTER BOOK. 6208 Fol. 1 Zegistrar-General. JOINT TEMACY Carl Frank Twenty-seventh day of October Vol. ۲. ا No. F201023 are now the proprietors of an Estate in Fee Simple as Joint Tenantes.... piece of land situated hew South Wales. Parish of Couridjah lu withe se whereof I have hereunto signed my name and affixed my Seal, this encumbrances, liens, and interests as are notified hereon, in That in the Shire of Wollondilly 87 Signed in the presence of ľoľ. Reference to Grant EN L 2923 ( (Appn. No. Vol SE S ે

۲., ۲.,

Robert W.C. ....

1





. A

ŝ

hefore these Presents are issued and of all and singular the premises WE HAVE GRANTED and for Us Our Heirs and Successors Do Herirar Grant and the said . Allow Allow bolucord Mincurk lin Heirs and Assigns Subject to the Reservations and Exceptions hereinafter ocntained AIL TEAT Place or Parcel of Land in Our suid State be the same more or less Dow Itation He That for and in consideration of the soid sum for and on Our behalf well and truly paid into the Treasury of Our said State [LAND GRANT.] N X and a certificate of compliance with the conditions Sterling being the purchase money phyable for the said Land has been duly paid into the Office of the Treasurer to a grant of the fee simple of the soid Land Subject to the Reservations and Exceptions bereination contained have been done and performent in Our State of New South Wales claims to be entitled to the Parcel of Land Dereination described in varue of a Conditional Purchase of the GEOROC O, by the Scare of Oad, of the Umith Augdom of Srat. Britain and Frelaid, and of the British Bominions lepond the Seis, at the William SALB. liverity we deel NAV. Louel Herem 2923 For **CANCELLED 1** CONDITIONAL CO ALT-to-whom these Arrents shall come, Strumt:--Ring, Defender of the Fath, Emocrat of Endias the right bould of allight Over ionel heart by the our lundred and of Our said State And all things required by law to be done to entitle the said Afted Abreador Endirered our hundred pound Sof Alexandro Edward Anauer of Mighle breek Parton and Parish of Concurated tate of Ach South Wales. 1821 BY Conners Berne on the been issued Zafa Whitteds the sum of **PURCHASED** day of Quand HEHHAM lauch ad of 1874. lo orimnen end Rundred acted LAND ILLS MAI ÷. Otte nalo nano a Course eull same applied for on the Avelle-OF I applicable to such purchase under the Provisions of the No. 1918/ containing by admenture situated in the county of GRANT üdiberens 🕤 C 12 85 3 CCF00 Since 1 Jan., 85, C.P.

Box:27 Req:C092284 /Doc:CT 02923-087 /Rev:31-Oct-2008 /Sts:OK.OK /Frt:14-Jul-2010 10:49 /Pgs:ALL /Seq:1 of

N

Box:27 Req:C092284 /Doc:CT 02923-087 /Rev:31-Oct-2008 /Sts:OK.OK /Prt:14-Jul-2010 10:49 /Pgs:ALL /Seg;2 of 2





# Jenners Title Searching Co.



Jenners Title Searching Co. hereby certifies that the information contained in this document has been provided electronically by the Registrar General.

Information provided through Tri-Search an approved LPINSW Information Broker

LAND AND PROPERTY INFORMATION NEW SOUTH WALES - HISTORICAL SEARCH

SEARCH DATE 13/7/2010 9:40AM

FOLIO: 85/751270

-

Prio	r Title(s):	VOL 10441 FOL 90	
Recorded	Number	Type of Instrument	C.T. Issue
3/12/1988		TITLE AUTOMATION PROJECT	LOT RECORDED FOLIO NOT CREATED
/2/1989		CONVERTED TO COMPUTER FOLIO	FOLIO CREATED CT NOT ISSUED
11/8/1998	5188657	DEPARTMENTAL DEALING	
31/10/2003	AA118038	CAVEAT	
3/11/2004 3/11/2004		WITHDRAWAL OF CAVEAT DISCHARGE OF MORTGAGE TRANSFER MORTGAGE	
3/11/2004	AB65879	MORTGAGE	EDITION 1
1/6/2005	AB519309	DISCHARGE OF MORTGAGE	EDITION 2
26/9/2007	AD441549	VARIATION OF MORTGAGE	EDITION 3
15/4/2010	AF433675	CAVEAT	

\*\*\* END OF SEARCH \*\*\*

First Title(s): SEE PRIOR TITLE(S)

**JBS-Tahmoor** 

PRINTED ON 13/7/2010

NEW BOUTH WALES New South Wales ie dly Ho, 1965/2543 Vol. 1 0 4 Registered 28 -11-1968 STAMP DUTY SYDNEY, N.S.W. Registrar General. GRANT OF LAND E0. HERE ARE ARE ARE SECONDA by the Gener of God at the Monte Min B. A. C. Man atter Rentino and Territories Queen, Head of the Commonwealth, Elender of the Spatthe 0441 To All to talpan these Brevents shall come, Greetings-C.P. 1948/3 PICTOR SEE AUYO FOLIO HUITERES THE COMMENCENT BANKING COMPANY OF SYDNEY LINTIGD (herainafter malled the GRAVIES) to the holder of Additional Condi-A DESCRIPTION OF Z tional Purchase No. 1948/3 in the Land District of Ficton in Our State of New South Sulen comprising the land hereinafter described \_ and intended to be hereby granted limited to the surface thereof and to a doubt of fifty feet below such aufface which holding man Bacquired by way of conversion of a Special Lense not being a Special Lesse granted over an expired Conditional Lesse the holder of which had failed to emply for extension of the term NHD NHEBEAS the sum of mixty mix pounds thirteen shillings and four pance bring the purchase money psymble for the said land has been duly peid and all things required by law to be done to estitle the GRANTER to FICATION HEREON a Grant of the foo simple of the said Land subject to the Repertations Exceptions and Conditions hereinafter contained have been done and performed NOW THESE PARSENTS WITNESS That in consideration of the premises WE BO WENERSY CHART unto the CRANTES Subject to the Reservations Exceptions and Conditions hereinsiter contained ALL THAT parcel of land in Our suid State containing by admonauitment one hundred mores be the same more or less situated in the County of Cambon Parish of Couridian Portion 65 as shown in plan びるいない D catalogued No. 0.7608-2041 in the Department of Lands Attention in directed to the provisiona of Section 272 of the Crown Linux Consolidation Act, 1913, as umended 86 telating to testrictions on trasfer. טוש קו 2010 3652 Attention is directed to the notification In the Gavaniment Caretta Unice 11th Logy 1923 85 /Req: C086939 /Doc: CT 10441-090 /Prt: 13-Jul-2010 whereiv the Grown Land commised in the 2 bed of the Barge River and the Benean River has been reserved from Side of Lease, and to the provisions of Section 188 of the Gauss Lands Consolidation Act, 1913. 84 100ac 調査 192 170 ALTER GRM. AGAINST PERSONS ARE CAUTIONED Hiturss Our Governor of Our State of New South Wales and its Цß Dependencies in the Commonwealth of Australia, at Sydney in Our said State, this twenty eighth In the fifteenth day of October veaŕ XL of Our Reign and in the year of Our Lord one Thousand nine hundred and sixty Bix A. R. Butler Governor FOR ENDORSEMENTS SEE PAGE 2 Sector and the sector of the

			議約 4 ()	age	2	of 2	i pa	ges)	्रम् ।	i. i			Ĩ	<u>₹</u>		ع			2	1	2.55	.⇒.vr Vc	i.y		1	<u>) 4</u>	4	<u> </u>	۴	ol		<u>90</u>	))) 	· · · ·	1 1	5
	33 37	С. Ч.			ŀ.	l ,				1			1 1044		3			, ,	ĸ			. r						Ċ	it in	رالتهان	boon	Cole				
		•				.	•							- Cart					WATURE .									-	5	<u></u> R	R. S.	2	- 			
	1 		ļ					+	-									;	I									•	POS.	98S	J.	8 len				
NOTE: ENTRIES: RULED: THROUGH AND AUTHENTICATED BY THE SEAL		`.			÷								al co all	- C.J.			X 7 7 7 1 1 1		NSTRUMENT WUNKE					-				ĺ	2	1 1 N	Zui	nay				
		•			-		-	+					51 13	સા					-									Ì	3		la a	duen				
													8				191 51 51	,	DATE						C		, )	;	0	an i	, ż	A Co	.			1111 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 1
			 				-	-			-		11 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1			7	п					SER					9 77 89			Citory			REG			
		:			• • •								1	N I I			0 1 1 0	לי ס				SEE AUTO FOLIO								ا بد		ed an	REGISTERED PROPRIETOR			
ULED -		•.										-,	manonues									HIGH					49 66 70		1	<u>v</u> .	. ·	madr	O PROP			
HROUG		·••••	.  .  .				•						Luces	000000	1+		, cl	<del>ر</del> ت				63				. <b>N</b> 1928 3246	8			Gm		toat	RIETOR			
HALID					۶,														¥4											5 200			:			
MUIN	e - 25	••••	.										Dem					***	PARTICULARS	SCHEDULE OF									0			TALA.		SCHEDU		
an c		· · · ·			<b>:</b> `								- A	6 21-6		the second			ß	ULE OI							.	-		L.		and		ILE OF		
C.L.													Ulla	2,1		ł		r C		EHCU							.		:	5.1		- Area	•	REGIS		
HES													France			24	C			MBRAN									•	1		marca		TERED		
EAL-DI		````	·   ·				·							. 121215			r -	1		ENCUMBRANCES ETC.										÷.		177	`	PROPR		í
OFSTREAM		2 					•		;					ک ۲ ب		1				<u>ר</u> ן													 	SCHEDULE OF REGISTERED PROPRIETORS	<b>,</b> .	
<b>EGIST</b>		3											() = 19. 2 C	1 1 1 1 1					ENTERED											Tanis	Jose		W		Í	
AR (EI)								- 								:			<b> </b>										<b></b>		and a		NATURE			
TRALS													1.	Land					Augusture or Registrar General		<b></b>		-+							. 	•			12270		
ARE: CA		•												Ł I					ineral										•	 NHS 235	\$59931		NUMBER	THENT		
NCELLE		:.:			· · ·									Duas		III.																				
D		:		.										Diacharger	weren ann														.•	CLU-11-61	7-1-17 70		DATE			
		-\ <u>-</u> ->	 	ļ		  .		<u> </u>				1			<u> </u>				CAN												Ц.,				ĸ	
	. S. S													hrenan	11-1-1	200			CANCELLATION								•		•	5-2-1973	- C-LARAD		ENTERED		1609 V.C	
					. · 	<u> </u>					_								Ĭ			.  							, ,	5	9			-	2.1609 V.C.N. Hight Commund Trinker	
		ېند  چېنې	- X 											}												•	•			ÌŁ	The		Registrar General			
HE REGISTRAR GENERAL ARE GANCELLED	2. 				; ;	. ,										<u>}</u>									ļ		:				{				-	
		;		·																						1	١	N60534		ļ	-621	· cords 3/ 1			•	
		•	•		•••	'.	;;	•																		14	3:	16		です。	27	7 16				
					. En	Sinte	1.531.		·7_1	line e										<u></u>	 	i,(s. J		<u></u>	<u>u., .</u>	4	È.		2 	MIN MIN	ایندا	-1 			المراجع	خىئۇ

K 533121 0EC 13 RG 3/27 Entry Endorsements \$ 9 ac to colle South Male 169.00 and the CAVEAT BY THE REGISTRAR GENERAL FORBIDDING REGISTRATION **OF DEALING WITH ESTATE OR INTEREST** (REAL PROPERTY ACT, 1960) I. THE REGISTRAR GENERAL OF NEW SOUTH WALES forbid the Registration of any dealing affecting the land comprised in the Crown Grant, Vol. 10441 Fol. <u>ge</u> not consistent with the powers of the registered proprietor as Mortgagee from Robert Glenny Dunkand Jennifer May Dunk as shown on transfer dated 17 august 1962 and registered No. 063 Book 2636 DATED this 13th day of Queenlus 1966 **Registrar** General ABD 611 V.C.H. Blight, Covernment Printer

K 533121 \_Cavent No..... ..... THE REGISTRAR GENERAL Cavcator Checked Particulurs entered in Register Book 4 1966 12 13 . at., Signed Registrar General. Mr. W. C. erandekan di u tu da subden bereken di utu da bereken.

	Constant of the second strength (Second			
nele upano d'antiverss L'evilles experies nelementes Las e e incares			BRIDGE STREET, SYDM 1 (5 NOV 1966 AUDRESS ACC.Y TO THE UNDER SECRETAR BOX 19, G. P. O. SYDNEY, N S. VV. AND QUOTE TEMLING 54/6717	i_
	The Regist Prince All SYDNEY,	trar General, bert Road,		
Grant No.65/2543 Portion ParishNouridiah County Camdan Name of Grantee	particular forwarded 	With reference vised in the ma to the Stemp Co vembar, 1966 that the Gran	wn Grant - Mortgage. De to the Deed of Gra argin hereof, which w Difice on the	A9
The Commercial Banking Com of Sydney Limited	as shown o registered requested delivering of any dea the grante	n transfer dat No. <u>663</u> that you enter same, a cavea ling except in e as a mortgag	and Jennifer May Dunk Book 2636 on the said grant, t forbidding the reg accordance with the see as provided by Re ds Consolidation Act	and snd it is before istration powers of gulation
	INDEKED	Ĩ	R. L. SINC Under Secr Per: 6	LAIR, etary.
æ				

r,



## Jenners Title Searching Co.



Jenners Title Searching Co. hereby certifies that the information contained in this document has been provided electronically by the Registrar General.

Information provided through Tri-Search an approved LPINS# Information Broker

LAND AND PROPERTY INFORMATION NEW SOUTH WALES - HISTORICAL SEARCH

SEARCH DATE 13/7/2010 9:40AM

FOLIO: 86/751270

First Title(s): SEE PRIOR TITLE(S)
Prior Title(s): VOL 10614 FOL 219

Recorded	Number	Type of Instrument	C.T. Issue
3/12/1988		TITLE AUTOMATION PROJECT	LOT RECORDED FOLIO NOT CREATED
./2/1989		CONVERTED TO COMPUTER FOLIO	FOLIO CREATED CT NOT ISSUED
31/10/2003	AA118037	CAVEAT	
27/4/2004	AA590041	APPLN FOR REPLACEMENT CT	EDITION 1
30/4/2004 30/4/2004	AA602220 AA602221	WITHDRAWAL OF CAVEAT TRANSFER	EDITION 2
22/7/2004	AA816324	MORTGAGE	EDITION 3
26/9/2007	AD441563	VARIATION OF MORTGAGE	EDITION 4
15/4/2010	AF433675	CAVEAT	

\*\*\* END OF SEARCH \*\*\*

JBS-Tahmoor

PRINTED ON 13/7/2010

New South Males NOT H WALLS No. 1967/907 Fol. 219 Val. 10514 Registered - 8 -196 STAMP D. LY ð SYDALY, CASS. ന Registrar General. CG. **GRANT OF LAND FURCHASED BY CONDITIONAL SALE** ED CANCEL HUNZ ANDER the SECONE, by the Grace of Sud at the Andre Ringdom, Anstentia and her ather Realmo and Terribusico Queen, Read of the Communicality, Refereder at the Maitie-C.P. 1942/1 <del>51</del>1 PICTON 5 In All in whom these Decsents shall come, Greeting :-SEE AUTO FOLIO 0 IIIIIIPPEAR JAMES STONE of "Romenfeld" Tahnuor in Our State of New South Wales No. -( Page one hundred and thirty two dollars being the purchase money poyable for the soid land has been duly paid And all things required by low to be done to entitle the GRANTEE to a Grant of the foc simple of the soid Lond "ubject to the Reservations Exceptions and Conditions herainelier contained have been done and performed NOW THESE PRESENTS WITNESS That in cansideration of the premises WE DO HEREBY GRANT onto the GRANTEE Subject to the Reservations Exceptions and Conditions haralnafter contained ALL THAT purced of land containing by almeasurement sixty atx marca be the some more of less situated in the County of Canden Parish of Cauridian Porsion 86 an shown in plan cutalogued No. C. 3516-2041 in the Department of Landa ON HEREO ٩Ŧ Alle and the directed to the provisions REFERENCE Narth Tine BLANNE 02574 nn teunalar 1 23 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 21 22 23 2009 4009 1779 1887 1887 69 86 84 409 587 150 201 228 634 552 130 \* 13 200 10 Doc: CT 10614-219 286 % 673 % 185 % 972 % 405 % 16 Prt: 13-Jul-2010 31 166 Req: C086940 66ac .96 170 548 501 • 🔿 50 °0'1296 7.73 2.20 Scala 10 Î 85 19 Chai DP. 751270. Provided Nevertheless AND WE DO ALSO HEREBY RESERVE AND EXCEPT unto Us Our Hairs and Successors all numerals which the land hereby granted contains with full power and authority for Us Our Heirs and Successors and such person or persons as shall from time to time be outhorised by Us or Them to enter upon the land hereby granted and to search for mine dig and remove the soid minerals And also all such parts and so on which of the land hereby granted as may bareafter be required for public ways in over and through the same to be set out by Our Governor for the time being of Our soid State or some person of by bim authorised in that request with full power for Us Our Heirs and Successors and for Our Governor for the time being of Our soid State or some person by Us Them or him authorised for the several purposes alcrossid or any of them Provided Forther. AND IT is EXPRESSLY DECLARED that mining operations may have been and may be carried on upon and in the land bolow the load hereby granted minerals and interest and minerals may have been and may be carried on upon and many be removed thereform and thereform and the land bereby granted and thereby granted and the several purposes alcrossid or any of them Provided Forther. AND IT is EXPRESSLY DECLARED that mining operations may have been and may be carried on upon and in the land bolow the load hereby granted and the lands adjoining the land hereby granted and the several purposes alcrossid or any of them Provided Forther. AND IT is EXPRESSLY DECLARED that mining operations may have been and may be carried on upon and and may be removed thereform and that the several purposes alcrossid or any of them area granted and the lands adjoining the land hereby granted and the several purposes alcrossid or any date and thereform and the tends doioning the land subject to the condition that and below the several and may be carried on upon and and the area do all and a granted and the lands adjoining the land hereby granted and the several purposes orecessars or the Governmen õ AGAINST ALTERING 1 ļ PERSONS ARE CAUTIONED and authority by reason of the acts and matters aforesald or in the course thereaf for Us Our Heirs and Successors and the Gavernment of Our said State and any person on Ow Their ar its behalf and any lassee or lessees as aforasoid and his or their executors administrators and assigns to from time to time lot dawn without payment of any compensation whatsoevar any part of the land hereby granted and/or at the surface thereof. In Testimony Whereal We have caused this Our Grant to be Sealed with the Soal of Our soid State ę, -Wilness Our Governor of Our State of New South Wales and its Dependencies in the Commonwealth of Australia, at Sydney in Our said State, this ninth May of August in the sixteenth year of Our Reign and in the year of Our Lord one Thousand nine hundred end element hundred and sixty seven A. R. butter Governor FOR ENDORSEMENTS SEE PAGE 2

· · · · ·											*			
••••••						SCHEDULE OF	F REGISTERED PROPRIETORS	ETORS					V. C. N. MICHI, Coverament Printer	الم الحديد
				REGISTERED PROPRIETOR	RIETOR			NATURE	atsvi	INSTRUMENT NUMBER	DATE	ENTERED	Signature of Registrar General	
6	Cau Lla	Prelos	to Ch.	1 divide				Can and	01	10%2234	11/11-1-0	1454-5-1	- January	1. 100 - X
5.T		H 1 +		Hair Ward		C		1/10/14		00351200	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	200000		;
			5- <u>2</u>	DAMAGEN IIIOIIIEC		A							- Structure	<sup>ارور</sup> در ر
<u>ท</u> วู	Joan In	Tructure 1	an Lunder	لي مر				- Zerz	i vi	2/64363		021-2-22		( ~.) (
			C						i 1 1	     	;			
90	5	CANCELELU			a an	,	annanda anna anna annanaidhe an ar shinnannan a a shinn							1.13.341
Ţ														
		APP AUTO COL	9						1	:	-			MESSAUSAN
• <b>^</b>		SEE AUIU FULU	8								;			N313155
<del>لىسىلە</del> ىى <sub>رىك</sub> ىن														Pesting my
<u>د</u>						SCHEDULE 0	OF ENCOMBRANCES ETC.						4	- 31 Mary
_ <b></b>	SPILLE.	INSTRUMENT	DATE		ΡA	PARTICULARS		ENTERED	Regatrar Gener	e cl eneraí		CANCELLATION		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
					111 - 1	2	11.1.6			1	Γ			S1695363 7
• ••	M. L.	M 510351 L					Print Contraction and Contraction	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		2017) 	1 uzbuouzani	1-10-1		
ۇمۇر <u>مىرىم</u> ە				McKeenand		8 variet 19		125,92-472			Diochavaed	13070EU		
المدينية. أور في سابق	Request	NUSIBULI		The retrictions	the starbold	ly detail 272	122 of the Aring							- 902 DA
(#44,1)**			······	Lorde Sanced Salan	N.	- igus are cance	needled			~		****		Your La I Isan
42 42	Request	NIBIZELP	     	Attention in directed to.	<u>۱</u>	etin 8 for	dectors. 8. stond along spation alon	:	۲ 	; 		*		War occu
<u>_</u>	M to		0 -10-12	a o to	126			į			·			WCOTY NOT
	W -L	h		the filling of the	<u>herentaire</u>					b	P.SCharged	0 7-2645		
ىكە زەر		i			and the second	25 C				in in	Discharged	V258902	de	
میں۔ فقد ان		Hortonec	V2E0900. Yari A	ionReutster	Revision of 3-0-00				de	re . Car	Cancelled	V258902	le	
(59)		tertgage ti	l <u>i continenta</u>	i i i	<del>oration Lim</del> i		Registered 3-8-1984		le-	Rest	Lenged	917052X		
Bed	V25890.1 Mor	<u> </u>	17 Variati	on. Regiete	Regietered 26 11 1985	1985-	· ·			Corner	willed	x 250646		
ų lo	V&55905 W	to Grave Mich	14.9.85 No	X	Printer -	Ju 11 10 10				Canar	ailled	250646		
) <b>7</b> a		0.0		₽{       					)					
369) 1														
														.×
				. NOTE - ENTRIES RULED - THROUGH , AND , AUTHENTICATED	THROUGH AND		TED-BYATHE SEAL-OF THE REGISTRAR GENERAL ARE CONCELLED	THE REGISTRAR	GENERAL /	RE-CANCELI			あると利用の	調査に調査



Appendix F Council Records

.

.

•



## PLANNING CERTIFICATE UNDER SECTION 149(2) & (5) ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING & ASSESSMENT ACT, 1979

APPLICANT:

Ms C Roberts 128 O'Riordan Street MASCOT NSW 2020

Planning Certificate No.: Receipt No.: Issue Date: Applicant's Reference: Property No.:

**DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY** 

Address:165 River Road TAHMOOR 2573Land Description:Lot: 86 DP: 751270

Notes:

The following prescribed matters may apply to the land to which this certificate relates.

Where this certificate refers to a specific allotment (or allotments) within a strata plan, the certificate is issued for the whole of the land within the strata plan, not just the specific allotment(s) referred to, and any information contained in the certificate may relate to the whole, or any part, of the strata plan.

The following information is provided pursuant to Section 149(2) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 as prescribed by Schedule 4 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 and is applicable as at the date of this certificate.

Information provided in this certificate should be interpreted in conjunction with the relevant plans, policies and documents held at Council. In order to obtain copies of these documents you may purchase them from Council's Administration Centre at 62-64 Menangle Street, Picton or view free of charge on Council's Website www.wollondilly.nsw.gov.au.

### 1. NAMES OF RELEVANT PLANNING INSTRUMENTS AND DCPS

(1) The name of each environmental planning instrument that applies to the carrying out of development on the land.

Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991.

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan No 20 - Hawkesbury-Nepean River (No 2 - 1997)

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan No 9 Extractive Industries (No 2 - 1995)

State Environmental Planning Policy No 1 - Development Standards

State Environmental Planning Policy (Building Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004

State Environmental Planning Policy No 4 - Development without Consent and Miscellaneous Complying Development

State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing for Seniors or People with a Disability) 2004

State Environmental Planning Policy No 6 - Number of Storeys in a Building

State Environmental Planning Policy No 21 - Caravan Parks

State Environmental Planning Policy No 22 - Shops and Commercial Premises

State Environmental Planning Policy No 30 - Intensive Agriculture

State Environmental Planning Policy No 33 - Hazardous and Offensive Development

State Environmental Planning Policy No 44 - Koala Habitat Protection (Note: Excludes land dedicated or reserved as National Park)

State Environmental Planning Policy No 50 - Canal Estate Development

State Environmental Planning Policy No 55 - Remediation of Land

State Environmental Planning Policy No 64 - Advertising and Signage

State Environmental Planning Policy No 65 - Design Quality of Residential Flat Development

State Environmental Planning Policy (Major Projects) 2005

State Environmental Planning Policy (Temporary Structures) 2007

State Environmental Planning Policy (Mining, Petroleum Production and Extractive Industries) 2007

State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007

State Environmental Planning Policy (Repeal of Concurrence and Referral Provisions) 2008

State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008.

State Environmental Planning Policy No 62 - Sustainable Aquaculture

State Environmental Planning Policy No 70 - Affordable Housing (Revised Schemes)

State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009

(2) The name of each proposed environmental planning instrument that will apply to the carrying out of development on the land and that is or has been the subject of community consultation or on public exhibition under the Act (unless the Director-General has notified the council that the making of the proposed instrument has been deferred indefinitely or has not been approved).

Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991 (Amendment No 29 - Dual occupancies) applies to the land and has been placed on public exhibition.

DRAFT WOLLONDILLY LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL PLAN 2009 has been placed on public exhibition. The draft plan proposes to replace Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991 in accordance with a Standard Instrument (LEP Template) as required for all Councils by the NSW Department of Planning. The proposed zoning of the land and certain changes proposed under the draft plan are outlined in this certificate as required. Further information can be obtained from Council's Strategic Planning Department.

Draft State Environmental Planning Policy (Application of Development Standards) 2004

(3) The name of each development control plan that applies to the carrying out of development on the land.

Development Control Plan No 7 - Off Street Car Parking

Development Control Plan No 21 - Earth Dams

Development Control Plan No 36 - Development in Rural Areas

Development Control Plan No 42 - Bed and Breakfast Establishments

Development Control Plan No 46 - Management of Contaminated Lands

Development Control Plan No 47 - Exempt and Complying Development

Development Control Plan No 54 - Telecommunications and Radio Communications

Development Control Plan - Notification and Advertising of Development Proposals

Development Control Plan - Agricultural Lands

Development Control Plan - Poultry

Development Control Plan No 19 - Keeping of Dogs for Commercial Purposes

(4) In this clause, proposed environmental planning instrument includes a planning proposal for a LEP or a draft environmental planning instrument.

## 2. ZONING AND LAND USE UNDER RELEVANT LEPS

For each environmental planning instrument or proposed instrument referred to in clause 1 (other than a SEPP or proposed SEPP) that includes the land in any zone (however described):

### WOLLONDILLY LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL PLAN 1991

 (a) the identity of the zone, whether by reference to a name (such as "Residential Zone" or "Heritage Area") or by reference to a number (such as "Zone No 2 (a)"):

Zone No 1(a2) (Rural "A2" Zone).

(b) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development may be carried out within the zone without the need for development consent:

Agriculture (other than intensive livestock keeping establishments).

(c) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development may

### not be carried out within the zone except with development consent:

Any purpose other than a purpose included in Item (b) or (d).

(d) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development is prohibited within the zone:

Abattoirs; amusement centres; boarding-houses; car repair stations; commercial premises; granny flats; industries (other than extractive, offensive, hazardous or rural industries); motor showrooms; multiple dwellings; plant and equipment hire; service stations; shops (other than general stores and produce stores).

(e) whether any development standards applying to the land fix minimum land dimensions for the erection of a dwelling house on the land and, if so, the minimum land dimensions so fixed,

Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991 does not contain any development standards that fix minimum land dimensions for the erection of a dwelling house on the land.

(f) whether the land includes or comprises critical habitat,

None known

(g) whether the land is in a conservation area (however described),

The land is not within a conservation area under Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991.

(h) whether an item of environmental heritage (however described) is situated on the land.

The land does not contain an item of environmental heritage under Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991.

### DRAFT WOLLONDILLY LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL PLAN 2009

 (a) the identity of the zone, whether by reference to a name (such as "Residential Zone" or "Heritage Area") or by reference to a number (such as "Zone No 2 (a)"),

Zone RU2 Rural Landscape.

(b) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development may be carried out within the zone without the need for development consent:

Bushfire hazard reduction work; Extensive agriculture; Flood mitigation works; Home occupations.

(c) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development may not be carried out within the zone except with development consent,

Agriculture; Air transport facilities; Bed and breakfast accommodation; Biosolid waste application; Boat repair facilities; Boat sheds; Cellar door premises; Cemeteries; Community facilities; Crematoriums; Depots; Dual occupancies (attached); Dwelling houses; Educational establishments; Electricity generating works; Emergency services facilities; Environmental facilities; Environmental protection works; Extractive industries; Farm buildings; Farm stay accommodation; Forestry; Freight transport facilities; Funeral chapels; Funeral homes; Group homes; Home-based child care; Home business; Home industries; Home occupation (sex services); Hospitals; Information and education facilities; Landscape and garden supplies; Mining; Mortuaries; Places of public worship; Recreation areas; Recreation facilities; Roads; Roadside stalls; Rural industries; Rural supplies; Rural worker's dwellings; Secondary dwellings; Sewerage systems; Signage; Transport depots; Veterinary hospitals; Waste or resource management facilities; Water recreation structures; Water supply systems.

(d) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development is prohibited within the zone,

Any development not specified in item (b) or (c).

Heliports; Stock and saleyards; Turf farming.

(e) whether any development standards applying to the land fix minimum land dimensions for the erection of a dwelling house on the land and, if so, the minimum land dimensions so fixed,

Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 2009 proposes development standards that fix minimum land dimensions for the erection of a dwelling house on this land under clause 7.6 as follows:

Consent may be granted to the erection of a single dwelling on vacant land only if the land is:

- (i) A lot created in accordance with clause 4.1 of the draft plan, or
- (ii) A lot in existence prior to the day on which the Plan commences, being a lot on which a single dwelling could lawfully have been erected immediately before that day.

Reference must be made to clause 7.6 of the draft plan for further information.

Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 2009 proposes development standards that fix minimum land dimensions for the erection of a dwelling house on this land as follows:

A dwelling cannot be erected on any lot created under clause 4.2 of the draft plan (ie: lots less than the minimum allotment size allowed for subdivision which have only been created for the purposes of primary production).

.

Reference must be made to clause 4.2 of the draft plan for further information.

(f) whether the land includes or comprises critical habitat,
None known

(g) whether the land is in a conservation area (however described),

The land is not located within a proposed Heritage Conservation Area as provided by clause 5.10 and Schedule 5 of Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 2009.

(h) whether an item of environmental heritage (however described) is situated on the land.

This land does not contain an item of environmental heritage as provided by clause 5.10 and Schedule 5 of Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 2009.

## 3. COMPLYING DEVELOPMENT

- (1) Whether or not the land is land on which complying development may be carried out under each of the codes for complying development because of the provisions of clause 1.19 of *State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008.*
- (2) If complying development may not be carried out on that land because of the provisions of clause 1.19 of that Policy, the reasons why it may not be carried out under that clause.

#### GENERAL HOUSING CODE

Complying development under the General Housing Code in State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008 MAY NOT be carried out on the land, unless the development is only the demolition or removal of a dwelling house, the demolition of ancillary development, or the erection of a swimming pool, fence or retaining wall. The land is identified as bush fire prone land.

#### HOUSING INTERNAL ALTERATIONS CODE

Complying development MAY be carried out on the land under the Housing Internal Alterations Code in State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008.

#### GENERAL COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL CODE

Complying development MAY be carried out on the land under the General Commercial and Industrial Code in State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008.

#### SUBDIVISIONS CODE

Complying development MAY be carried out on the land under the Subdivisions Code in State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008.

#### 4. COASTAL PROTECTION

Whether or not the land is affected by the operation of section 38 or 39 of the *Coastal Protection Act* 1979, but only to the extent that the council has been notified by the Department of Services, Technology and Administration.

No

#### 5. MINE SUBSIDENCE

Whether or not the land is proclaimed to be a mine subsidence district within the meaning of section 15 of the *Mine Subsidence Compensation Act* 1961.

The land is within a proclaimed Mine Subsidence District under the Mine Subsidence Compensation Act 1961. The approval of the Mine Subsidence Board is required for all subdivision and building, except for certain minor structures. Surface development controls are in place to prevent damage from old, current or future mining. It is strongly recommended prospective purchasers consult with the Mine Subsidence Board regarding mine subsidence and any surface development guidelines. The Board can assist with information about mine subsidence and advise whether existing structures comply with the requirements of the Act

# 6. ROAD WIDENING AND ROAD REALIGNMENT

Whether or not the land is affected by any road widening or road realignment under:

- (a) Division 2 or Part 3 of the Roads Act 1993, or
- (b) Any environmental planning instrument, or
- (c) Any resolution of the council.

No

# 7. COUNCIL AND OTHER PUBLIC AUTHORITY POLICIES ON HAZARD RISK RESTRICTIONS

Whether or not the land is affected by a policy:

- (a) Adopted by the council, or
- (b) Adopted by any other public authority and notified to the council for the express purpose of its adoption by that authority being referred to in planning certificates issued by the council,

that restricts the development of the land because of the likelihood of land slip, bushfire, tidal inundation, subsidence, acid sulphate soils or any other risk (other than flooding).

The Council has adopted, by resolution dated 9 August 1999, a policy concerning contaminated land. That policy applies to the land to which this certificate relates and will restrict development of the land if the circumstances set out in the policy prevail. A copy of the policy is available at the Council.

# 7A. FLOOD RELATED DEVELOPMENT CONTROLS INFORMATION

(1) Whether or not development on that land or part of the land for the purposes of dwelling houses, dual occupancies, multi dwelling housing or residential flat buildings (not including development for the purposes of group homes or seniors housing) is subject to flood related development controls.

No

- (2) Whether or not development on that land or part of the land for any other purpose is subject to flood related development controls.
- No
- (3) Words and expressions in this clause have the same meanings as in the instrument set out in the Schedule to the Standard Instrument (Local Environmental Plans) Order 2006.

## 8. LAND RESERVED FOR ACQUISITION

Whether or not any environmental planning instrument or proposed environmental planning instrument referred to in clause 1 makes provision in relation to the acquisition of the land by a public authority, as referred to in section 27 of the Act.

Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991 does not provide for the acquisition of the subject land by a public authority, as referred to in section 27 of the Act.

Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 2009 does not provide for the acquisition of the subject land by a public authority, as referred to in section 27 of the Act.

#### 9. CONTRIBUTIONS PLANS

The name of each contributions plan applying to the land.

Wollondilly Development Contributions Plan, 2005.

#### 9A. BIODIVERSITY CERTIFIED LAND

.

If the land is biodiversity certified land (within the meaning of Part 7AA of the *Threatened Species Conservation Act 1995*), a statement to that effect.

The land is not biodiversity certified land (within the meaning of Part 7AA of the Threatened Species Conservation Act 1995).

### 10. BIOBANKING AGREEMENTS

If the land is land to which a biobanking agreement under Part 7A of the *Threatened Species Conservation Act 1995* relates, a statement to that effect (but only if the council has been notified of the existence of the agreement by the Director-General of the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water).

Council has not been notified by the Director-General of the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water of any biobanking agreement approved under the Threatened Species Conservation Act 1995 for this land.

### 11. BUSH FIRE PRONE LAND

If any of the land is bush fire prone land (as defined in the Act), a statement that all or as the case may be, some of the land is bush fire prone land.

If none of the land is bush fire prone land, a statement to that effect.

The land is partially bush fire prone land as shown in Council's records. Further details of any applicable restrictions on development of the land may be obtained on application to Council.

\_\_\_\_\_

# **12. PROPERTY VEGETATION PLANS**

Whether or not the land is land to which a property vegetation plan under the *Native Vegetation Act 2003* applies, a statement to that effect (but only if the council has been notified of the existence of the plan by the person or body that approved the plan under the Act).

Council has not been notified of any such plan that affects this land.

### 13. ORDER UNDER TREES (DISPUTES BETWEEN NEIGHBOURS) ACT 2006

Whether an order has been made under the *Trees (Disputes between Neighbours)* Act 2006 to carry out work in relation to a tree on the land (but only if the council has been notified of the order).

No

# 14. DIRECTIONS UNDER PART 3A

If there is a direction by the Minister in force under section 75P (2) (c1) of the Act that a provision of an environmental planning instrument prohibiting or restricting the carrying out of a project or a stage of a project on the land under Part 4 of the Act does not have effect, a statement to that effect identifying the provision that does not have effect.

No

# 15. SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATES AND CONDITIONS FOR SENIORS HOUSING

If the land is land to which *State Environmental Planning Policy* (Housing for Seniors or *People with a Disability*) 2004 applies:

- (a) a statement of whether there is a current site compatibility certificate (seniors housing), of which the council is aware, in respect of proposed development on the land and, if there is a certificate, the statement is to include:
  - (i) the period for which the certificate is current, and
  - (ii) that a copy may be obtained from the head office of the Department of Planning, and

There is not a current site compatibility certificate (seniors housing) as described that applies to this land.

(b) a statement setting out any terms of a kind referred to in clause 18 (2) of that Policy that have been imposed as a condition of consent to a development application granted after 11 October 2007 in respect of the land.

There are currently no conditions of consent relating to a development application for seniors housing that apply to the land.

# 16. SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATES FOR INFRASTRUCTURE

A statement of whether there is a valid site compatibility certificate (infrastructure), of which the Council is aware, in respect of proposed development on the land and, if there is a certificate, that statement is to include:

- (a) the period for which the certificate is valid, and
- (b) that a copy may be obtained from the head office of the Department of Planning.

There is not a valid site compatibility certificate (infrastructure) as described that applies to this land.

# 17. SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATES AND CONDITIONS FOR AFFORDABLE RENTAL HOUSING

- (1) A statement of whether there is a current site compatibility certificate (affordable rental housing), of which the Council is aware, in respect of proposed development on the land and, if there is a certificate, that statement is to include:
  - (a) the period for which the certificate is current, and
  - (b) that a copy may be obtained from the head office of the Department of Planning

There is not a current site compatibility certificate (affordable rental housing) as described that applies to this land.

(2) A statement setting out any terms of a kind referred to in clause 17 (1) or 37 (1) of *State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009* that have been imposed as a condition of consent to a development application in respect of the land.

There are currently no conditions of consent relating to a development application for affordable rental housing that apply to the land.

**NOTE.** The following matters are prescribed by section 59(2) of the *Contaminated Land Management Act 1997* as additional matters to be specified in a planning certificate:

(a) that the land to which the certificate relates is significantly contaminated land within the meaning of that Act – if the land (or part of the land) is significantly contaminated land at the date when the certificate is issued,

No.

(b) that the land to which the certificate relates is subject to a management order within the meaning of that Act – if it is subject to such an order at the date when the certificate is issued,

No.

- (c) that the land to which the certificate relates is the subject of an approved voluntary management proposal within the meaning of that Act if it is the subject of such an approved proposal at the date when the certificate is issued,
- No.
- (d) that the land to which the certificate relates is subject to an ongoing maintenance order within the meaning of that Act – if it is subject to such an order at the date when the certificate is issued,

No.

(e) that the land to which the certificate relates is the subject of a site audit statement within the meaning of that Act – if a copy of such a statement has been provided at any time to the local authority issuing the certificate.

No.

# THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IS PROVIDED UNDER:

# SECTION 149(5) OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING AND ASSESSMENT ACT 1979

For the purposes of Section 149(5), the following information is provided in relation to the subject property:

- 1. The subject land is not affected by a Foreshore Building Line.
- 2. Any enquiries relating to whether or not the land has frontage to a classified road or a controlled access road should be referred directly to the RTA on 02 4221 2495.
- 3. SECOND SYDNEY AIRPORT PROPOSAL.

In November 1996 the Commonwealth Government released details of five airport options being considered for the development of a second major airport for Sydney at either Badgerys Creek or the Holsworthy Military Area. In September 1997, the Government abandoned the Holsworthy option and announced that the Draft Environmental Impact Statement would concentrate on Badgerys Creek. The Government also released the Draft Environmental Impact Statement Summary, which gives an indication of the impact of the proposal on the local environment. Information on the proposal and the Summary of the Draft Environmental Impact Statement can be obtained from the Federal Department of Transport.

Other Matters (if applicable). 4.

ans l'an air

DRAFT WOLLONDILLY DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PLAN 2009

Draft Wollondilly Development Control Plan 2009 has been placed on public exhibition. The draft plan proposes to replace all current Development Control Plans and Policies applying to the land. It has been prepared in conjunction with Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 2009 which is also on public exhibition. Further information can be obtained from Council's website or by contacting Council's Strategic Planning Department or Customer Service Centre.

. .

**Note.** Section 26 of the *Nation Building and Jobs Plan (State Infrastructure Delivery) Act 2009* provides that a planning certificate must include advice about any exemption under section 23 or authorisation under section 24 of that Act if the council is provided with a copy of the exemption or authorisation by the Co-ordinator General under that Act.

In respect of matters beyond the control and/or responsibility of Council, information provided is provided only to the extent that Council has been so notified by the relevant Authorities or Departments, which have responsibility for the administration of the particular status referred to.

Mikel

L McMahon GENERAL MANAGER

Any request for further information in connection with the above should be directed to Council's Duty Planner on (02) 4677 1100.

#### NOTICE TO PURCHASERS OF RURAL LAND

Wollondilly Shire Council supports the rights of persons in rural areas of the Shire to undertake and pursue agricultural production activities that are consistent with land capability and use reasonable and practical measures to avoid environmental harm and minimise impact to adjoining land users. Intending purchasers are advised that agricultural production can include the following activities that may have implications for occupiers and prospective purchasers of rural land:

Use of agricultural machinery (tractors, chainsaws, motorbikes)

Use of bird-scare devices Intensive livestock production (cattle feedlots, poultry farms, piggeries, restricted dairies) Operation of rural industries (packing sheds, abattoirs, stock and sale yards, sawmills) Vegetation clearing Grazing of livestock

Crop and fodder production

Soil cultivation

Crop harvesting

Use of firearms

Bushfire hazard reduction burning

Construction of firebreaks

Earthworks (construction of dams, drains, contour banks, access roads and tracks)

Fencing

Pumping and irrigation

Use of pesticides and herbicides

Spreading of manure, compost and treated effluent

Fertiliser usage

Slashing and mowing of grass

Production of silage

Re-vegetation activities (planting trees and shrubs)

Agroforestry

Livestock droving on roads

This is not an exhaustive list and intending purchasers of rural land should assess surrounding agricultural land uses and the impact these activities may have when being pursued in close proximity their proposed purchase. If you think these types of activities will affect your ability to live in a rural locality then intending purchasers are advised to reconsider their purchase and seek independent advice.

This notice is not intended to affect the rights of individuals to take action under the common law or legislation and is provided for information purposes only.



# PLANNING CERTIFICATE UNDER SECTION 149(2) & (5) ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING & ASSESSMENT ACT, 1979

**APPLICANT:** 

Ms C Roberts 128 O'Riordan Street MASCOT NSW 2020

Planning Certificate No.: Receipt No.: Issue Date: Applicant's Reference: Property No.:

**DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY** 

Address:River RoadTAHMOOR 2573Land Description:Lot: 85 DP: 751270

Notes:

The following prescribed matters may apply to the land to which this certificate relates.

Where this certificate refers to a specific allotment (or allotments) within a strata plan, the certificate is issued for the whole of the land within the strata plan, not just the specific allotment(s) referred to, and any information contained in the certificate may relate to the whole, or any part, of the strata plan.

The following information is provided pursuant to Section 149(2) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 as prescribed by Schedule 4 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 and is applicable as at the date of this certificate.

Information provided in this certificate should be interpreted in conjunction with the relevant plans, policies and documents held at Council. In order to obtain copies of these documents you may purchase them from Council's Administration Centre at 62-64 Menangle Street, Picton or view free of charge on Council's Website www.wollondilly.nsw.gov.au.

# 1. NAMES OF RELEVANT PLANNING INSTRUMENTS AND DCPS

(1) The name of each environmental planning instrument that applies to the carrying out of development on the land.

Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991.

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan No 20 - Hawkesbury-Nepean River (No 2 - 1997)

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan No 9 Extractive Industries (No 2 - 1995)

State Environmental Planning Policy No 1 - Development Standards

State Environmental Planning Policy (Building Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004

State Environmental Planning Policy No 4 - Development without Consent and Miscellaneous Complying Development

State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing for Seniors or People with a Disability) 2004

State Environmental Planning Policy No 6 - Number of Storeys in a Building

State Environmental Planning Policy No 21 - Caravan Parks

State Environmental Planning Policy No 22 - Shops and Commercial Premises

State Environmental Planning Policy No 30 - Intensive Agriculture

State Environmental Planning Policy No 33 - Hazardous and Offensive Development

State Environmental Planning Policy No 44 - Koala Habitat Protection (Note: Excludes land dedicated or reserved as National Park)

State Environmental Planning Policy No 50 - Canal Estate Development

State Environmental Planning Policy No 55 - Remediation of Land

State Environmental Planning Policy No 64 - Advertising and Signage

State Environmental Planning Policy No 65 - Design Quality of Residential Flat Development

State Environmental Planning Policy (Major Projects) 2005

State Environmental Planning Policy (Temporary Structures) 2007

State Environmental Planning Policy (Mining, Petroleum Production and Extractive Industries) 2007

State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007

State Environmental Planning Policy No 32 - Urban Consolidation (Redevelopment of Urban Land)

State Environmental Planning Policy (Repeal of Concurrence and Referral Provisions) 2008

State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008.

State Environmental Planning Policy No 62 - Sustainable Aquaculture

State Environmental Planning Policy No 70 - Affordable Housing (Revised Schemes)

State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009

(2) The name of each proposed environmental planning instrument that will apply to the carrying out of development on the land and that is or has been the subject of community consultation or on public exhibition under the Act (unless the Director-General has notified the council that the making of the proposed instrument has been deferred indefinitely or has not been approved).

Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991 (Amendment No 29 - Dual occupancies) applies to the land and has been placed on public exhibition.

DRAFT WOLLONDILLY LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL PLAN 2009 has been placed on public exhibition. The draft plan proposes to replace Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991 in accordance with a Standard Instrument (LEP Template) as required for all Councils by the NSW Department of Planning. The proposed zoning of the land and certain changes proposed under the draft plan are outlined in this certificate as required. Further information can be obtained from Council's Strategic Planning Department.

Draft State Environmental Planning Policy (Application of Development Standards) 2004

(3) The name of each development control plan that applies to the carrying out of development on the land.

Development Control Plan No 7 - Off Street Car Parking

Development Control Plan No 21 - Earth Dams

Development Control Plan No 36 - Development in Rural Areas

Development Control Plan No 42 - Bed and Breakfast Establishments

Development Control Plan No 46 - Management of Contaminated Lands

Development Control Plan No 47 - Exempt and Complying Development

Development Control Plan No 54 - Telecommunications and Radio Communications

Development Control Plan - Notification and Advertising of Development Proposals

Development Control Plan - Agricultural Lands

Development Control Plan - Poultry

Development Control Plan No 19 - Keeping of Dogs for Commercial Purposes

(4) In this clause, proposed environmental planning instrument includes a planning proposal for a LEP or a draft environmental planning instrument.

# 2. ZONING AND LAND USE UNDER RELEVANT LEPS

For each environmental planning instrument or proposed instrument referred to in clause 1 (other than a SEPP or proposed SEPP) that includes the land in any zone (however described):

#### WOLLONDILLY LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL PLAN 1991

 (a) the identity of the zone, whether by reference to a name (such as "Residential Zone" or "Heritage Area") or by reference to a number (such as "Zone No 2 (a)"):

Zone No 9(d) (Open Space Reservation Zone).

(b) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development may be carried out within the zone without the need for development consent:

Public parks; public recreation.

(c) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development may not be carried out within the zone except with development consent: Agriculture; drainage; forestry; land filling operations; recreation areas; roads; telecommunications facilities; utility installations (other than generating works).

(d) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development is prohibited within the zone:

Any purpose other than a purpose included in Item 2 or 3.

 the identity of the zone, whether by reference to a name (such as "Residential Zone" or "Heritage Area") or by reference to a number (such as "Zone No 2 (a)"):

Zone No 1(a2) (Rural "A2" Zone).

(b) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development may be carried out within the zone without the need for development consent:

Agriculture (other than intensive livestock keeping establishments).

(c) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development may not be carried out within the zone except with development consent:

Any purpose other than a purpose included in Item (b) or (d).

(d) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development is prohibited within the zone:

Abattoirs; amusement centres; boarding-houses; car repair stations; commercial premises; granny flats; industries (other than extractive, offensive, hazardous or rural industries); motor showrooms; multiple dwellings; plant and equipment hire; service stations; shops (other than general stores and produce stores).

(e) whether any development standards applying to the land fix minimum land dimensions for the erection of a dwelling house on the land and, if so, the minimum land dimensions so fixed,

Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991 does not contain any development standards that fix minimum land dimensions for the erection of a dwelling house on the land.

(f) whether the land includes or comprises critical habitat,

None known

(g) whether the land is in a conservation area (however described),

The land is not within a conservation area under Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991.

(h) whether an item of environmental heritage (however described) is situated on the land.

The land does not contain an item of environmental heritage under Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991.

#### DRAFT WOLLONDILLY LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL PLAN 2009

 the identity of the zone, whether by reference to a name (such as "Residential Zone" or "Heritage Area") or by reference to a number (such as "Zone No 2 (a)"),

Zone RU2 Rural Landscape.

(b) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development may be carried out within the zone without the need for development consent:

Bushfire hazard reduction work; Extensive agriculture; Flood mitigation works; Home occupations.

(c) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development may not be carried out within the zone except with development consent,

Agriculture; Air transport facilities; Bed and breakfast accommodation; Biosolid waste application; Boat repair facilities; Boat sheds; Cellar door premises; Cemeteries; Community facilities; Crematoriums; Depots; Dual occupancies (attached); Dwelling houses; Educational establishments; Electricity generating works; Emergency services facilities; Environmental facilities; Environmental protection works; Extractive industries; Farm buildings; Farm stay accommodation; Forestry; Freight transport facilities; Funeral chapels; Funeral homes; Group homes; Home-based child care; Home business; Home industries; Home occupation (sex services); Hospitals; Information and education facilities; Landscape and garden supplies; Mining; Mortuaries; Places of public worship; Recreation areas; Recreation facilities; Roads; Roadside stalls; Rural industries; Rural supplies; Rural worker's dwellings; Secondary dwellings; Sewerage systems; Signage; Transport depots; Veterinary hospitals; Waste or resource management facilities; Water recreation structures; Water supply systems.

(d) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development is prohibited within the zone,

Any development not specified in item (b) or (c).

Heliports; Stock and saleyards; Turf farming.

 (a) the identity of the zone, whether by reference to a name (such as "Residential Zone" or "Heritage Area") or by reference to a number (such as "Zone No 2 (a)"),

Zone E2 Environmental Conservation.

(b) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development may be carried out within the zone without the need for development consent:

Bushfire hazard reduction works; Flood mitigation works.

(c) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development may not be carried out within the zone except with development consent,

Electricity generating works; Environmental facilities; Environmental protection works; Information and education facilities; Natural water based aquaculture; Roads; Sewerage systems; Water recreation structures; Water supply systems.

(d) the purposes for which the instrument provides that development is prohibited within the zone,

Business premises; Hotel or motel accommodation; Industries; Multi dwelling housing; Recreation facilities (major); Residential flat buildings; Retail premises; Seniors housing; Service stations; Warehouse or distribution centres; Water recycling facilities.

Any other development not specified in item (b) or (c).

(e) whether any development standards applying to the land fix minimum land dimensions for the erection of a dwelling house on the land and, if so, the minimum land dimensions so fixed,

Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 2009 proposes development standards that fix minimum land dimensions for the erection of a dwelling house on this land under clause 7.6 as follows:

Consent may be granted to the erection of a single dwelling on vacant land only if the land is:

- (i) A lot created in accordance with clause 4.1 of the draft plan, or
- (ii) A lot in existence prior to the day on which the Plan commences, being a lot on which a single dwelling could lawfully have been erected immediately before that day.

Reference must be made to clause 7.6 of the draft plan for further information.

Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 2009 proposes development standards that fix minimum land dimensions for the erection of a dwelling house on this land as follows:

A dwelling cannot be erected on any lot created under clause 4.2 of the draft plan (ie: lots less than the minimum allotment size allowed for subdivision which have only been created for the purposes of primary production).

Reference must be made to clause 4.2 of the draft plan for further information.

(f) whether the land includes or comprises critical habitat,

None known

(g) whether the land is in a conservation area (however described),

The land is not located within a proposed Heritage Conservation Area as provided by clause 5.10 and Schedule 5 of Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 2009.

(h) whether an item of environmental heritage (however described) is situated on the land.

This land does not contain an item of environmental heritage as provided by clause 5.10 and Schedule 5 of Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 2009.

## 3. COMPLYING DEVELOPMENT

- (1) Whether or not the land is land on which complying development may be carried out under each of the codes for complying development because of the provisions of clause 1.19 of *State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008.*
- (2) If complying development may not be carried out on that land because of the provisions of clause 1.19 of that Policy, the reasons why it may not be carried out under that clause.

#### GENERAL HOUSING CODE

Complying development under the General Housing Code in State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008 MAY NOT be carried out on the land. The land is identified as land reserved for a public purpose in an environmental planning instrument.

Complying development under the General Housing Code in State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008 MAY NOT be carried out on the land, unless the development is only the demolition or removal of a dwelling house, the demolition of ancillary development, or the erection of a swimming pool, fence or retaining wall. The land is identified as bush fire prone land.

#### HOUSING INTERNAL ALTERATIONS CODE

Complying development MAY be carried out on the land under the Housing Internal Alterations Code in State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008.

#### GENERAL COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL CODE

Complying development MAY be carried out on the land under the General Commercial and Industrial Code in State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008.

#### SUBDIVISIONS CODE

Complying development MAY be carried out on the land under the Subdivisions Code in State Environmental Planning Policy (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008.

# 4. COASTAL PROTECTION

Whether or not the land is affected by the operation of section 38 or 39 of the *Coastal Protection Act* 1979, but only to the extent that the council has been notified by the Department of Services, Technology and Administration.

No

#### 5. MINE SUBSIDENCE

Whether or not the land is proclaimed to be a mine subsidence district within the meaning of section 15 of the *Mine Subsidence Compensation Act* 1961.

The land is within a proclaimed Mine Subsidence District under the Mine Subsidence Compensation Act 1961. The approval of the Mine Subsidence Board is required for all subdivision and building, except for certain minor structures. Surface development controls are in place to prevent damage from old, current or future mining. It is strongly recommended prospective purchasers consult with the Mine Subsidence Board regarding mine subsidence and any surface development guidelines. The Board can assist with information about mine subsidence and advise whether existing structures comply with the requirements of the Act

.

# 6. ROAD WIDENING AND ROAD REALIGNMENT

Whether or not the land is affected by any road widening or road realignment under:

- (a) Division 2 or Part 3 of the Roads Act 1993, or
- (b) Any environmental planning instrument, or
- (c) Any resolution of the council.

No

# 7. COUNCIL AND OTHER PUBLIC AUTHORITY POLICIES ON HAZARD RISK RESTRICTIONS

Whether or not the land is affected by a policy:

- (a) Adopted by the council, or
- (b) Adopted by any other public authority and notified to the council for the express purpose of its adoption by that authority being referred to in planning certificates issued by the council,

that restricts the development of the land because of the likelihood of land slip, bushfire, tidal inundation, subsidence, acid sulphate soils or any other risk (other than flooding).

The Council has adopted, by resolution dated 9 August 1999, a policy concerning contaminated land. That policy applies to the land to which this certificate relates and will restrict development of the land if the circumstances set out in the policy prevail. A copy of the policy is available at the Council.

# 7A. FLOOD RELATED DEVELOPMENT CONTROLS INFORMATION

(1) Whether or not development on that land or part of the land for the purposes of dwelling houses, dual occupancies, multi dwelling housing or residential flat buildings (not including development for the purposes of group homes or seniors housing) is subject to flood related development controls.

No

(2) Whether or not development on that land or part of the land for any other purpose is subject to flood related development controls.

No

(3) Words and expressions in this clause have the same meanings as in the instrument set out in the Schedule to the Standard Instrument (Local Environmental Plans) Order 2006.

## 8. LAND RESERVED FOR ACQUISITION

Whether or not any environmental planning instrument or proposed environmental planning instrument referred to in clause 1 makes provision in relation to the acquisition of the land by a public authority, as referred to in section 27 of the Act.

Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 1991 provides for acquisition of the subject land by a public authority as referred to in section 27 of the Act.

Draft Wollondilly Local Environmental Plan 2009 does not provide for the acquisition of the subject land by a public authority, as referred to in section 27 of the Act.

#### 9. CONTRIBUTIONS PLANS

The name of each contributions plan applying to the land.

Wollondilly Development Contributions Plan, 2005.

#### 9A. BIODIVERSITY CERTIFIED LAND

If the land is biodiversity certified land (within the meaning of Part 7AA of the *Threatened Species Conservation Act 1995*), a statement to that effect.

The land is not biodiversity certified land (within the meaning of Part 7AA of the Threatened Species Conservation Act 1995).

### 10. BIOBANKING AGREEMENTS

If the land is land to which a biobanking agreement under Part 7A of the *Threatened Species Conservation Act 1995* relates, a statement to that effect (but only if the council has been notified of the existence of the agreement by the Director-General of the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water).

Council has not been notified by the Director-General of the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water of any biobanking agreement approved under the Threatened Species Conservation Act 1995 for this land.

#### 11. BUSH FIRE PRONE LAND

If any of the land is bush fire prone land (as defined in the Act), a statement that all or as the case may be, some of the land is bush fire prone land.

If none of the land is bush fire prone land, a statement to that effect.

The land is partially bush fire prone land as shown in Council's records. Further details of any applicable restrictions on development of the land may be obtained on application to Council.

12. PROPERTY VEGETATION PLANS

Whether or not the land is land to which a property vegetation plan under the *Native Vegetation Act 2003* applies, a statement to that effect (but only if the council has been notified of the existence of the plan by the person or body that approved the plan under the Act).

Council has not been notified of any such plan that affects this land.

13. ORDER UNDER TREES (DISPUTES BETWEEN NEIGHBOURS) ACT 2006

Whether an order has been made under the *Trees (Disputes between Neighbours) Act 2006* to carry out work in relation to a tree on the land (but only if the council has been notified of the order).

No

. . . . . . . . .

## 14. DIRECTIONS UNDER PART 3A

If there is a direction by the Minister in force under section 75P (2) (c1) of the Act that a provision of an environmental planning instrument prohibiting or restricting the carrying out of a project or a stage of a project on the land under Part 4 of the Act does not have effect, a statement to that effect identifying the provision that does not have effect.

No

# 15. SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATES AND CONDITIONS FOR SENIORS HOUSING

If the land is land to which *State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing for Seniors or People with a Disability) 2004* applies:

- (a) a statement of whether there is a current site compatibility certificate (seniors housing), of which the council is aware, in respect of proposed development on the land and, if there is a certificate, the statement is to include:
  - (i) the period for which the certificate is current, and
  - (ii) that a copy may be obtained from the head office of the Department of Planning, and

There is not a current site compatibility certificate (seniors housing) as described that applies to this land.

(b) a statement setting out any terms of a kind referred to in clause 18 (2) of that Policy that have been imposed as a condition of consent to a development application granted after 11 October 2007 in respect of the land.

There are currently no conditions of consent relating to a development application for seniors housing that apply to the land.

# 16. SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATES FOR INFRASTRUCTURE

A statement of whether there is a valid site compatibility certificate (infrastructure), of which the Council is aware, in respect of proposed development on the land and, if there is a certificate, that statement is to include:

- (a) the period for which the certificate is valid, and
- (b) that a copy may be obtained from the head office of the Department of Planning.

There is not a valid site compatibility certificate (infrastructure) as described that applies to this land.

# 17. SITE COMPATIBILITY CERTIFICATES AND CONDITIONS FOR AFFORDABLE RENTAL HOUSING

- (1) A statement of whether there is a current site compatibility certificate (affordable rental housing), of which the Council is aware, in respect of proposed development on the land and, if there is a certificate, that statement is to include:
  - (a) the period for which the certificate is current, and
  - (b) that a copy may be obtained from the head office of the Department of Planning

There is not a current site compatibility certificate (affordable rental housing) as described that applies to this land.

(2) A statement setting out any terms of a kind referred to in clause 17 (1) or 37 (1) of State Environmental Planning Policy (Affordable Rental Housing) 2009 that have been imposed as a condition of consent to a development application in respect of the land.

There are currently no conditions of consent relating to a development application for affordable rental housing that apply to the land.

**NOTE.** The following matters are prescribed by section 59(2) of the *Contaminated Land Management Act 1997* as additional matters to be specified in a planning certificate:

(a) that the land to which the certificate relates is significantly contaminated land within the meaning of that Act – if the land (or part of the land) is significantly contaminated land at the date when the certificate is issued,

No.

(b) that the land to which the certificate relates is subject to a management order within the meaning of that Act – if it is subject to such an order at the date when the certificate is issued,

No.

- (c) that the land to which the certificate relates is the subject of an approved voluntary management proposal within the meaning of that Act if it is the subject of such an approved proposal at the date when the certificate is issued,
- No.
- (d) that the land to which the certificate relates is subject to an ongoing maintenance order within the meaning of that Act if it is subject to such an order at the date when the certificate is issued,

No.

(e) that the land to which the certificate relates is the subject of a site audit statement within the meaning of that Act – if a copy of such a statement has been provided at any time to the local authority issuing the certificate.

No.